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Corporate Information 2 5] & ¥

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ExecuTive DIRECTORS

Mr. ZENG Yunshu

Mr. ZHANG Yiyan

Ms. YE Qingdong

Mr. OUYANG Junxin

Mr. LEE Chi Shing Caesar
Mr. CHAN Ting Lai

Ms. YEUNG So Mui

Ms. HUANG Ling

Non-execuTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. ZHANG Yijun

INDEPENDENT NoON-ExXEcuTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. LI Jun

Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam

Mr. WANG Fosong

Mr. LI Wai Keung

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. ZENG Yunshu
Mr. ZHANG Yijun

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. YOUNG Wai Ching

AUDITOR
RSM Nelson Wheeler

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

The Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

17th Floor, Block B, Hong Long Century Plaza
Heping Road

Luohu District

Shenzhen, Guangdong Province

The PRC
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room A of 49" Floor and
Area L of 50™ Floor
Office Tower
Convention Plaza

1 Harbour Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER

OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS
Butterfield Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
Butterfield House

68 Fort Street

P.O. Box 705

George Town

Grand Cayman

The Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
26th Floor

Tesbury Centre

28 Queen'’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

In Hong Kong:
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

In the PRC:

China Construction Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
China Bank of Communications
Agricultural Bank of China

Hua Xia Bank

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For other information relating to the Company, please contact
Corporate Communications Department

website: www.hlkg.net

e-mail: ir@hlkg.net
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Corporate Development Milestone A TR EFR

Incorporation of Hong Long Property Group Limited, formerly known as Hong Long Properties

2000 First move:
(Shenzhen) Company Limited, the Group ' s major operating subsidiary

R ARETIELEMBRARABELERBERAR (FIEBEBE ORI BRAR) EMKL

2002 First property development project: Commenced the construction of Harbor City in Shenzhen
BEMXHREERE R BEBHE T

2003 First move into property leasing business
BREEMXEBEE

2004 First move beyond Shenzhen into Huizhou 200 Acquisition of further lands for
BIRESHIRY - BN Ningjiang Uptown in Xingning

RETHRAREE— WL

Completed the open tender offer for

purchase of Senior Note

REEEEEBRZRARNED

2005 Acqujigg interest in Yinghua project Entered into agreement for issue of
B EETE B A e shares to CCBI

2007

FSABEIR BB BT AR D AT S h ek

2008 Establishment of subsidiary in Dongguan for a
potential project
REEREERER L —FKMEAT

Acquired interest in Zirui Garden

Wi R Im B RO e

First move into international capital market: Listing on HK Stock Exchange and raised funds of
HK$472M

BIEREBEREATS - RSB LTI E1§ 472,000,000 8 T E &

Acquired interest in Yifeng Plaza (now renamed as Hong Long Century Plaza)

WEE L ES GRIBBEYLES) HEn

Acquired 50% interest in Nam Fong Garden, Guangzhou, and subsequently disposed
W BB N 1EE 50% s W R BER &

Commenced construction of Grace Garden

FHTEFARTE

First fund raising exercise after listing in HK: Issuance of Senior Note of US$90M
BELMEEREEED : BITELRIEIE590,000,000ETHES

First move beyond Guangdong into Zhangjiakou, Hebei

BRBEER - #ETILRRA
Commenced construction of Ningjiang Uptown in Xingning
R BT R T 2 004

IR ES R AR

2000

200 Grand opening of Hong Long Plaza
shopping mall 2003




2010

Corporate Development Milestone A TR ER

Entered into acquisition agreement for project at Pinghu Street, Longgang of Shenzhen

RARJImREE R TN EENIEB T LB

Entered into cooperative framework agreement with the Management Committee of Shenyang Economic and Technological
Development Zone of Liaoning Province, PRC for the construction project of Shenyang Tiexi Industrial New City
REGHAEFNERBERPREEREGLEERNAZEREZ ST LA FIEL R

Declaration of special dividend of HK$0.15 per share with scrip dividend for the 3rd anniversary of listing in Hong Kong
REVDRRBEE LT =BF - SIRER0.I5ETHRERIRE « WHERARK S E

Completed the Tender Offer to purchase the then remaining Senior Notes of US$30 million.

RIEE 530,000,000 ETH B TMEARBE TR AREZL

Disposal of 52% equity in Huizhou Dayawan project.

HEBMAGREIEE 52% R

Acquisition of 100% equity in Anhui Chaohu project.

B B EHIRE 100% R

Disposal of 82% equity in Huizhou Urban Upstream Landscape Villa project.

HE BN IEREITILIEE 82% R iE

2010

Hong Long Holdings Limited &£ iR 5 R A & 5
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Business Scope X B ¥i5281&

B g i IR

Holdings

Corporate and business structure

TERERERE
Chairman and
2.54%"
BEZERERAT
3.01%"
Diamond Ocean
Development Ltd. 25% 1)
Other institutional
and individual
investors 41.92%"

HAE R
BARESE

Notes Hf#E

1. Shareholding as at 31 March 2011.
#2011 63 A 31 B BARAELL ) -

2. Acquisition agreement for the project was entered into on January 2010.
20104 1 AR IS RARIEE -
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HONG LONG

Total leasable area
A EEE 116,228m”

359,888m”°

Meizhou/
Xingning
Total GFA of land reserve AN RE
TR EAREEE
1,529,894m”

600,395m”

2

Property development

angjiakou, Hebei
- OAERRA

LE L

74,608m>

Tiexi District,
Shenyang
. EREAEE

378,726m”

nhui Province,

- Chaohu City
RREENT

116,277m?



Business Scope 2 Al ¥ 42 #E

Baorum Oruament
Materials Mall
B AR

Harbour City
REEER

Hong Long Plaza
BIERES

Pinghu Project
FHAER

Hong Long
Century Plaza
YRR 4D S5

Zirui Garden

RinfEE

Pinghu Project
FHER

Ningjiang Uptown
Phase 1
BETHAEE 158

Ningjiang Uptown
Phase 2
ETHHE2H

Grace Garden

BEREE

Xiang Jiang City
EILEH

Residential Residential

project project
on parcel no.3 on parcel no.4
IR IREEIEE 43R EEER

Chaohu
Zhongmiao
Holiday
Watery Town
3 g
B AKE




Properties Portfolio Overview ¥4 S 11 E

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS
COMPLETED PROJECTS

Saleable Interest
Site area GFA (m?) area  Commencement/ attributable
Project name Place (m?) Residential Shop Office Hotel  Others" Total (m3)  completion date to the Group
Harbor City Shenzhen 19,822 61,252 14,959 - - 19,366 95,577 76,211 2002/Q2-2003/Q3 100%
Hong Long Plaza Shenzhen 19,832 72,035 64,397 - - 36,198 172,630 136,432 2005/Q1—2006/Q4 100%
Hong Long High Technology Industrial Park ~ Shenzhen 119,326 - - - - 237,939 237,939 237,939 2005/Q2-2006/Q4 100%
Grace Garden Meizhou 5,570 30,804 1,468 - - 1,188 33,460 32,747 2007/Q4-2009/Q4 100%
Hong Long Century Plaza Shenzhen N/A 7,454 12,664 52,400 - 12,230 84,748 72,618 2008/Q2—2010/Q4 100%
171,545 93,488 52,400 - 306921 624,354 555,847
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/TO BE DEVELOPED
Saleable Interest
Site area GFA (m?) area  Commencement/ attributable
Project name Place (m?) Residential Shop Office Hotel  Others" Total (m?)  completion date to the Group
Yinghua Project® Shenzhen 9,237 48,180 6,980 - - 2,790 57,950 55,160 2011/Q4-2012/Q4 100%
Zirui Garden Shenzhen 43538 90,015 8,002 - - 36,732 134749 98,017  2008/Q1-2012/Q4 100%
Huaxing Plaza Shenzhen 50,639 151,677 26,070 - - 4,550 182,297 177,747 2010/Q2—-2013/Q4 100%
Ningjiang Uptown Phase 1 Xingning 38,827 82,415 6,236 - - 6,578 95,229 88,651 2007/Q3-2014/Q2 100%
Ningjiang Uptown Phase 2 Xingning 186,908 531,138 11,529 - - - 542,667 542,667  2011/Q1-2016/02 100%
Bauhinia Garden® Xingning 28,526 75,500 8,500 - - 1,000 85,000 84,000 2011/Q4-2012/Q4 100%
Xiang Jiang City Zhangjiakou 152,603 157,515 9,661 40,000 - 4,780 211,956 208,576 2007/03-2012/Q4 100%
Tiexi New City Shenyang 153496 156,748 39,225 129217 53,386 150 378,726 378,576 2010/Q2—2015/Q4 100%
Chaohu Zhongmiao Holiday Watery Town  Chaohu 122,636 102,777 10,500 - - 3000 116,277 113,277 2010/Q2—-2013/Q2 100%
786,410 1,395,965 126,703 169,217 53,386 59,580 1,804,851 1,746,671
PROPERTY LEASING BUSINESS
100% owned
by the Group
Leaseable area
Project name Place (m?)
Harbor City Shenzhen 3,136
Hong Long Plaza Shenzhen 64,397
Baorun Ornament Materials Mall Shenzhen 7,653
75,186
PROPERTY FOR OWN USE
100% owned
by the Group
Useable area
Project name Place (m?2)
8/F, Hong Long Building? Shenzhen 748
(1) Includes club house and car parking spaces.

(2) Properties disposed after the reporting period.

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G R A A
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Properties Portfolio Overview ¥4 S E

ELEES
ExEKEHR
1HEE BEEE(m) THEER 1/ s
BEER W (m2) £z mE  B7E EE R ait (m2) RIBH FricEs
HEED il 19822 61262 14,959 - - 19366 95577 76,211 2002/02-2003/Q3 100%
BERS 3l 19832 72035 64,397 - - 36198 172630 136,432 2005/Q1-2006/Q4 100%
BERNRIZE il 119,326 - - - - 237939 237,939 237,939 2005/Q2—2006/Q4 100%
BELE & 5570 30,804 1,468 - - 1188 33,460 32,747 2007/Q4-2009/Q4 100%
BEELES i ki 7454 12664 52,400 - 12230 84748 72,518 2008/02-2010/Q4 100%
171645 93488 52400 - 306921 624,354 556,847
1ERI% 13RI EE
1HEE BEEE(m) THEER 1/ s

BEER W (m2) £z mE  B7E EE R ait (m2) RIBH FricEs
HEFERC 3l 9237 48180 6,980 - - 2790 57950 55,160 2011/Q4-2012/Q4 100%
*“%%El F 43538 90,015 8,002 - - 36732 134749 98,017 2008/Q1-2012/Q4 100%

3l 50,639 151677 26,070 - - 4550 182,297 177,747 2010/02-2013/Q4 100%

= 38827 82415 6,236 - - 6578 95229 88,651 2007/Q3-2014/Q2 100%

fz 186,908 531,138 11529 - - - 542,667 542,667 2011/Q1-2016/Q2 100%
%“m@b fE 2526 75500 8,500 - - 1,000 85,000 84,000 2011/Q4—2012/Q4 100%
B4R FZ0 162,603 157515 9,661 40,000 - 4780 211,95 208576 2007/Q3-2012/Q4 100%
ARHEER 25 163496 166748 39226 129217 53,386 160 378,726 378576 2010/02—2015/Q4 100%
LR BRAKE EY:i 122,636 102777 10,500 - - 3000 116,277 113,277 2010/Q2-2013/Q2 100%

786,410 1,395,965 126,703 169,217 53,386 59,580 1,804,851 1,746,671

BEMERE
AEEG
100% s
A A E R
BEERE ih 24 (m?)
BEBE w 3,136
TRE ES sl 64,397
ERE MBI Ll 7,653
75,186
B AW
REEE
100% #E
o AEE
BEEE 1t B (m?)
BERESEY Eell 748
(1)  EERFHANEEM -
(2) BRJ|ESHBLEE-
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Group Financial Summary & B B i =

RESULTS B
For the year ended 31 December
HZE12A31BILLFE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT AREBTRT ARETT ARETT
Turnover SR 819,375 362,369 119,628 411,677 521,040
Net increase in fair value of TREMENAR

investment properties Epepilipes- ] 208,415 56,830 62,120 180,352 566,343

(Loss)/Profit from operations
Net change in fair value of derivative
financial instruments

Finance costs

Gain on bargain purchase in
respect of business combination

Gain of disposal of subsidiaries

Profit before tax
Income tax

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to owners
of the Company

g (B518) g F

ITEZ BT A
RAENEE
HER

BRARBAGH
AERERGS

o5 R B as

B A% A A
PS5

AR i )

ZA/NIE 2N
e A

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS

(118,689) 172,541 122,290 486,196 927,783

15,977 (19,994) 58,533 (28,182) 432
(160,934) (87,843) (90,227) (55,091) (23,170)
123,979 = = = =
200,801 = = = =
61,134 64,704 90,596 402,923 905,045
(28,455) (33,497) (87,236)  (152,421)  (206,779)
32,679 31,207 3,360 250,502 698,266
37,609 32,699 3,546 250,685 698,969

B - RUE KD BUBR R R

Non-current assets
Current assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Non-controlling interests

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

FEREEE
mEEE
mEaE
FERBAE
ESRl g

ZA/NCIE 2SN
FEfE s

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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At 31 December
M12A31H
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARETT

1,889,099 1,436,304 1,368,908 1,282,002 1,010,645
2,811,982 3,120,386 2,455,402 2,250,053 738,829
(1,523,929) (1,210,385) (1,255,575) (822,079) (818,239)
(1,400,926) (1,625,468) (908,932) (1,070,250) (86,812)

(995) (2,732) (13,082) (12,268) (23,091)

1,775,231 1,718,105 1,646,721 1,627,458 821,332




Chairman’s Statement FER %

The board of directors (“Board”) of Hong Long Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is pleased to announce the consolidated results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as “Hong Long” or the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2010.

RESULTS

The turnover and gross profit, before sales return of properties sold, for
the year were RMB 1,132.90 million and RMB 268.81 million respectively,
representing a substantial increase of 212.64% and 207.33% compared
to the previous year. After offset the effect from sales return of properties
sold, the turnover and gross loss for the year were RMB 819.38 million and
RMB 16.94 million respectively, representing an increase of 126.12% and
a decrease of 119.36% compared to the previous year. Profit attributable
to owners of the Company surged 15.02% compared to that of the
previous year to approximately RMB 37.61 million. Basic earnings per
share was RMB 3.11 cents, representing a decrease of 0.96% compared
to the previous year.

DIVIDEND

As the Group has reached its 10th anniversary of establishment and the
3rd anniversary of listing, a special dividend of HK$0.15 per ordinary share
was declared on 5 February 2010 as a token of thanks to the continuous
support and trust given by the shareholders. Relevant cash and scrip
dividends in lieu of cash at HK$1.29 per share have been distributed to
the shareholders on 31 March 2010. The Board do not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009:
nil). The Group will formulate appropriate dividend policy in accordance
with the development needs in the future.

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Group has a remarkable year in 2010. We (1) completed and
commenced selling the office units in Hong Long Century Plaza; (2)
disposed two projects, namely Urban Upstream Landscape Villa and Jade
Hill City; and (3) acquired a project in Chaohu City, Anhui Province.

During 2010, the economy of China grew steadily at a relatively rapid
pace, recording a GDP growth rate of 10.3% year-on-year. As for the real
estate sector, in addressing the rapid rise in property prices of some cities,
the central government promulgated and implemented various macro-
policies of regulatory control including the “New 10 State Rules” by the
State Council, speeding up the introduction of property tax and suspending
mortgage loan for third home buyers. However, given the current stage
of economic development, the momentum of urbanisation and the
demographic structure of China, it is expected that the demand for housing
will remain strong. Therefore, in a backdrop of regulatory macro-policies
and an accelerated consolidation in the sector in 2011, we maintain a
proactive attitude and actively prepare for opportunities that arises.

BEERARAR(TARANDESG(ES
) MARHBEARRRENB AR (HEL 5B
B lsk [ARER)EE20105E12 A31 BILEE
BARE 24 -

ES

AEEEEEREFNCRFAMEHEERE) H
Bl A ANRKE1,132.90 5 8 L M A K ¥ 268.81
BET REFEDRKREEMN212.64% &
207.33% ° LEEWEIFERLHFERE -
AEEEXEEREFNSAARIES19.38H
ETNARKI6UBEET PR LFEHER
126.12% K T F£119.36 % ° NAGIHA AENL
HRE EEEARLEAH15.02% EHNBARE
3761 HET - BREXRBNAAREI 1S -
BEFERD0.96% °

Ji 8

BEAEERLHEFREMZRAT - BRI®
RER—BARNEZFNEE  EFER20105F
2AHAARERFRREEFREMAR0.15HE
T BARERAEBR1.29B TINENBRER
BEEBER2010F3A31ADRGESRE - BEFE
TEZREEBEE2010F12A31BILFEE
ZAREARR B (20094 : £8) - AEE S E ERK
HERTZMHIEEEMNKEBUR

S 75 ol J

REBE20105EE MENER - TE2B%E(1)
BEELESRIURBEERTE 2 HE
W ILAMZER IR MIEIRE ¢ F1(3) WA 7
R EATHIRE -

20104 @ FREIEERKART FRBERER
EFEANLERERLLER103% FHET
- SHEMBORTEEBRERAR - PREK
FREMIEATT T B ERE AR - EP a1
B TS B B A 0 [T B+ 6] AR INR B IR B
BOEBMEFEHEIEFNERERS - R
- ER B AR B SRR - W
BIARARAERE - BEBERETRIMDSEL -
It 2011 FERERBFREBER TR I
RESMIRET - HAAVDIBIEBAEE K Maf D
B AR -
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Chairman’s Statement FE#R %

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to bear its social responsibility and contribute
to the weak and poor. The employees of the Group have actively
participated in various charity activities involving cultural education,
disaster relief, environmental protection, health and hygiene, as well as
public transportation of the municipal. The Group will continue to promote
our corporate culture of dedicating sincerity and love to the community
internally, and bear our related social responsibility.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

After a decade of stable development, Hong Long still relies on the trust
and support of the shareholders, business partners and all the staff in
facing the challenges ahead. On behalf of the Board, | would like to express
the sincere thanks to all parties concerned.

ZENG Yunshu
Chairman
31 March 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis & & 513 &2 04T

OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

1. Turnover increased by 126.12% to approximately RMB819.38
million.

2. Profit attributable to owners of the Company increased by 15.02%
to approximately RMB37.61 million.

3. Basic earnings per share decreased by 0.96% to RMB3.11 cents.

4. Equity attributable to the owners of the Company were up 3.32%
to approximately RMB1,775.23 million. Net assets per share is
RMB1.44.

5. At 31 December 2010, net debt-to-equity ratio was 125.31%
increased 11.58% when compared with last year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover and gross (loss)/profit: Turnover comprises of sales
proceeds of properties delivered and property leasing income. The
substantial increase in turnover was mainly due to the sales of office
units approximately 42,000m? gross floor area (“GFA") in Hong Long
Century Plaza but partially offset by the sales return of properties sold of
approximately RMB313,521,000 in Hong Long Plaza. The gross loss in
2010 was due to the sales return of Hong Long Plaza, where the gross
profit was higher than that of our sales in the same period.

Other net (expense)/income: The decrease in 2010 was mainly due
to the non recurrent gain of approximately RMB73,128,000 on the
repurchase of Senior Note recorded in 2009.

Other income: The decrease in 2010 was mainly due to the reversal
of impairment losses on loans and advances of approximately
RMB15,920,000 in 2009 and no such income was recorded during this
reporting period.

Selling and distribution expenses: The increase in 2010 was mainly due
to the advertising and promotion expenses incurred for sales of Hong Long
Century Plaza.

General and administrative expenses: The increase in 2010 was mainly
due to the increase in staff costs and professional fee to cope with the
Group’s expansion and various projects on hands.

B e B s A

EHEEILR126.12% 24 AR 819.38

BEJTT°

—_

2. ARAEBARMERAER15.02% E4)
AR¥E3761HET -

3. BREARZFKL0.96%FEARKI1I

PaN

N)

4,  ARAEBABMGLEZR EFA3.32%E4
ARM1,77523B8 8T - BIREEFE
BARE1 4470

5. R2010%12A31H @ BEHEE L E
B125.31% * 8 EFIBHN11.58% °

$4 25 o]

EEBREE) M BEXEEEINDE
HEEMESREMERERA - EEEAEIE
e TEZHREEBEM 4L EIS442,000m?2
EEER((ZEmEDNETEBM KA
$HEIRBIA ARYS13,521,0007CFTE8 0 K8 ©
2010 F BB VAR BREESHERBAMB - &
FEHEHRAHABEEEFE -

Hith (), WEFEE - R2010FRPEEH
R 2009 FHEEHB A RE 2 IEEEHIREHAR
#73,128,000 JTTATEK -

HiU A @ R2010F > EEHK2009FER
2 2R AR E B B 49 A R 5 15,920,000 7T+ 1M
SR 25 B R AR RS UL A ©

HERDHEM 1 N 2010 FAE INEBHNE
[E AR ESETTES REHEB I -

—MRITHER : R2010FENEZHR AR
EASEREERRATRAEEEHRE TAAR
BEBIENATE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis &I & 513 &2 24T

FINANCIAL REVIEW (ConT’D)

Other operating expenses: The increase in 2010 was mainly due
to the impairment losses and written off on other receivables of
RMB205,295,000.

Net increase in fair value of investment properties: It is mainly due
to the increase in fair value of retail spaces added under the sales return
disclosed above and the prevailing market conditions.

Net change in fair value of derivative financial instruments: In
September 2007, the Company issued Senior Note with warrants.
The change in fair value, as assessed by independent valuer, has been
recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. It is a
non-cash item.

Finance costs: The increase in 2010 was mainly due to (i) the increase in
borrowings to cope with the Group's expansion and various projects, (ii)
the early absorption of approximately RMB45,093,000 due to the purchase
of Senior Note in 2010 before its maturity in late 2012 and (iii) the early
absorption of approximately RMB65,821,000 due to the early settlement
of borrowings in 2010 before its maturity in late 2011.

Gain on bargain purchase in respect of business combination: It was
related to the gain on acquisition of a former subsidiary holding Dayawan
Jade Hill project.

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: It was mainly related to the disposal of
subsidiaries holding Huizhou Urban Upstream Landscape Villa project and
the right to acquire certain office units in Tower A of Hong Long Century
Plaza respectively.

Income tax: The decrease in tax was mainly due to the overprovision of
Land Appreciation Tax of approximately RMB151,610,000 for the sales
return of properties sold.

SEGMENT ANALYSIS

While principally engaged in the development of middle to high range
residential and commercial properties in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"), the Group expects stronger recurrent cash flow
from commercial properties leasing in the future. In 2010, property
development income and property leasing income accounted for
approximately 91.88% and 8.12% respectively.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

Bank and cash balances and pledged deposits as at 31 December 2010
amounted to approximately RMB102.22 million (31 December 2009:
RMB290.52 million) which including RMB39.98 million, US$9.17 million,
and HK$1.76 million.

The Group had total borrowings of approximately RMB1,935.43 million
as at 31 December 2010 (31 December 2009: RMB1,769.63 million),
RMB823.23 million was repayable within one year, RMB806.60 million
was repayable after one year but within five years and RMB305.60 million
was repayable more than five years. The Group's borrowings carried
interest at fixed or floating interest rates. The Group's total bank and other
borrowings divided by total assets as at 31 December 2010 was 41.17%
(31 December 2009: 38.84%).

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had current assets of approximately
RMB2,811.98 million (31 December 2009: RMB3,120.39 million) and
current liabilities of approximately RMB1,523.93 million (31 December
2009: RMB1,210.39 million).

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2010, bank and other borrowings of approximately
RMB1,125.15 million were secured by certain investment properties,
inventories and pledged deposits of the Group of approximately
RMB1,614.10 million, RMB682.69 million and RMB1.08 million
respectively.

SENIOR NOTE

For the details of Senior Note, please refer to note 30(b) to the financial
statements.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

The Group’'s monetary assets, loans and transactions are principally
denominated in Renminbi. Except for borrowings with an aggregate
amount of US$42.00 million, all of the Group's borrowings are
denominated in Renminbi. The Group did not engage in any derivative
activities and did not commit to any financial instruments to hedge its
balance sheet exposure as at 31 December 2010.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

For the details of contingent liabilities, please refer to the note 37 to the
financial statements.

TREASURY POLICIES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and funding
policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that are
directly related to the underlying business of the Group.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had a staff force of approximately 430
employees. Of this, most were stationed in the PRC. The remuneration
of employees was in line with the market trend and commensurable to
the level of pay in the industry. Remuneration of the Group’s employees
includes basic salaries, bonuses and long-term incentives (such as pre-IPO
Share Options and Share Option Scheme). Total staff costs incurred for the
year 2010 before capitalisation was approximately RMB45.01 million.

FINAL DIVIDEND

A special dividend of HK$0.15 per ordinary share was declared on 5
February 2010 and was recognised as distribution on 31 March 2010.

The Board do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
2010 (2009: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the development of middle to high end
residential and commercial properties as well as leasing of commercial
properties in Guangdong, Hebei, Liaoning and Anhui Provinces, the PRC.

In 2010, the Group extended its presence to Shenyang, Liaoning Province.
The expansion signifies the Group's confidence in second tier cities in the
PRC where there is strong demand for better living environment.

At 31 December 2010, the Group's total leasable GFA is approximately
90,000m?. We will continues to enhance our investment properties
portfolio to take advantage of the healthy cash flows from property leasing
segment.

Summary of development and status of existing projects are reported in
the following paragraphs.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (ConT'D)

PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Hong Long Century Plaza: The project comprises of office and residential
units of approximately 85,000m? GFA located at the prime location in
Luohu district, Shenzhen. In April 2010, the Group launched pre-sales of
the office units and was well received by the market. The Group has sold
office units of approximately 42,000m? GFA during the year of 2010.

Grace Garden: The project, located at Meizhou, was developed into 2
residential blocks and retail shops with a total GFA of approximately
33,000m?. The Group has nearly sold out all units of this project since pre-
sales commenced in June 2008.

Ningjiang Uptown: Phase 1 of the project which comprises of 9 residential
blocks and retail shops with a total GFA of approximately 95,000m?, and
approximately 39,000m? was sold out since pre-sales started in October
2008. The Group commenced the construction of phase 2 in 2010.

Xiang Jiang City: Xiang Jiang City, Zhangjiakou is a project under
development (a residential and commercial complex of approximately
212,000m? GFA) when acquired by the Group. Phase 1 of the project is
almost sold out and phase Il is in planning stage.

Zirui Garden: Zirui Garden in Buji County, Shenzhen consists of premier
villa, residential units and retail shops with planned GFA of approximately
135,000m?. The project is under construction with pre-sale and delivery in
phases scheduled for 2011 onwards.

NEew proJECTS IN 2010

Huaxing Plaza: In January 2010, the Group entered into an acquisition
agreement for the project at Pinghu Street, Longgang of Shenzhen. It is a
residential and commercial complex with GFA of approximately 151,000m?
and 26,000m? respectively. Construction commenced in 2010.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CoNT’D)

NEew proJecTs IN 2010 (ConT'D)

Shenyang Project: In January 2010, the Group entered into a cooperative
framework agreement with the Management Committee of Shenyang
Economic and Technological Development Zone of Liaoning Province
("Management Committee”), PRC for the construction of Shenyang Tiexi
Industrial New City. Subject to further discussion with the Management
Committee, the Group will jointly develop (1) Binshui Liwan Project (/&
JKEEEIAH), which will be developed into a high-end residential and
commercial integrated community, including golf course, commercial
ancillary facilities, international medical institution, international
educational institution (kindergarten, primary school and middle school)
and landscape belt, of which 75 mu will be used for commercial and public
services facilities and 800 mu for residential developments, with total
investment of approximately RMB4 billion; (2) Core Area Project of the
Management Committee, including international exhibition centre, five-
star hotel, headquarters economy building of which the services building
of Shenyang Economic and Technological Development Zone will be
located, and adjacent residential developments, with total investment of
approximately RMB1 billion; and (3) two parties will jointly establish Tiexi
Industrial New City Investment Company (BiFAE X£FHIKE R T)
which the Group shall hold a 40% equity interest. In April 2010, we have
completed the tendering procedures for purchasing the land lot number 4
with planned GFA of approximately 196,000m?.

Chaohu Project: In November 2010, the Group entered into an agreement
for the purchase of 100% equity in a project company holding land sites of
approximately 122,000m? and planned GFA of approximately 116,000m?
in Zhongmiao town, Chaohu City, Anhui Province. The Group planned
to commence pre-sale of the residential project in phases from 2011
onwards.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (ConT'D)

DiISPOSAL OF PROJECTS/ASSETS

The Group disposed of certain projects and assets in 2010 and subsequent
to the reporting period. We considered these are good opportunities
for us to realise these investments at reasonable prices and profit. In
addition, we will no longer be required to provide further resources for
these investments, so that the Group may relocate its resources to other
investments which may generate higher returns for the Group.

The Group disposed of two properties under development projects in
2010:

1) Urban Upstream Landscape Villa: The total site area and planned
GFA is approximately 500,000m? and 863,000m? respectively, of
which, the site area and planned GFA of phase 1 is approximately
121,000m? and 164,000m? respectively.

2) Jade Hill project: In April 2010, the Group acquired a 52% equity
interest in the Dayawan project company. Jade Hill project is
located in the western district of Guangdong Dayawan Economic
and Technology Development Zone. It is a complex comprising a
hotel and middle to high end residential and commercial units with
a planned of about 1,200,000m? GFA.

The Group has disposed of the following projects under negotiation in
March 2011.

1) a wholly owned subsidiary which shall develop urban regeneration
projects at Guangchang North Street, Yuanling District and two

other sites in Shenzhen at a consideration of RMB20,800,000.

2) a wholly owned subsidiary which shall develop Yinghua project at a
consideration of RMB28,000,000.

3) a 90% owned subsidiary which shall develop Dongguan Qiaotou
project at a consideration of RMB4,000,000.

The Group has disposed of the following assets in March 2011.

1) the land to be developed for Bauhinia Garden project at a
consideration of RMB4,550,000.

2) an office unit approximately 800m? at Shenzhen at a consideration
of approximately RMB3,734,000.
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Biographical Details of Directors % 2 B F

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zeng Yunshu, aged 58, is the chairman, an executive director,
a member of the remuneration committee of the Company and the
president of Hong Long Property Group Company Limited (“Hong
Long Property”). Mr. Zeng is founder of Hong Long Property, the major
operating subsidiary of the Group. He is responsible for determining the
overall business strategies, making investment decisions and determining
the overall business management direction of the Group. Prior to the
establishment of the Group, Mr. Zeng worked in the Xingning City and
Meizhou municipal governments from 1981 to 1990. Mr. Zeng worked in
Shenzhen Petrochemical Industry (Group) Co. Ltd. from 1991. Mr. Zeng
was awarded the title of “Outstanding Contributor” for the development
of Xingning’'s economy. Mr. Zeng has more than 17 years experience in the
development and management of properties since 1993. Currently, He is
also a standing committee member of the People’s Political Consultative
Committee of Meizhou, Guangdong Province, and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. He is a director of Grand Prosperity Limited
("Grand Prosperity”), a controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Zeng
retired by rotation and was re-elected in 2009 annual general meeting
pursuant to the Company's articles of association. The Company has
entered into a service contract with Mr. Zeng for a term of 3 years since
the end of the 2009 annual general meeting. According to the articles of
association of the Company, Mr. Zeng holds office until the forthcoming
general meeting and, being eligible, for re-election in the same general
meeting.

Mr. Zhang Yiyan, aged 59, joined the Company in October 2008 as the
vice-chairman, co-president, an executive director and the chairman of
board of supervisors of Hong Long Property. Mr. Zhang is a postgraduate
of economic studies, a senior accountant, and qualified as a certified public
accountant of the PRC in 1994. Mr. Zhang worked in various enterprises
and government departments in Xingning City, Guangdong Province from
1979 to 1989; and vice director of the general inspection office for taxation
and finance of Shenzhen, assistant to chief and office director of Shenzhen
Finance Bureau, director of general affair division and director of account
division of Shenzhen Finance Bureau since 1989. Beginning from 2001,
Mr. Zhang has acted as the Party secretary, member of Party committee
and section head of disciplinary section of the Bureau, overseeing duties
such as the supervision and review of finance matters. Mr. Zhang has
over 40 years experience in administration corporate management and
financial and accounting management. Mr. Zhang retired and was re-
elected in 2009 annual general meeting pursuant to the Company’s
articles of association. The Company has entered into a service contract
with Mr. Zhang for a term of 3 years since the end of the 2009 annual
general meeting. According to the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. Zhang holds office until the forthcoming general meeting and, being
eligible, for election in the same general meeting.
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Biographical Details of Directors 2% 2 B F

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (ConT’p)

Ms. Ye Qingdong, aged 44, is vice president and an executive director
of the Company and vice president in Hong Long Property. She joined
the Company in 2001. She is responsible for overseeing the Group's
properties development and operation. Ms. Ye graduated from Xinjiang
Engineering Institute (¥738 TZ5%) in 1988 with a degree in engineering
majoring in industrial and civil architecture. Ms. Ye also completed the
Executive MBA Program of Shanghai University of Finance and Economic
in 2007. Before joining the Group, Ms. Ye had worked in ¥758 B4 47 4%
25167 (Xinjiang Textile Design College) and FrigthE (@) RIDERA
7] (COFCO Property (Group) Joint Stock Company Limited), Ms. Ye has
over 13 years of experience in architecture and structural design, project
assessment as well as development. Ms. Ye was named 2003424150
EHESRLLIEAN" (The best 50 Senior Manager of Shenzhen Property for
Year 2003) in 2003. Ms. Ye retired by rotation and was re-elected in 2010
annual general meeting pursuant to the Company's articles of association.
The Company has entered into a service contract with Ms. Ye for a term
of 3 years since the end of the 2010 annual general meeting but subject
to retirement by rotation and, being eligible, re-election in accordance with
the Company'’s articles of association.

Mr. Ouyang Junxin, aged 41, is an executive director of the Company.
Mr. Ouyang joined the Group in 2000. Mr. Ouyang graduated from ZB
M s EHE K2 E 26T (the Business and Trade School of Huanghe
Science and Technology University in Zhengzhou City) in 1993 specialising
in industrial economic management. He has more than 16 years
experience in finance and accounting management. Mr. Ouyang retired
by rotation and was re-elected in 2010 annual general meeting pursuant
to the Company'’s articles of association. The Company has entered into
a service contract with Mr. Ouyang for a term of 3 years since the end of
the 2010 annual general meeting but subject to retirement by rotation and,
being eligible, re-election in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association.
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Biographical Details of Directors % 2 B F

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (ConT’p)

Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar, aged 47, joined the Company in September
2010 as executive director. Mr. Lee obtained a Professional Diploma
in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) in 1985 and a Bachelor of Arts in Business
Studies from the City Polytechnic of Hong Kong (now known as the
City University of Hong Kong) in 1994. Mr. Lee had worked in the Inland
Revenue Department for over 15 years after his graduation. In 2000,
Mr. Lee joined Ernst and Young, an international accounting firm, as a
senior manager. Mr. Lee later obtained a Master degree in International
Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in 2001. Mr. Lee was
an executive director of Tanrich Financial Holdings Limited (Stock code:
00812), a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”), from 1 November 2004 to 29
June 2005. Mr. Lee was also an executive director of Info Communication
Holdings Limited, a company (now renamed as Sage International Group
Limited) (Stock code: 08082) listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange, from 23 November 2007 to 1 September 2010. Mr.
Lee has been the executive director of Sun International Group Limited
(Stock code: 08029), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange since 14 August 2006. Mr. Lee is experienced in
corporate management and internal control. Mr. Lee is a fellow member
of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. In addition, Mr. Lee is
a member of the Society of Registered Financial Planners. There is no
service contract between the Company and Mr. Lee. According to the
articles of association of the Company, Mr. Lee holds office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and shall be eligible
for re-election in the same general meeting.

Mr. Chan Ting Lai, aged 62, joined the Company in October 2010
as executive director. Mr. Chan is a director of New Waly Interior
Products (HK) Limited and Keybase Project Management Limited, and is
experienced in corporate operation and strategic management. There is
no service contract between the Company and Mr. Chan. According to
the articles of association of the Company, Mr. Chan holds office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and shall be eligible
for re-election in the same general meeting.

Ms. Yeung So Mui, aged 34, joined the Company in October 2010 as
executive director. Ms. Yeung is the founder and a director of Sparkle
Life Charity Fund Limited. Ms. Yeung is experienced in corporate
management. There is no service contract between the Company and Ms.
Yeung. According to the articles of association of the Company, Ms. Yeung
holds office until the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and shall be eligible for re-election in the same general meeting.
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Biographical Details of Directors 2% 2 B F

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (ConT’p)

Ms. Huang Ling, aged 35, joined the Company in January 2011 as
executive director. Ms. Huang obtained a Bachelor of Accounting from
Guangdong University of Foreign Studies in 1997. Between 1997 and
2000, Ms. Huang was employed in the International Business Department
of Guangdong Development Bank, Guangzhou Branch (BRZEEIEITE
M7 TEIRR E555). From 2000 to 2010, Ms. Huang was employed in
Zhongnan Property Development Group (FEEHZES%E) (“Zhongnan
Group”), responsible for the capital management of the Zhongnan
Group. Ms. Huang was an executive director of Zhuguang Holdings
Group Company Limited (formerly known as Nam Fong International
Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 01176), a company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from 7 May 2003 to 29
September 2009. In November 2010, Ms. Huang joined the Group and was
responsible for capital management. Ms. Huang is experienced in capital
management. There is no service contract between the Company and
Ms. Huang. According to the articles of association of the Company, Ms.
Huang holds office until the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company and shall be eligible for re-election in the same general meeting.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Yijun, aged 55, joined the Company in December 2009 as
the vice chairman, chief executive officer and an executive director and
the chief executive officer and a director in Hong Long Property. Mr.
Zhang re-designated as non-executive director on 31 January 2011. Mr.
Zhang graduated from South China Normal University in China. Mr. Zhang
is now a senior economist and holds a degree of EMBA from Shanghai
Jiao Tong University. He studied corporate management and real estate
management in Japan with 20-year work experiences in investment and
corporate management. He was previously, the commissioner of Bureau
of Supervision of the Shenzhen Municipal Government, the chairman
and the president of Shenzhen Construction and Investment Holdings
Company Limited and an executive director and chief executive officer of
Shenzhen Investment Limited (Stock Code: 00604). Mr. Zhang resigned
as an executive director and the chief executive officer of Shenzhen
Investment Limited on 1 December 2009 and a non-executive director of
Coastal Greenland Limited (stock code: 01124) on 7 December 2009 and
Road King Infrastructure Limited (stock code: 1098) on 11 December 2009,
all of which are companies listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Zhang has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of 3 years. Since the end
of 2010 annual general meeting but subject to retirement by rotation and,
being eligible, for re-election in accordance with the Company's article of
association.

WTESF (5)

BR L 3555 7201161 AIMAKRRRE
HITES - BLTN1997 FHEBERINEIE
KEB@ BB B4 o 1997 F £ 2000 F H
M B TEBRRERERBITEMD>TER
55T - R2000F 22010 8 - B T8
REEEtHESEE((FEER])  aETEE
B ERER - B4 H2003F5H87H%E2009
FOR29BEAHNIEREEER AR (ATEE
FEBRERAER AR (RMOAS - 01176) « H
BB AT ER ET) ZITEE - 12010
F1A EXTNARKEVEEEARAESR -
ERTREAEEBFERELENEH - AR
AIEBEZTRAFTRBEEL - RIEAAAMA
BER BERIAHEARAEERRAEFK
AL EAREERRAG LAAKERE
Fo

FEAfTHESR

REHEE 655 0 A20094F 12 AMIAARR
Al EEZRAEE BELWNTES  BE
WEAHRES - RELEN2011F1H31H
ATEIERNTES - RAELEZERPHERA
AL AERLER  #ELERBAES
HEBABIHERELTSM (EMBA) o i Eikh
ARBEEEEERTHEETE  EREARDE
EESHTEAR20FMEER - FRERITE
ZRBR AIMEIREZRERARES
BEFFHBE - FINERERA A (BRMHARK
00604) BFFHNITES ° RILEMR 20094 12
A1BEERIIERBR AR ZHITES RER
B 7% - R 2009F 12 A7 HFI20094F 12 A 11
HoOREELSE&eREARA R (RHRR :
01124) MESHERER A E (RHMRSE : 1098)
ZIEMITESMTY - FASEMARYARB LT
AR - RAEADEADTN 2010 FREAF K
CERERBEHHE=FNREAH - EERE
AARBHBERRFERINA EIRERET -

Hong Long Holdings Limited 38R E R A =
Annual Report 2010 —Z—ZFF 3R

23



24

Biographical Details of Directors % 2 B F

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Li Jun, aged 49, joined the Company in January 2007 as an
independent non-executive director, the chairman of the remuneration
committee and the member of the audit committee and the nomination
committee, respectively. Dr. Li has extensive experience in enterprise
management and investment risk control. Dr. Li is currently a non-
executive director of Global Flex Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00471)
and an independent non-executive director of Zhejiang Glass Company,
Limited (Stock Code: 00739) respectively, he resigned an executive
director of Superb Summit International Timber Company Limited (Stock
Code: 01228) on February 2009, all of the companies are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Dr. Li has entered into a service contract with
the Company until the forthcoming annual general meeting and shall be
eligible for re-election in the same general meeting in accordance with the
Company's articles of association.

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam, aged 42, joined the Company in January 2007 as
an independent non-executive director, the chairman of audit committee,
a member of the remuneration committee and nomination committee.
Mr. Cheung is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and CPA Australia. Mr. Cheung obtained a Bachelor Degree in
Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong, a Master of Accounting
Degree from Curtin University of Technology, Perth, Australia and a
Master of Science (Investment Management) Degree in Finance from the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He is an independent
non-executive director of China Environmental Resources Group Limited
(formerly known as Benefun International Holdings Limited) (Stock Code:
01130), a Hong Kong listed company, since 4 July 2008. He was an
independent non-executive director of Mascotte Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 00136), a Hong Kong listed company, during the period from 9
March 2005 to 7 April 2008. Mr. Cheung currently works as the Corporate
Development Director for Profound Heavy Industrial Limited. Mr. Cheung
served at Deloitte Touche from 1991 to 1994, and he was the vice
president and executive vice president of Daiwa Securities and Japan Asia
Securities from 1994 to 2002 and 2002 to 2005 respectively. Mr. Cheung
also worked as the Corporate Finance Director of Grant Thornton from
2005 to 2008. Mr. Cheung has extensive experience in the accounting area
and capital market. Mr. Cheung has entered into a service contract with
the Company until the forthcoming annual general meeting and shall be
eligible for re-election in the same general meeting in accordance with the
Company's articles of association.
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Biographical Details of Directors 2% 2 B F

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(ConT’D)

Mr. Wang Fosong, aged 78, joined the Company in October 2008 as an
independent non-executive director, member of the audit committee and
the chairman of the nomination committee. He is an academician of the
Chinese Academy of Sciences and academician of the Third World Academy
of Sciences. He acted as director of Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry
of Chinese Academy of Sciences, vice director of the Chinese Academy
of Sciences, member of Presidium of the Chinese Academy of Sciences
Academic Divisions, chairman of Chemistry Division, vice chairman of China
Petroleum Society, vice chairman of Chinese Material Research Society. He is
currently the chief of the High Polymer Science Committee of China Chemical
Society, vice chairman of China Association of Senior Scientists and Technicians
and vice chairman of China International Culture Exchange Centre. Mr. Wang
was a member of the 7th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
a member of the 8th and 9th National People’s Congress Standing Committee
and the National People’s Congress Foreign Affairs Committee. He was
awarded with the National Scientific and Technological Progress Special Prize,
National Natural Science Award, International Award of the Society of High
Polymer Science, Japan and Science and Technology Advancement Award of
Ho Leung Ho Lee Foundation. Mr. Wang has entered into a service contract
with the Company until the forthcoming annual general meeting and shall be
eligible for re-election in the same general meeting in accordance with the
Company's articles of association.
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Biographical Details of Directors % 2 B F

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(ConT’D)

Mr. Li Wai Keung, aged 54, joined the Company in March 2010 as an
independent non-executive director and members of audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee. He graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and holds a master’s degree
in Business Administration from The University of East Asia, Macau,
currently known as the University of Macau. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Li has more than 32 years
of experience in financial management. Mr. Li is currently an executive
director and the financial controller of GDH Limited and also the financial
controller of Guangdong Holdings Limited (&R Z&4EM AR Q). He is
an independent non-executive director of Shenzhen Investment Limited
(stock code: 00604), Hans Energy Company Limited (stock code: 00554)
and China South City Holdings Limited (stock codes: 01668). Mr. Li is a
non-executive director of Guangdong Investment Limited (stock code:
00270) appointed by GDI on 30 May 2000. Mr. Li is a director of Shenzhen
City Airport (Group) Company Limited (RIIIT#45 (@) BRAR). He
is a member on the Council of the Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited.
He is also the vice chairman of the Financial and Accounting Affairs
Steering Committee of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association
(BEEPBECERSUSHEEELEE). Previously, Mr. Li had worked in the
subsidiaries of Henderson Land Development Company Limited (stock
code: 00012). He was a member of the Election Committee for 2007
HKSAR Chief Executive Election. Mr. Li has entered into a service contract
with the Company for one year. According to the articles of association
of the Company, Mr. Li holds office until the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company, thereafter, he will retire as an independent non-
executive director.
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Directors’ Report EE 2%

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) are pleased
to present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2010 are set out in
note 40 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 53.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2010 (2009: nil).

On the Group's 10th anniversary and the 3rd anniversary of its listing, a
special dividend of HK$0.15 per ordinary share was declared on 5 February
2010 as a token of thanks to the continuous support and trust given by the
shareholders. Relevant cash and scrip dividends in lieu of cash at HK$1.29
per share was distributed to the shareholders on 31 March 2010. The
Group will formulate appropriate dividend policy in accordance with the
development needs in the future.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB37,609,000 (2009: approximately RMB32,699,000) have been
transferred to reserves. Details of the movement in the reserves of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 56 and note 34(b) to the financial
statements respectively.

The Company's reserves available for distribution comprise share
premium, capital reserve and retained profits/accumulated losses.
The Company's reserves available for distribution to the shareholders
at 31 December 2010 were approximately RMB438,442,000 (2009:
RMB830,740,000).

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately RMB1,253,000.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the investment properties of the Group during the year are set
out in note 18 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers taken together accounted for
41.15% and 49.75% of the aggregate of the Group's total turnover before
sales return of properties sold for the year.

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers taken together accounted for
15.52% and 26.70% of the Group's total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors, their respective associates or, so far as the
Directors are aware, any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company has any interest in any of the said top
five customers and suppliers of the Group for the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

ExecuTive DIRECTORS:

Mr. ZENG Yunshu (Chairman)
Mr. ZHANG Yiyan

Ms. YE Qingdong

Mr. OUYANG Junxin

Mr. LEE Chi Shing Caesar
Mr. CHAN Ting Lai

Ms. YEUNG So Mui

Ms. HUANG Ling

Mr. HAN Qinchun

Mr. ZENG Sheng

(appointed on 30 September 2010)
(appointed on 4 October 2010)
(appointed on 5 October 2010)
(appointed on 5 January 2011)
(resigned on 19 January 2010)
(resigned on 14 January 2011)

Non-ExecuTivE DIRECTOR
Mr. ZHANG Yijun (re-designated on 31 January 2011)
INDEPENDENT NON-EXEcuTIVE DIRECTORS:

Dr. LI Jun

Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam

Mr. WANG Fosong

Mr. LI Wai Keung (appointed on 16 March 2010)
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Directors’ Report EE 2%

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the current Directors are set out on page 20 to
page 26 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND ROTATION

The appointment of each Directors is subject to retirement by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association. Each of the executive directors
(except for Mr. Lee Chi Shing, Caesar, Mr. Chan Ting Lai, Ms. Yeung So
Mui and Ms. Huang Ling) has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of 3 years commencing from their respective dates
of appointment approved by the Board or re-election in general meeting
pursuant to the Company’s articles of association. Each service contract
will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than six months’ notice
in writing served by either party. Each of the independent non-executive
directors (Dr. Li Jun, Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam, Mr. Wang Fosong and Mr.
Li Wai Keung), who has been appointed to hold office until the end of
the forthcoming general meeting, will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting save as Mr. Li Wai Keung. Mr.
Li will retire as an independent non-executive director at the end of the
forthcoming annual general meeting and will not offer himself for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar, Mr. Chan Ting Lai, Ms. Yeung So Mui and
Ms. Huang Ling (who were appointed during the year), Mr. Zeng
Yunshu and Mr. Zhang Yiyan will retire from the Board by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

Other than disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered or has
proposed to enter into any service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not expiring or determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of Directors’ emoluments on a named basis are set out in note 13
to financial statements.

R

REEFREEF AN EFRE20E26H °

S IR A B R

BREEZZEARBARTEBEERFERE
WAERBREE - SRTESR (FEMEE
R|IEELE - BEEBR T RFERZIHRIN) EA
REFIZAM=FNRBEH - RARF AR
ERAARAEZGEMEZ R RS ERMNK
BRAGEBEEECAMELER - SRBEH
B—EEN BEEA-SBELKLAEAZ
EUBAZIERIE - RBIUFRTEE(FREG
T RBMEL  ERREERFEBREL)N
THERERRBFAGERAL  BESR
fEfE R EEF R EIRE - LA EBNERER
RIBFAEG LBEREE EFRBELRIN -
FREBREERRBFASEREREEL
FRTEE-BETERERERRBEFAE L
TRBE(E -

REANBDEGEERT - TEREL, KR
Tk, BEBLLIRERZL (DHIRAFER
BRI REEREERREXEEANERER
RBFASHERE  ERSENAERLEER
ERE(E -

Br LR EE SN BEEREDHIMELRRF
AR E KB A RRT LA AR —F AR
B ORERERIN AR IEZ RIEEH

e

BRERDBEZEETHEFBHN Y B HRM
13 ¢

Hong Long Holdings Limited &&= RA R A 5
Annual Report 2010 —Z—ZFFF 3R

29



Directors’ Report EE 2R &

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive directors of their independence pursuant to
rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and both the Board and the nomination
committee considered all independent non-executive directors are
independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests of the Directors in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO")) (the “Associated Corporations”) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) were as follows:

LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY
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Name of Director EENE EARES Kikign DRI A &5 %
Mr. Zeng Yunshu BERELAE 3,773,023 - - - 3,773,023 0.31
Ms. Ye Qingdong EERTT 5,102,000’ - = = 5,102,000 041
Mr. Ouyang Junxin BTy 2,104,000’ - = = 2,104,000 0.17
Dr. LiJun FHET - - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.08
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam RERMELE - - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.08
Mr. Zhang Yijun? REHLE? 11,162,791 12,837,209 - - 24,000,000 1.95
Mr. Zeng Sheng® BESLES 380,000' - 334,652,000° - 335,032,000 27.22
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES (Cont’D)

Notes:
1. This represents interests held by the relevant Director as beneficial owner.

2. This represents (i) 11,162,791 shares held by Mr. Zhang Yijun and (ii)
12,837,209 shares held by his spouse.

3. This represents interests held by Mr. Zeng Sheng (resigned as Director on 14
January 2011) through Grand Prosperity Limited (“Grand Prosperity”), which
holds 334,652,000 shares of the Company. Mr. Zeng Sheng has 80% interest
in Grand Prosperity, he is therefore deemed to be interested in 334,652,000

shares of the Company.

4. This represents interests in options held by the relevant Director as a
beneficial owner to subscribe for the relevant underlying shares granted by
the Company under the Shares Option Scheme, details of which are set out

in the section headed " Share Option”.

* The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2010 (i.e. 1,230,671,384 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of the Directors
had any other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its Associated Corporations which
had been entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in
this report and in note 39 to the financial statements, no other contracts
of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

EHER A - MBS E SRR Z
sk (45)

AT -
1. IERARERERESRE ARA 2R -

2. ULHE (1) RR B R ERE 2 11,162,791 IR
R (i) R E BB E 2 12,837,209 AR 17 -

3. IR EBEE(R201MF1A14HEESE
%£)i%iBGrand Prosperity Limited ([Grand
Prosperity |)#78 2 #%5 + M Grand Prosperity
$58 334,652,000 I AN A A B o B ST A
A Grand Prosperity 2 80% ##z5 * AMiEE A
% 334,652,000 AR AR D 2 5

4. HERERESEFREGHER ARE ZRIE
Hm o URBRERBEAERTZHEBK
7 BREAFBHN R —5 -

* BHLEREADQFR2010F 12 A31 HE %
1122 (801,230,671,384/% ) EHFAZE ©

Br EXXFTiEEE SN - B2010F12A318 @ &
EFNARASHEMBEEEZRG - 15
RO EFPHRELAREE S LS ROE
352{EFTIF B 2 BB B EFRIS TS
AAR R T2 A MEtERSRAR -

S LR A A0 B R 2R

BRAmE [FER S | — & MR M 39 3
BEIN  ANRR A EMNE R RBETTE
MEENEPERKREERERERMNEF
& A RFERERBRDAEROEMEASL -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

In order to protect the Group's interest in its current business activities,
each of Grand Prosperity, Mr. Zeng Sheng and Mr. Zeng Yunshu has,
as covenantor, entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of
Non-competition”) dated 31 January 2007 in favour of the Company,
details of which are set out in the section headed “Relationship with the
Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus. Pursuant to the Deed of Non-
competition, each of the covenantors has undertaken, subject to the terms
therein, to the Company (for itself and for the benefit of its subsidiaries)
that it/he would not, and would procure that its/his associates and/or
companies controlled by it/him (other than the Group) would not, either on
its/his own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm
or company, directly or indirectly be interested or engaged in or acquire
or hold an interest (in each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent
or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise) in any business
which is or is about to be engaged in any business which competes or is
likely to compete directly or indirectly with the Group’s business, those
other businesses of the Group as set out in the Prospectus, in Hong Kong,
the PRC and any other country or jurisdiction to which the Group markets
or sells its products and/or in which any member of the Group carries on
business mentioned above from time to time. The Company has received
an annual declaration from each of Grand Prosperity, Mr. Zeng Sheng and
Mr. Zeng Yunshu for its/his respective compliance with the undertakings
under the Deed of Non-competition.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2010, the number of outstanding option shares
granted by the Company under the Pre IPO-Share Options and Share
Option Scheme to the Directors to subscribe for shares of the Company,
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code is set out in the section headed “Share
Option” of this report below.

Apart from the aforesaid, at no time during the year was the Company
or its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL

OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2010, the interests of those persons (other than
the Directors) in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were

Directors’ Report EE 2%

BRI AR A A T e A 2 2

MR2010F 12 A31H  RARRBRGHEARIE
BHEMHEEGIE336IEANFIAFTE 2 &M
Fretse 2 R 2 ZSEAT (BRI NT ¢

as follows:
Number of Percentage
underlying of shares to
shares held total number of
under equity shares in issue*
derivatives %
Capacity in which Number of BERALTE BRIMEE BTRH
Name shares were held shares IEREHER A=l
= RIEERG 254 RiDEE Ripz 8B %
Zeng Sheng" Beneficial owner 380,000 (L) - 0.03%
TR EREBA
Interest of controlled corporation 334,652,000 (L) - 27.19%
REDRER
Grand Prosperity Beneficial owner 334,652,000 (L) - 27.19%
EREBA
Sun Finance Co., Ltd.” (“Sun Finance") Security interest 307,668,000 (L) - 25%
AGEBRHMBERAR ([KZEE]) ERER
Diamond Ocean Development Limited?  Beneficial owner 307,668,000 (L) = 25%
(“Diamond Ocean”) BREEA
Green Auspice Limited® Security interest 319,976,000 (L) - 26%
(“Green Auspice”) HER
Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc.* Interest of controlled corporation 60,608,000 (L) 9,000,000 (L) 5.66%
("LB HLD") REARER
CCB International Assets Beneficial owner 37,000,000 (L) 86,000,000 (L) 9.99%
Management (Cayman) BREEA - 80,000,000 (S) 6.50%

Limited® (“CCBIAML")

L Long Position &
S: Short Position % &
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL
OF THE COMPANY (Cont’p)

Notes:

1. This represents interests held by Mr. Zeng Sheng (an ex-executive director
of the Company) through Grand Prosperity, which holds 334,652,000 shares
of the Company. Mr. Zeng Sheng has 80% interest in Grand Prosperity, he is
therefore deemed to be interested in 334,652,000 shares of the Company.

2. On 4 October 2010, Diamond Ocean has pledged 307,688,000 shares
of the Company to Sun Finance, which is wholly owned by Sino Harvest
Investments Holdings Limited (“Sino Harvest"”). Messrs. Chau Cheok Wa and

Cheng Ting Kong each holds 50% respective interests in Sino Harvest.

3. On 4 October 2010, Grand Prosperity has pledged 319,967,000 shares of the
Company to Green Auspice, which is wholly owned by Ms. Sou Sok Ngo.

4. Lehman Brothers Commercial Corporation Asia Limited (“LBCCA"), which
holds in total of 69,608,000 interests in the Company as beneficial owner,
is owned 50% interests by each of LBCCA Holdings | LLC (“LBCCA |") and
LBCCA Holdings Il LLC (“LBCCA II"). Both LBCCA | and LBCCA Il themselves
are wholly owned by LB HLD and accordingly, the shares in which LBCCA
are shown to be interested are also included in the shares in which LB HLD
is shown to be interested. The number of shares held and underlying shares
held under equity derivatives has been adjusted based on the information
from LB HLD.

5, This represents interests held by Central Huijin Investment Limited (“Central
Huijin”) through CCBIAML. Central Huijin has 57.09% indirectly interest in
CCBIAML. Central Huijin therefore deemed to be interest in 123,000,000
shares (long position) and 80,000,000 shares (short position) of the Company,
respectively.

* The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2010 (i.e. 1,230,671,384 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, the Company had
not been notified of any interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which had been recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, there was sufficiency of public float
of the Company’s securities as required under the Listing Rules up to the
date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association or the laws in the Cayman Islands.

SHARE OPTION

On 31 January 2007, in recognition of the contributions made by
employees of the Group towards its growth and success, an aggregate of
23,000,000 share options of the Company (the “Pre-IPO Share Options”)
have been granted by the Company to, and accepted by the relevant
employees prior to listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange.
On the same day, a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by the shareholder’s written resolution of the Company.

The Listing Committee of Stock Exchange has granted the listing of, and
permission to deal in the shares of the Company which may fall to be
issued pursuant to the exercise of the options which granted and/or may
be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options and/or Share Option Scheme,
subsequently.

As at 31 December 2010, a total of 36,935,000 share options were granted
under the Share Option Scheme outstanding. All share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Options have been exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2010.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme. For details of the Pre-IPO Share Options, please refer to 2009
annual report dated 16 April 2010.

AV e

BREARAFERFHENRRERHRA - AR
RAEAREAPRAENAE EMRRAMBERR
AIRBH TR DAFFRE

o

ARBzRREMERARERE X)L ES
BB ST 2 IR -

i IR

M2007F 18318 AREALEENEEY
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AIRHEBI EmAImMEBEERHA#
23,000,000 AR AR E ([HRAFHEER
RIHE]D)  TEZSREEMN - AB - REX
AEIZBRREMAHER - AAAMERMN—IER
ReAERT Bl ([RRXERTEI)) -

MR ETEESEHERBRBEERAHES
B RRRHE &SRB R BRI &R AT RE R
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TEEE -
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SHARE OPTION (ConNT’D)

(A)  SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Purpose

Recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the grantees had
made or may make to the Group.

Participants
Eligible participants include:

(a) any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or a company in which the Group holds an interest or a
subsidiary of such company ("Affiliate”);

(b)  the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or an
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include
any director, employee, consultant professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate; or

(c) a company beneficially owned by any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner,
adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.

Exercise price

Determined by the Board and shall not be less than the higher of:

(a) the nominal value of the share;

(b)  the closing price of (1) one share on the Stock Exchange at
the offer date, which must be a trading day; and

(c) the average closing price of the share on the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date.
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SHARE OPTION (ConNT’D)

(A)

SHARE OPTION ScHEME (CONT'D)
Total number of shares available for issue and the percentage
of the issued shares capital that it represents as at the date of

this annual report

104,025,000 shares, being approximately 8.45% of the issued
shares of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Not exceed 1% of the shares in issue in any 12-month period.
Period within which the securities must be taken up under the
option

Subject to the discretion by the Board and, in the absence of which,

from the date of acceptance to the earlier of the date on which such
option lapses and 10 years from the date of offer.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised

Subject to the discretion by the Board.

Amount payable on acceptance

HK$10.00 payable upon acceptance of the offer.

Period within which calls/loans must be made/repaid

Not applicable.

Remaining life of the scheme

The scheme will be valid and effective until 31 January 2017,
after which no further options will be granted but the provisions
of the scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects. Options complying with the provisions of the Listing
Rules which are granted during the duration of the scheme and
remain unexercised immediately prior to 31 January 2017 shall

continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant,
notwithstanding the expiry of the scheme.
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SHARE OPTION (ConNT’D)

(B) MovemenTs ofF THE PRe-IPO SHARE OPTIONS

Movements of the option shares, which were granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Options, during the year ended 31 December 2010
are listed below in accordance with rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules:

P B HE (7))
(B) BXAMBEANZAREZEE
REZE2010F12A3MBLEFEAR R

BEX AHEERRRERD 2 RRE
FB)N T (JHIRIE E AR BIEE 17.07 153k

3)
During the year
30
Lapsed/ Exercise price
cancelled T E Exercise
Asat B Granted  Exercised BAM/ Asat B HK$ period
Category bl 01.01.2010 2R 2178 Sl 31.12.2010 BT TR
Directors -
Ms. Ye Qingdong EERLT 5,000,000 - (5,000,000) - - 0.60  22.08.2007-
21.02.2012
Mr. Ouyang Junxin EADIE (piad 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) - - 0.60  22.08.2007-
21.02.2012
Continuous Contract HEENER 12,000,000 - (12,000,000) - - 0.60  22.08.2007-
Employees 21.02.2012
Total st 19,000,000 - (19,000,000) - -
Notes: BT -
1. The vesting period for all the option granted is six months from the 1. FBEERHRREFBEH AR LETH
Listing Date. HRBETNMEA
2. The exercise price of the share options, representing a discount of 2. R 2 THEERN2007F2 A8 E T

75% to the maximum IPO Offer Price as described in the prospectus

dated 8 February 2007.

3. All options were exercised on the same date, the closing price of the

shares immediately before that date was HK$1.55.
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SHARE OPTION (CoNT’D)

(C) MovemENTS oF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Movements of the share options, which were granted under the
Share Option Scheme, during the year ended 31 December 2010
are listed below in accordance with rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules:

e S AE ()
(C) REEHEZED

HZE2010F12 A3 BIEFER - RIER
AR AERT I 2 RS T (THiR IR
FRAIET7.071EEHT) ¢

During the year
R Exercise
Lapsed/ price
cancelled e Exercise
Date of grant Asat Granted Exercised BAH/ Asat HKS period
Category kil BHAS 01.01.2010 [hkn BT B 31122010 beo 18
Directors 2
Dr. Lidun ZEET 15.05.2007 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 184 15.112007-
14.05.2017
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam RRMEE 15.05.2007 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 184 15.112007-
14.05.2017
Continuous Contract ~ SHANEE 15062007 12,951,000 - (16,000 12,935,000 184 15.11.2007-
Employees 14.05.2017
10.10.2007 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 299 10.04.2008-
09.10.2017
Consultants ] 15.05.2007 13,000,000 - - 13,000,000 1.84 15.11.2007-
14.05.2017
13.02.2008 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000 1.70 13.08.2008-
12.08.2018
Total &t 36,951,000 - (16,0000 36,935,000
Notes: MsE -
1. The vesting period for all the options granted is six months from the date of 1. FIEE R RRE 2 5B A BERREB

acceptance of the offer.

2. The exercise price of the share options is subject to the adjustment in case of

right or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

&, When the share options are lapsed or cancelled, the amount previously
recognised in capital reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

HEREA -

2. R T RENEEHERSETAREAR
BIRA 2 RN B M 1 A o
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PENSION SCHEMES

The pension schemes of the Group are primarily in form of contributions
to the PRC statutory public welfare fund and Hong Kong's Mandatory
Provident Funds, respectively.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 24 May 2010, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Ms. Liao Guomei, in relation to the disposal of an office unit in Hong
Long Century Plaza located in Luohu District, Shenzhen, the PRC for a
cash consideration of approximately RMB2,920,000. The consideration
was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations and on normal commercial
terms. The disposal constitutes a connected transaction on the part of
the Company as Ms. Liao Guomei is the spouse of Mr. Zhang Yijun,
an executive director of the Company (re-designated as non-executive
director on 31 January 2011).

On 10 November 2010, the Group entered into an agreement with
Shenzhen Aohong Investment Company Limited (FIITHRZEREBR
A7) ("Aohong Investment”) for the disposal of the 52% of registered
capital of Huizhou Dayawan Yonghao Company Limited (/I KZ:
EKEEEABMRAT) ("HZ Dayawan Yonghao") for a consideration
of RMB120,000,000 and the loans in sum of approximately RMB
268,942,000 owing by HZ Dayawan Yonghao and its subsidiary for a
consideration of approximately RMB268,942,000. The disposal constitutes
a connected transaction on the part of the Company as Mr. Li Shengliang,
a substantial shareholder of HZ Dayawan Yonghao, is interested in 80%
registered share capital of Aohong Investment.

During the year, saved as disclosed in above, the Company did not have
any other connected transactions which were subject to requirements
of the Listing Rules. Other transactions which exempted from the
requirements of the Listing Rule are also disclosed in note 39 to the
financial statements as related party transactions.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
and any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Board adopted the Model Code for Securities Transaction by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules. The Directors have confirmed their compliance with the
required standards as set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2010.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period as set out
in note 42 to the financial statements.

AUDITOR

KPMG, who acted as auditor of the Company for past years, resigned as
auditor of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2010.
RSM Nelson Wheeler was appointed to fill the casual vacancy till the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited by
RSM Nelson Wheeler. A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to reappoint RSM Nelson Wheeler, as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zeng Yunshu
Chairman

31 March 2011
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The Company has always recognised the importance of shareholders
transparency and accountability. It is the belief of the Board that
shareholders can maximise their benefits from good corporate
governance. The Company is committed to ensure high standards of
corporate governance in the interest of its shareholders.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code
of Corporate Governance Practices, as amended from time to time
(the “Code"), as stated in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. As far
as the Code is concerned, the Company complies with all aspects
of the Code during the year ended 31 December 2010 and up to
the date of this report save for certain deviation from the Code
in respect of A.2.1. that Mr. Zhang Yijun, the ex-chief executive
officer and an ex-executive director of the Company, has been re-
designated as non-executive director of the Company since 31
January 2011. The nomination committee of the Company is now in
the process of reviewing and selecting candidates to the Board for
consideration.

The role of the chief executive officer of the Company are now being
shared among the members of the Board, which meets regularly
to consider major matters affecting the operations of the Company.
The Board considered that this structure does not impair the balance
of power and authority between the Board and the management of
the Company and believes that this structure enables the Group to
make and implement decision promptly and efficiently.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Board has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Specific enquiry has been made to all
Directors regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code during
the year and they all confirmed that they have fully complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code.

In addition, the Company has adopted provisions of the Model Code
as written guidelines for relevant employees (as defined in provision
A.5.4 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules) in respect of their dealings
in the securities of the Company. Such relevant employees should
abide by the provisions of the Model Code.

In consideration of the new amendments to the Model Code (the
“Amendments”), which became effective on the 1st quarter of
2009, the Board has revised its Model Code corresponding to the
Amendments.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and
experience appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Company and to the exercising of independent opinion.

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

ExecuTive DIRECTOR

Mr. ZENG Yunshu

Mr. ZHANG Yiyan

Ms. YE Qingdong

Mr. OUYANG Junxin

Mr. LEE Chi Shing Caesar  (appointed on 30 September 2010)

Mr. CHAN Ting Lai (appointed on 4 October 2010)

Ms. YEUNG So Mui (appointed on 5 October 2010)
Ms. HUANG Ling (appointed on 5 January 2011)

Mr. HAN Qinchun
Mr. ZENG Sheng

(resigned on 19 January 2010)
(resigned on 14 January 2011)
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(C) BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CoNT’D) (C) EHF (4)

44

CowmposiTioN (ConT'D)

Non-execuTivE DIRECTOR
Mr. ZHANG Yijun (re-designated on 31 January 2011)
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Dr. LI Jun

Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam

Mr. WANG Fosong

Mr. LI Wai Keung (appointed on 16 March 2010)

The biographical details of the current Directors are set out on page
20 to page 26 of this annual report.

NumBer oF MEeTINGS HELD AND ATTENDANCE

The Board normally has 4 scheduled meetings a year and meet at
other times as and when required to review financial and internal
control, risk management, company strategy and operating
performance of the Group. During the year ended 31 December
2010, a total number of 19 regular and adhoc Board meetings, 2
audit committee meetings, 5 remuneration committee meetings
and 5 nomination committee meeting were held. Minutes of these
meetings are kept by the company secretary of the Company and
are open for inspection by Directors.

The individual attendance records of each Director, on a named
basis, at the meetings of the Board, audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee during the year ended 31
December 2010 are set out below:
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(C) BOARD OF DIRECTORS (ConT’D)

) EHE ()

Attendance/Number of Meetings entitled to attend

HEBRENEEHNRE

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Directors EEHE £2g EREEE FMzee REZE8
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES
Mr. ZENG Yunshu EERLE 18/19 - 5/5 -
Mr. ZHANG Yiyan RERFE 11/19 - - -
Ms. YE Qingdong EERZLT 1119 - - -
Mr. OUYANG Junxin G i 1119 - - -
Mr. LEE Chi Shing Caesar" FEKEE 5/7 - - -
Mr. CHAN Ting Lai2 R S A2 2/6 - - -
Ms. YEUNG So Mui® [CEisE e 2/5 - - -
Mr. HAN Qinchun® BRELE on - - -
Mr. ZENG Sheng? bt 16/19 - - -
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FHTES
Mr. ZHANG Yijun REBH L 12/19 - - -
INDEPENDENT BUFHITES

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. LI Jun F BT 6/19 2/2 5/5 5/5
Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam RIS AE 5/19 2/2 5/5 5/5
Mr. WANG Fosong BRG] 719 2/2 = 5/5
Mr. LI Wai Keung FEREE 8/19 1/2 3/4 3/4
Notes: ks
1. Mr. LEE Chi Shing Caesar was appointed on 30 September 2010 1. FERTER 201049 A 30 HEZ (T
2. Mr. CHAN Ting Lai was appointed on 4 October 2010 2. PRIZAE AN 2010F 10 A4 HEEZFE
3. Ms. YEUNG So Mui was appointed on 5 October 2010 3. BRBZLTR2010F10 A5 BEZF
4. Mr. HAN Qinchun was resigned on 19 January 2010 4. BRHFHLEN2010F1 A19BBT
5. Mr. ZENG Sheng was resigned on 14 January 2011 5. TR AR 2011F1 A 14 BEHT
RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD BEEgEfR

The Board is responsible to ensure that there is a competent

executive management which is able to run the Company in a sound

and efficient manner. The Board is also responsible for establishing

the Company’s business strategies and plans from time to time

to ensure that the operations of the Company are conducted

effectively.

The Board is responsible for preparation of the financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements, the generally accepted

accounting principles in Hong Kong have been adopted, appropriate

accounting policies have been used and applied consistently, and

reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates have been made.
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(©)

(D)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (ConT’D)

ResponsiBILITY OF THE BoArD (CONT'D)

The Board also conducts appropriate internal control procedures and
reviews risk management strategies and polices of the Company to
ensure that the Company runs its business in compliance with all
legal and regulatory requirements with prudence and integrity.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE DIRECTORS

Each executive director is delegated individual authority and
responsibility to oversee and monitor the operations of a specific
business unit, and to implement the strategies and polices set
out by the Board. The independent non-executive directors
provide independent opinion and share their knowledge and
experiences with the other members of the Board, audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee.

ANNUAL CoNFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT NON-EXEcUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board and the nomination
committee consider all of the independent non-executive directors
are independent.

Terms oF NoN-ExecuTive DIRECTORS

The non-executive director has been appointed for a fixed term.
Each of the independent non-executive directors has been appointed
to hold the office until the forthcoming annual general meeting.
In addition, the appointment of each of the non-executive and/or
independent non-executive directors is subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has established a remuneration committee (“RC") with
written terms of reference as suggested under the code provision
under the Code. The RC comprises the following four members:

(i) Dr. LI Jun, chairman of RC (independent non-executive
director);

(ii) Mr. ZENG Yunshu (executive director and chairman of the
Board);

(i)~ Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam (independent non-executive director);
and
(iv)  Mr. LI Wai Keung (independent non-executive director).
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(D) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (ConT’D)

(E)

The RC meets at least once a year to determine the remuneration
policy for Directors and senior management. During the year ended
31 December 2010, a total number of 5 meetings were held to
determine the remuneration policy for Directors and/or senior
management. The attendance records of the RC, on a named
basis, are set out under section of “Number of Meetings Held and
Attendance” on page 45 of this annual report.

The RC has primary responsibility for making recommendations
for approval by the Board with respect to matters relating to the
remuneration of the executive directors of the Company. The major
responsibilities of the RC are:

(i) to make recommendations on the Company’s policies and
structure for all the remuneration of Directors;

(ii) to propose the specific remuneration packages of the
executive directors, and to make recommendations on the
remuneration of the non-executive directors for the Board's
approval;

(i) to review and propose performance-based remuneration
for executive directors by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(iv)  to administer and make determinations with regard to the
Company's share option scheme.

During the year, the Board approved all the recommendations of
the RC. Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments during the
year ended 31 December 2010 are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established an audit committee (“AC") with written
terms of reference as suggested under the code provision under the
Code. The AC comprises the following four members, all of them
are independent non-executive directors:

(i) Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam (chairman of AC);
(ii) Dr. LI Jun;

(i)~ Mr. WANG Fosong; and

(iv)  Mr. LI Wai Keung.

The AC meets at least twice a year to review and approve the
Group's financial reporting process and internal control system.
During the year ended 31 December 2010, a total number of 2
meetings were held. The attendance records of the AC, on a named
basis, are set out under section of “Number of Meetings Held and
Attendance” on page 45 of this annual report.
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(E) AUDIT COMMITTEE (ConT’p)

=]

A E

(E) HZER

TE)

i

The major responsibilities of the AC are: ERLZEENIEREAR:

(i) to make recommendations with respect to the appointment, (i) MEML EFZARERARTN
re-appointment and removal of the Company’s external SNEZEAMIRHERERR  UEE
auditor, and to evaluate their independence, objectivity and B mENBLERBZEFN
effectiveness of the audit process; R

(i) to review and monitor the interim and annual financial (i) WE REERARN B E N FEE
statements, reports and accounts of the Company, and to K MERER - URBHE
review significant and judgemental financial reporting issues FRTEHBE R RRE L BRRE
contained therein; H

(i) to review the Company's financial controls, internal controls (i) MEAARRFBSTEEEE - NEPEEIE
and risk management systems; and KEBERRG &

(iv)  to discuss with the management the system of internal (iv) EAEBRENwmABEZERS UK

controls, and to ensure that the management has discharged
its duties and responsibilities in implementing an effective
internal control system.

The Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2010

have been reviewed by the AC.

AupiTors’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the fees paid/payable to
auditors in respect of audit services and non-audit services provided

by the auditors to the Group were as follows:

BERERENEERRNAMEZE
AT EEETEBRERESE -

AEBMEZE2010F12 A31 HIEFENF
ERECHEZZESEM -

BB A &=

HZE20105F12 A31 BILFE © stz ZEm
M A5 B IR B M % SRS & I BUR
meEft B FEEEmOERNT

2010 2009

RMB’000 RMB’000

Nature of services REME ARBT T ARBTIT
Audit 1ZE

— Current year —AEFE 1,106 1,616

— Under-provision in prior year —~ —LAEEE RN B REE 202 =

Others HAh 520 271

Total RET 1,828 1,887
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(F) NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a nomination committee (“NC") with
written terms of reference as suggested under the code provision
under the Code. The members of nomination committee are
independent non-executive directors, namely:

(i) Mr. WANG Fosong (chairman of NC),
(if) Dr. LI Jun;

(i)~ Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam; and

(iv) Mr. LI Wai Keung.

The NC meets at least once a year to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment of Directors and the management of
the Board's succession. During the year ended 31 December 2010,
a total number of 5 meetings were held. The attendance records
of the nomination committee, on a named basis, are set out under
section of “Number of Meetings Held and Attendance” on page 45
of this annual report.

The major responsibilities of the NC are:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular
basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes;

(ii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

(i) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

(iv)  to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors in particular the
chairman and the president (chief executive officer).

During the year, the Board approved all the recommendations of
the NC. The retirement by rotation of the following Directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting have been approved by the NC:—

ExecuTive DIRECTORS:
Mr. ZENG Yunshu
Mr. ZHANG Yiyan

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Dr. LI Jun

Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam

Mr. WANG Fosong
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(G)

(H)

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain an effective internal
control system in order to protect the Group's assets and
shareholders’ interests. The Board and AC also conduct periodic
reviews to ensure the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system. The internal control system includes a well established
corporate structure and organisation with clearly defined lines
of responsibility and authority. Each department is responsible
for its daily operations, and is also required to implement and
monitor the strategies and polices adopted by the Board and
effective employment of the resources of the Company, in order
to avoid misappropriation of resources and damages made to the
Company'’s assets, and prevent against errors and fraud.

The Board and AC assess the effectiveness of the internal control
system and procedures based on information derived from
discussions with the management of the Company and its external
auditor. The Board and AC believe that the existing internal control
system is adequate and effective.

The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
as well as the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Company's accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget.

The Board has established a clearly defined scope of activities,
responsibility and authority for each department and its
management staff within the Group. The Group has a defined goal
for each department to accomplish, these goals were discussed
in the Board meeting and pass on to the management through
the executive directors. These goals will be implemented and
closely monitored by the executive directors who shall review the
operational and financial results from time to time, and to take any
necessary actions for the improvement of it business activities.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintain high level of transparency in
communicating with shareholders and the investment community
at large. The Company provides information in relation to the
Company and its business in its annual report which is to be
dispatched to shareholders of the Company on a timely basis. The
Group’s corporate website (http://www.hlkg.net/) also provides an
effective communication medium through which the public and
investors can obtain updated information about the Group.
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Independent Auditor’s Report & 37 #Z 2 Ef 3} &

RSM Nelson Wheeler
RInE#E(EB)GMEHKA
Certified Public Accountants

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Hong Long Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Long
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 53 to 144, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2010,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

FUREERERDARR
2B BENRE
(REESHBAMA T FRAE])

AAZE0EM (LA T 578 [FfP9 ) B BT S5 53
EEF 144 REERERAR(ERAR]) &
HBAR (HE [ E5E]) WA MBHRE -
iR A M SRR B IER 20109612 A31 B4R
Aﬁ?fﬂkﬂi’%ﬁi%@ﬁiatiﬁmﬁéi\ﬁw
/\%% RAESEHRNGARERER N
FESHBRMEREMGHBEER -

5 5l A £ S B R R B AT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

ERFEFRRARRBEEESHM OGS EMD
BEMBREEN R EFE(RBAGADNRER
RRUAEBMAFHERAHBIREK - ARRE
ERRVENERAMEZAR  UERER
R A BTSRRI M B K EE AR IR (am 2 B HRRF
KRR SIAE) ©

A i ) B AT

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the

BMNEERBBERMNEREZEESTE
MREHER - HMZERABEBRRRSE - Rt
LASN - B s E A BEEM AR o B
BMARARMEENAND HEMEMALER
FAEEAERE - BMERBEEESHAAE
BB BETEETER - BLERIZER
KMETEERE  WREARNTEZ - UE
BFHEGREVBHRERES MR EMER
i AR PR o

ERS RATIRF ARG BSE IS RE T
HeBRBBEERNERERE - MEENREF
HURT iz BR800 4 i - B 45T b B X A el ss
ﬁﬁﬁﬂFA%%ﬁﬁrﬁékﬁﬁﬁtmﬂ
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entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

B AREFTEENEZRERF  BXFRHRF
A EEGIRMREREREBR - BRI EENE
EEMRANSHTRENSEERMELNE
AR RN - URFEEE M BHRRNE
BIHmS R -

HFEE - HPIMESHNERRIESRRIE
BEHAHMNEZE RIRHEER -

=1
JT

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2010, and of
the Group's results and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2011

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income %4 2 Wi &

Turnover

Cost of sales

Less: Sales return of properties sold
Cost of properties returned

Gross (loss)/profit

Other net (expense)/income

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses

General and administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Net increase in fair value of
investment properties

(Loss)/Profit from operations

Net change in fair value of derivative
financial instruments

Finance costs

Gain on bargain purchase in respect
of business combination

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share (RMB cents)

Basic

Diluted

E S

SHEMA

B BEMRIEERD

REYIZERA

E(8) 7

Hith (2 WeatF 5

HAb KA
HERDIHER
—MRRITHRE B
Hih£EEM
BREMENRAEN
KN ER

& (B1), /57

TESRIANRRE

HEE B ER
BERA
BRAERBAHZRE

BE W
HEHT S A m e

BRBLADEF
PG

REFHBFRZH
L6t

LU AL BEfh

EA/NSIE 2SN
ES e

BREFN (AR%ED)
EAR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z 20104 12 A 31 HI-F/Z

2010 2009
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HsE ARETT ARBETTT
6 1,132,896 362,369
(864,086) (274,903)
268,810 87,466
6 (313,521) -
27,776 =
(285,745) -
(16,935) 87,466
7 (4,125) 64,964
8 6,516 31,071
(33,394) (21,775)
(63,097) (35,304)
(216,069) (10,711)
18 208,415 56,830
(118,689) 172,541
15,977 (19,994)
10 (160,934) (87,843)
36(a) 123,979 =
36(b) 200,801 =
61,134 64,704
11 (28,455) (33,497)
12 32,679 31,207
37,609 32,699
(4,930) (1,492)
32,679 31,207
16

3.11 cents 7 3.14 cents &

3.11 cents 7 3.13 cents &
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4 5Bt #& AR R &

At 31 December 2010 R 20104 12 A 31 H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Available-for-sale financial assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Consideration receivables
Trading securities

Pledged deposits

Bank and cash balances

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables, and accruals

Receipts in advance

Rental and other deposits
Derivative financial liabilities
Bank and other borrowings
Current tax liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Bank and other borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

FRBEE
(UERN ]
BEME
AHHESREE
EREHIREE

RBEE

&

JRE AT P 35 2 LAt B LA R
FEUAERK

BEEES

ERER
RITRIR S MEER

REEE

FERBRSR - AR R TR & A
TAUWERR

HEFEMIZS

TEERAE

RITREAMEE

BIMTIR BLE

RBEEFE

EERERRBEE

FRBEE
RITREAMEE
EREIRRE

AEFE
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20
21
22
23
24
25

26
27
28
28
30

2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
9,871 9,921
1,614,100 1,376,436
251,895 -
13,233 49,947
oo....1.889,099 1,436,304 __
1,782,393 2,042,233
769,384 783,115
153,927 -
4,060 4,519
9,431 73,569
92,787 216,950
oo..o.281e82 3120386
378,286 447,781
120,745 82,257
11,792 11,743
14,275 30,252
823,230 375,800
175,601 262,552
... 1523929 1,210,385 _
......1.288,058 1,910,001 __
co....83A71082 3,346,305
1,112,200 1,393,834
288,726 231,634
......1400926 1,625,468 _
1,776,226 1,720,837




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4r & Bt #AR R 3/

At 31 December 2010 F20104 12 A31 H

Capital and reserves EARR#E

Share capital &N

Reserves &

Equity attributable to owners PN S PN
of the Company G Fy ]

Non-controlling interests IR R A

TOTAL EQUITY RERBRE

Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2011.

ZENG YUNSHU
Director

EBEF

Note
!

m

32
34

2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBFT
11,971 10,296
1,763,260 1,707,809
1,775,231 1,718,105
995 2,732
1,776,226 1,720,837

EE0 2011963 A 31 BRUELRBETIE -

LEE CHI SHING CAESAR

Hong Long Holdings Limited JE[& =R E R A =
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity s SR B B &

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z 20104 12 431 HILF/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADFEBAES

Non-
Share Share  Merger Statutory  Capital Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests  equity
BE ROEE AfEE LERE EARE RERN B FERER REAE
(Note 34 (Note 34 (Note 34 (Note 34

0] ) ) (civ)
MiEss  (FiEss  (Mass (M3
) e ) ew)

Note  RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
M ARETR ARBTI ARETR ARBTE ARETL ARETL ARETL ARETT ARETTL

At 1 January 2009 R2009E181H 10,296 579,466 24,227 44,025 50,122 938585 1,646,721 13,082 1,659,803
Profit and total comprehensive &7 K

income for the year 2ENHEE - - - - - 32699 32699 (1,492) 31207
Transfer to statutory reserve  BEZETRE - - - 5,348 - (5348 - - -
Share options cancelled B RRRE - - - - (17667) 17,667 - - -
Partial disposal of interest &R —RIHBAF

in a subsidiary HBAES - - - - - 832 832 3075 3147
Acquisition of additional WE—FNBAR

interest in a subsidiary HEIMER - - - - - 10333 10333 (11,933  (1,600)
Changes in equity REEERS

for the year - - - 5348  (17,667) 83,703 71,384 (10,350) 61,034
At 31 December 2009 R2009E 128 318 10,296 579,466 24,227 49,373 32,455 1,022,288 1,718,105 2,732 1,720,837
Profit and total comprehensive E &R R

income for the year 2ENHEE - - - - - 37609 37,609 (49300 32,679
Issue of shares £ 0 320a) 704 66,182 - - - - 66,886 - 66,86

32(h) 220 20,615 - - - - 20,835 - 20835
32(c) 167 24,592 - - (14,754) - 10,005 - 10,005

Issue of scrip dividend shares  E{TBAIREEMRG 15, 32(d) 584 74,749 - - - (75333 - - -
Special dividend paid in cash ~ MBREZTERIRE 15 - - - - - (78209) (78,209) - (78.209)
Share options cancelled BEHRRRE 35(c) - - - - (7) 7 - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WIEIE A 36(a) - - - - - - - 114566 114,566
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 36(b) - - - - - - - (1M11373) (111,373)
Changes in equity REEERS

for the year 1,675 186,138 - - (14,761) (115926) 57,126 (1,737) 55,389
At 31 December 2010 R2010E128 318 11,971 765604 24,227 49,373 17,694 906,362 1,775,231 995 1,776,226

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
Annual Report 2010 Z&—ZF F 3



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 428 E£HRhE %K

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Finance costs
Amortisation and depreciation
Loss/(Gain) on repurchase of
Senior Note
Impairment losses on other receivables
and loans and advance
Impairment loss on prepaid land costs
Other receivables written off
(Gains)/Losses on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on bargain purchase in respect of
business combination
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Net increase in fair value of
investment properties
Net change in fair value of
derivative financial instruments
Net unrealised fair value losses/(gains)
on trading securities
Dividend income
Net exchange (gains)/losses

Operating (loss)/gain before working
capital changes
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and other receivables
Decrease/(Increase) in trading securities
Decrease/(Increase) in pledged deposits
Decrease in trade and other payables,
and accruals
Increase/(Decrease) in receipts
in advance
Increase in rental and other deposits

Cash used in operations

Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

For the year ended 31 December 2010

z(:g lﬁﬁiﬁé/)lbi

B 5% A4 7

HEIER

FESHA

BN

BHERITE
BEELEERN
B8/ (W)
EW%WM&QMM&
BHEREEE

TR LA AR EEE
SR EL A FE LR
ﬁ%%%\@%&

b))/ B8

ﬁﬁ%ﬁAHm ZEBRE N

HERBARM K
REMENDAER
ENFE
TESBTAN
DA B @5%%5
BEEEFNAEEALE
Eﬁi@/ zs) 38
VN
[R: ”51 /lgﬂﬁﬂ}%ﬁ

LEETEHA

HEE (B8), /&5
FEEm

FEUER R B E A R SIE AN
BEEHMD,/(EM)
EREHRD, /(4 hn)
FERERAR - HABBAFR
B E AR

TR N, Ot

HEREMREIEN
EEHANEE

ERAER
ReEDBANRS TR

EE 20104 12 31 A F/E

In prior year, the cash flows from purchases and sales of trading securities
were classified as investing activities. During the year, the cash flows
from purchases and sales of trading securities were classified as operating
activities in order to provide a more appropriate presentation of the state of
affairs of the Group.

2010 2009
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HizE ARBTT AREFT
61,134 64,704
(3,095) (9,766)
160,934 87,843
3,970 2,754
2,988 (73,128)
201,073 =
1,177 =
4,222 =
(625) 12
36(a) (123,979) =
36(b) (200,801) =
(208,415) (56,830)
(15,977) 19,994
425 (552)
(193) (24)
(2,452) 6,292
(119,614) 41,299
(239,701) (246,980)
(382,472) (134,592)

1,034 (3,000)*
47,422 (13,723)
(77,217) (21,887)
116,525 (3,837)
49 614
(653,974) (382,106)
(31,144) (6,388)

| (685,118) . _______ (388,494) __
o NAEEE  RABEBERHEEESSNRS

%ﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁxﬁ/ﬁiﬂ cERN - BHAEENE
BRRREESENZS A - REBE R
EEBEFFNREREBIIALLES -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 448 E$RhEa %

For the year ended 31 December 2010 & 20104 12 A 31 H1-F/Z

58

2010 2009
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
FeE ARBTT ARETT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETERERE

ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment &Y% - M= k& (14,370) (1,652)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE « BEN&E

plant and equipment FTiS 5008 9,976 396
Purchase of investment properties BEREME (1,473) =
Acquisition of subsidiaries W EEH B A A 36(a) 3,220 =
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets B E It E L REE (216,795) =
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR 36(b) 428,808 =
Acquisition of additional interest WHE—REB AR

in a subsidiary MR - (1,600)
Deposits paid for acquisition of W B AT RS

an investment - (32,600)
Proceeds from partial disposal of HERBA RS ER

interest in a subsidiary FTiS 58 - 35,000
Interest received BUFE 674 7,251
Dividend received B E 193 24
Net cash generated from REEDEENR S FE

investing activities 210,233 6,819
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHELSRE

ACTIVITIES
Drawdown of bank loans REURITER 2,058,157 1,489,541
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (1,364,525) (526,170)
Repurchase of Senior Note EREAEE (185,645) (290,585)
Proceeds from issue of shares BEITRAD PTG RUE 10,005 =
Interest paid BAFE (91,513) (118,261)
Dividend paid EARE (78,209) =
Net cash generated from BMEEDEENR L FE

financing activities 348,270 554,525
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH ¥ &RESZEYH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R /1 nF4E (126,615) 172,850
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ EXEEHH T E 2,452 (2)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1818NBRERBELSEEY

1 JANUARY 216,950 44,102
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 12831 BRERELEEY

31 DECEMBER 92,787 216,950
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND BeRBEEEBNSN

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RIT KA LA 92,787 216,950

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3z 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B3 HHTIES) + UAREITLHTR)

GENERAL INFORMATION

— gkt

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, the Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of
business is 17th Floor, Block B, Hong Long Century Plaza, Heping
Road, Luohu District, Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the
financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS

RARARRFAERESIMKLAERA
A o sE 3 = & &9 Ak 2 R Cricket
Square ' Hutchins Drive * PO Box
2681 ' George Town ' Grand Cayman
KY1-1111 » the Cayman Islands - =&
EEMEMM I AP EARLME ([
B 1) 7R 31| 28 8 [ 60 < % o e 40 [ 35 B R
1718 « KRAHROREBHE RS
BRAE (BT ER ET o

AARRKREZERAR  HEEWMB A
AR E R XEHN P IERERMEE 40 ©

PR AT AT S KEAE 5T A 8 B 75
1l

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that are relevant
to its operations and effective for its accounting year beginning on
1 January 2010. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards; Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"); and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did
not result in significant changes to the Group's accounting policies,
presentation of the Group’s financial statements and amounts
reported for the current and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective. The Group has already commenced
considering the potential impact of these new HKFRSs but is not
yet in a position to state whether these new HKFRSs would have a
material impact on its results of operations and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

REAFE  REBEERAFELTES
FTED A& PrAE M BB E R AT AT
FSETTERBMBRELEL  ZEFE
M mEERNEE 201061 51 B
VEFFEEN BEVBRELIE
EEBUMBREEL BB EAR
B RMZFHMAT REEBITRERE
WMELN IS HALE 2 HEK - K
SEMBMER 2 2 RAFE KL F
B2 EREBVELESREE -

7N €5 B 30 4% FE R B AR 8 1 R AR R B HT
EEBUWHHREER - REBEE A
BB EBVBRE LT E - BF
B BRATI R BE SE I #1188 B 75 5 £ R
SR AKBNELE XA R BEIRNE
REBRTE

R

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, financial instruments classified as trading securities and
derivative financial instruments which are carried at their fair values.

WEMBHRERRDIBEEEMHE RS E
A EE ARG RAA R X E 5
EHREIREE QRG] Z A E R

WEFBRRDRELEXEERGER
VHEGEIABARZREDE 5
BRESEFNSRIARTESRT
BAEHERT o
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3 Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &AESN + AN EETIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

& FBOR (1)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the directors to exercise their judgements in the process
of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving critical
judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these financial statements, are disclosed in note 4 to
the financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below.

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. Control is the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group has control.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the
Company's share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any
remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any related
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
Annual Report 2010 Z&—ZF F 3
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3z 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/&5 &AESN + AN EETIIR)

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

3. EHEEHBOR (B)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Cont'd)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement
of changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition
of a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of
acquisition is measured at the acquisition-date fair value
of the assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities
incurred and contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the
costs are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are
measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company's
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of
the Company’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Company.

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3 Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/%5 &) + A B TIIR)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

& FBOR (1)

(b)

(c)

Business combination and goodwill (Cont’d)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is
added to the cost of acquisition to calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest in the subsidiary were recognised in other
comprehensive income (for example, available-for-sale
investment), the amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis as
would be required if the previously held equity interest were
disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment
losses of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as
stated in the accounting policy (u) below. Impairment losses
of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or loss
and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition for the purpose of impairment
testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency as well as the functional
currency of the principal operating subsidiaries of the
Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3z 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&S HH#S) + YA EETIT)

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

3. EHEEHBOR (B)

(c)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values
in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on
a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values
over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3 Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &AESN + AN EETIIR)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Do

EEEHBOR ()

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’'d)

- Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 40 years after the date of
completion.

- Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 20 years.

- Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-5 years

- Motor vehicles 4 years
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An investment property
is measured initially at its cost including all direct costs
attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at
its fair value based on valuation by an external independent
valuer. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
the investment property are recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

If a property held for sale becomes investment property, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the fair
value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised in profit
or loss.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3z 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

(BREFHHS)  UARBTIT)

3. EHEEHBOR (B)

(f) Leases

The Group as leasee

(i)

(ii)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease is
capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased
asset and the present value of the minimum lease
payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the statement of financial position as finance lease
payable. Lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period
during the lease term so as to a produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated over the
lease term or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out
in note 3(d).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3 Rz

* UARBTTIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BB H AL

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

at BOR (5)

(f) Leases (Cont'd)

The Group as lessor

(i)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

(g) Inventories

(i)

(ii)

Properties for future developoment/under development

Properties for future development/under development
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs include acquisition costs, prepaid land
lease payments, construction costs, borrowing costs
capitalised and other direct costs attributable to such
properties. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to sale proceeds received after the reporting
period less selling expenses and the anticipated costs
to completion, or by estimates based on prevailing
market condition. On completion, the properties are
reclassified to properties held for sale at the then
carrying amount. Properties for future development/
under development are classified as current assets
unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond
normal operating cycle.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Costs of properties
include acquisition costs, prepaid land lease payments,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised and
other direct costs attributable to such properties. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to sale
proceeds received after the reporting period less
selling expenses, or by estimates based on prevailing
market condition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3z 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/&5 &AESN + AN EETIIR)

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

3. EHEEHBOR (B)

(h)

(i)

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an investment is under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment
within the timeframe established by the market concerned,
and are initially measured at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Investments are classified as either financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss or available-for-sale financial
assets.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
either investments classified as held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition. These investments are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of these investments are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3 Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/%5 &) + A B TIIR)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

& FBOR (1)

(i

(i)

Investments (Cont’d)

(ii) Available-for sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets not classified as trade and other
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Available-
for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value of these investments are recognised in
other comprehensive income, until the investments
are disposed of or there is objective evidence that
the investments are impaired, at which time the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are recognised in profit
or loss. Interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in profit or loss for equity
investments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets are not subsequently reversed through profit or
loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses
at the end of the reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition. Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss are not subsequently reversed.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.
An allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount of the allowance is
the difference between the receivables’ carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.
The amount of the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3z 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/&5 &AESN + AN EETIIR)

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

3. EHEEHBOR (B)

(i)

(k)

U]

Trade and other receivables (Cont’d)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the
receivables' recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the
receivables at the date the impairment is reversed shall not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

(1) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

3.

(b= HHTHES)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

* UARBTTIT)

& FBOR (1)

U]

(m)

(n)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)

(if) Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values and are subsequently

measured at the higher of:

- the amount of the obligations under the
contracts, as determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contingent Assets”; and

- the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the terms of the

guarantee contracts.

(i)  Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they

are stated at cost.

(iv)  Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised and
subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in the fair value

of derivatives are recognised in profit or loss as they arise.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the

amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3z 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

(BRZEATES) - UARETIT)

3. EHEEHBOR (B)

(n) Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

Sales of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties held for sale is
recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyers. The
Group considers that the significant risks and rewards
of ownership are transferred when the properties
are completed and delivered to the buyers. Revenue
from sales of properties excludes business tax and
other sales related taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts. Deposits and instalments received on
properties sold prior to the date of revenue recognition
are included in the statement of financial position under
receipts in advance.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned. Rental income excludes business tax
or other sales related taxes.

Property management income

Revenue from property management is recognised
in the accounting period in which the services are
rendered.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established. Dividend income from listed
investments is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

(n) WARER (&)

(1)

(i1)

(iif)

(1v)

(v)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3 Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &AESN + AN EETIIR)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

at BOR (5)

(o)

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the end
of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes as required under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

The Group contributes to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to
the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC. Contributions to the schemes by the Group
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred, to the extent that they are not capitalised as
inventories.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3z 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&S HH#S) + YA EETIT)

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

3. EHEEHBOR (B)

(p)

(q)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at fair value (excluding the effect
of non market-based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined
at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions, with a corresponding increase in capital reserve.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at the fair value of the services rendered or if
the fair value of the services rendered cannot be reliably
measured, at the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
The fair value is measured at the date the Group receives the
services and recognised as expense.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in capital reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in capital reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

(p)

(q)
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

3.

(B SEHHI

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

F UARRE

TTET)

& FBOR (1)

(q)

(r)

Borrowing costs (Cont’d)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group
that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3z 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&S HH#S) + YA EETIT)

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

3. EHEEHBOR (B)

(r)

(s)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

PRC Land Appreciation tax (“LAT")

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from
sales of properties less deductible expenditures including
land costs, borrowing costs, business taxes and all property
development expenditures. LAT is recognised as an income
tax. LAT paid is a deductible expense for PRC corporate
income tax purposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3 R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

3.

(BB H AL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

* UARBTTIT)

& FBOR (1)

(t)

(u)

Related parties

A party is related to the Group if:

(i) directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party controls, is controlled by, or is
under common control with, the Group; has an interest
in the Group that gives it significant influence over the

Group; or has joint control over the Group;

(ii) the party is an associate;

(i) the party is a joint venture;

(iv)  the party is a member of the key management

personnel of the Company or its parent;

(v)  the party is a close member of the family of any

individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

(vi)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or

indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or

(vi)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity that

is a related party of the Group.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets except investment properties,
deferred tax assets, inventories and financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount

of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3z R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/&5 &AESN + AN EETIIR)

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

3. EHEEHBOR (B)

(u)

(v)

Impairment of assets (Cont'd)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& 3 R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &AESN + AN EETIIR)

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

3. FHEEHBOR ()

(w)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when material.

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(w)

REHKRER
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4. BASERV B & 32 A

(a)

(b)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements.

Legal titles of certain completed properties for sale

As stated in note 20 to the financial statements, certain
completed properties held for sale of the Group with carrying
amount of approximately RMB18,426,000 were acquired
through bidding at a public auction in 2007 pursuant to a court
ruling. During the year ended 31 December 2009, a third
party made a claim that it also acquired these properties at
another public auction pursuant to a court ruling. The Group
is applying a court order to revoke the above court ruling. The
case is currently being handled by the Group's legal adviser.
Based on the legal opinion obtained, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group is the beneficial
owner of these properties and should be able to obtain the
title documents of these properties.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

4.  CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD)

(B = BATHEIN - UAREITTIT)

4. BRSA B R B2 AR ()

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Available-for-sale financial assets

The Group's available-for-sale financial assets include
unlisted investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is considered so significant that the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that their
fair values cannot be measured reliably. Accordingly
the Group has reflected these available-for-sale
financial assets at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group determine whether an available-for-
sale financial asset is impaired in accordance with
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”. In addition, the Group evaluates,
among others, the financial position of and business
outlook for the investee, including factors such as
industry and sector performance, operational and
financing cash flows. The Group's estimates may be
inaccurate and any change in the estimates would
affect profit or loss in future years.

Provision for completed properties held for sale
and properties for future development and under
development for sale

As explained in note 3(g), the Group’s completed
properties held for sale and properties for future
development and under development for sale are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Based on the Group's recent experience and the nature
of the subject properties, the Group makes estimates
of the selling prices, the costs of completion in case
for properties for future development and under
development for sale, and the costs to be incurred
in selling the properties based on prevailing market
conditions.
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* UARBTTIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/45 &Ar#55/

4.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

4.

ZESI P ET LTI

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(if) Provision for completed properties held for sale
and properties for future development and under

development for sale (Cont'd)

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a
decrease in net sales value, the net realisable value
will decrease and this may result in provision for
completed properties held for sale and properties for
future development and under development for sale.
Such provision requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, the carrying value and provision
for properties in the periods in which such estimate is

changed will be adjusted accordingly.

In addition, given the volatility of the PRC property
market and the unique nature of individual properties,
the actual outcomes in terms of costs and revenue may
be higher or lower than estimated at the reporting date.
Any increase or decrease in the provision would affect

profit or loss in future years.

(i) Impairment losses on prepaid project costs

The Group prepaid land and construction costs for
certain projects located on the lands which the Group
has not obtained title documents of the land use
rights. The Group is in the process of obtaining title
documents of these land use rights. Should the title
documents of these land use rights cannot be obtained
subsequently, certain prepaid costs may not be
recoverable. The Group provides for impairment losses
for the unrecoverable costs based on its estimation.
The Group's estimates may be inaccurate and any
change in the estimates would affect profit or loss in

future years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

4.  CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD)

(B SHATHI  BARETIIT)

4. BRSA B R B2 AR ()

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Group reviews the recoverability and ageing of
loans and receivables and provides for impairment
losses if the balances are not fully recoverable. The
assessments involve estimation on the recoverability
of these balances. The Group's estimates may be
inaccurate and any change in estimates would affect
profit or loss in future years.

Estimated income taxes (including LAT)

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in the
PRC. Significant estimates are required in determining
the amount of the provision for tax and the timing
of payment of the related tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.

Derivative financial instruments

The fair values calculated on the basis of well-
established valuation techniques using current market
parameters are theoretical values applicable at a
given reporting date, and hence can only be used as
an indicator of value realisable in a future sale. These
techniques involve uncertainties and are significantly
affected by the assumptions used and judgements
made regarding risk characteristics of various financial
instruments, discount rates, estimates of future cash
flows, future expected loss and other factors. Changes
in assumptions could significantly affect these
estimates and the resulting fair values. Derived fair
value estimates cannot necessarily be substantiated
by comparison to independent markets and, in many
cases, could not be realised in an immediate sale of the
instruments.

(b) fhETTEAMEZREZ ETERIR (F)

(1v)

(v)

(vi)

B R B R EETR

AEBFEZERRBREA
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& 3 R Mz

A RETHT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/45 &Ar#55/

4.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

4.

ZESI P ET LTI

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(vii)  Valuation of investment properties

As described in note 18 to the financial statements,
investment properties are stated at fair value based
on the valuation performed by an independent firm of
professional surveyors after taking into consideration
the net rental income allowing for reversionary income

potential.

In determining the fair value, the surveyors have based
on a method of valuation which involves, inter alia,
certain estimates including current market rents for
similar properties in the same location and condition,
appropriate discount rates and expected future market
rents. In relying on the valuation report, the directors
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that
the method of valuation is reflective of the current

market conditions.

(viii)  Financial guarantee contracts

Details of guarantees provided by the Group are set
out in note 37 to the financial statements. Based
on expectations at the reporting date, the directors
consider that it is more likely than not that such an
amount will not be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change depending
on the probability of the counterparty claiming under
the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood
that the financial receivables held by the counterparty

which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

5.

Z/\ SHEATES 0 UABERETIR)

e TR

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets eREE

Available-for-sale financial assets HHESMEE

Financial assets at fair value through DEAFHEERIRAR
profit or loss, classified as AABENEREE
held for trading

Loans and receivables (including BRI

bank and cash balances)

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss, classified as
held for trading

Financial risk management

(BERITRREER)

EREE

REERAGENERAE

DERFHEERRANE
SABGNERARE

(i)

Foreign currency risk

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign currency risk, price risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.

All the Group’s revenue-generating activities were
transacted in RMB. Exposure to foreign currency
risks is mainly attributable to bank deposits, bank and
other borrowings that are denominated in currencies
other than RMB. Foreign currency risk is measured
by employing sensitivity analysis, taking into account
current and anticipated exposures.

At 31 December 2010, it is estimated that had the
United States Dollars exchange rate (versus RMB)
increased/decreased by 5% (2009: 5%), with all
other variables remaining constant, the Group's
profit after tax for the year would have decreased/
increased by approximately RMB8,574,000 (2009:
RMB11,899,000).

(a) S@MIANDE

2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBETR ARETT
251,895 -
4,060 4,519
747,945 757,377
2,325,508 2,229,158
14,275 30,252

(b) HBERER

(1)

SN R

REBEEBKEAZSERS
Ak BfEINERRE - B

Rk EERR RBES
Rk R ERER - AREZ

EERREEFHFEINE
IS AAEAZSE B
ﬁﬁ%fﬁ¥1$ﬁlﬁﬁ%%fﬁ’%
Rz BHEAMPE

NEEFTAEERARED
HUARBHETR S - FTHE
HOINE RS B RRITE
Mo RITREMBEUAR
AN B EHE o SNEETR,

B R BRE ST E
Wat & E AT R TEER Y R o

M®2010F 128318 %
FTEEMEERIFETE
BRAT WBETHEAR
BIERD R EH, THAL%
(20094 : 5%) ' RIAEH
TN EF [ ) BR B 18 0 Al 5T
1% Bl A INK AR
8,574,0007T(20094F : AR
# 11,899,000 7T) °
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F UARRE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

5.

(B SEHHI

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

TTIT)

5.

e T A ()

(b)

Financial risk management (Cont’'d)

(ii)

(ii)

Price risk

The Group’s exposure to equity price risk is mainly
attributable to the Warrants (note 29) issued by the
Company. The Warrants are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period and the Warrants' fair
value are changed in response to the change in market
price of the Company's shares.

At 31 December 2010, it is estimated that had the
market price of the Company’s shares increased/
decreased by 10% (2009: 10%), with all other
variables remaining constant, the Group's profit after
tax for the year would have decreased/increased by
approximately RMB4,339,000 (2009: RMB5,744,000).

Credit risk

At 31 December 2010, the Group’'s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has a defined credit policy. In addition, the
Group reviews the ageing of its individual debt at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group had concentration of credit risk by its trade
debtors as 76% of its trade receivables was due from
one single property purchaser as at 31 December
2010. The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

(B SHATHI  BARETIIT)

5. &b TH (4)

(b) Financial risk management (Cont’d)

(iif)

(iv)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

In addition to credit risk on trade receivables, the Group
is also exposed to concentration of credit risk through
its 100% consideration receivables due from two third
parties and 99% of its loan receivables due from three
third parties. With respect to these receivables, the
Group either holds collateral over the balances or has
close business relationship with the counterparties.
In addition, the directors have regular liaison with the
counterparties to identify any early sign of potential
problems. In this regard, the directors consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on pledged deposits, cash and bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit-ratings.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of properties and provided guarantees to
certain former subsidiaries, its tenant and business
associates. Details of these guarantees are set out in
note 37 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Individual subsidiaries within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management based on the Group's
internal guidelines on liquidity requirement, including
raising loans to cover the expected cash demand,
and obtaining credit lines, subject to approval by the
Board. The Group's objective is to strike a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of banking facility and other borrowings. The
Group financed its operations and investment activities
with internally generated cash flows, balanced with
proceeds from the line of credit obtain from banks.
There has been no default on repayment of interest
and/or bank borrowings as at year end or at any time
during the year.

(b) BIBEBRERE (&)

(iif)

(iv)

EEmE (&)
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/45 &Ar#55/

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTD)

* UARBTTIT)

5. @b TH (4)

(b) Financial risk management (Cont’d) (b) BIEERERE (&)
(iv)  Liquidity risk (Contd) (iv) EEEEE (&)
The following tables show the remaining contractual THRERKEBZIEITES
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s non- REE (T EERERR) R
derivative financial liabilities (excluding receipts in WMEBZHBTIALREA -
advance), which are based on contractual undiscounted DIRBEAEHNRITRE SR
cash flows (including interest payments computed E(BEFERAGOFNEFE
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates ZRBERK - anBIFEEF
current at the reporting date) and the earliest date the X BlEREEBEBRAZ
Group can be required to pay: FRAE) AR KEBTE
kBB R HEE ¢
2010
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHRTRRLTE
Within ~ More than1 ~ More than2
1yearor yearbutless yearsbut less More than Carrying
ondemand than2years than5 years 5 years Total amount
—ER  -ENEB  WENLE
FREX DRWE DREE RENE fm REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARMTR  ARETR  AR®TR  ARETR  ARETR
Trade and other payables, ~ FE{JERF » EftfEft
and accruals ERRBRER 378,286 - - - 378,286 378,286
Rental and other deposits ~ EREMKE 2,160 714 24717 6,441 11,792 11,792
Bank and other borrowings TR EMEE 932,519 677,187 245574 364,630 2,219,910 1,935,430
Total Rt 1,312,965 677,901 248 051 371,01 2,609,988 2,325,508
2009
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ANRTRRS T
Within -~ More than1 More than2
Tyearor  vyearbutless years but less More than Carrying
ondemand  than2years  than b years 5 years Total amount
—Fr  —FNER  BENLE
RREX DRME DREE AENE k) REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT  ARETT ARETT  ARETr  ARETRT ARET:
Trade and other payables, ~ EFTERZ « EfufE(
and accruals ERRBRER 287 467 - - - 287,467 447,781
Rental and other deposits ~ E R EfEE 3,139 462 1,879 6,263 11,743 11,743
Bank and other borrowings  $R{TREMIEE 495,750 830,064 489,637 414,677 2,230,028 1,769,634
Total At 786,356 830,526 491,416 420940 2,529,238 2229158

The above table excluded all non-cash settled

contractual liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&S EAT#EI) + AN RETITR)

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

5. &b TH (4)

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management (Cont’'d)

(v)  Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
interest-bearing assets and liabilities. It is the Group’s
intention to keep its borrowings at floating interest rate
with an aim to reflect market costs of funding. It is this
reason that cost of specific borrowings financing the
Group's development projects would be capitalised at
a rate reflecting market conditions. The Group's effect
on changes in interest rate is considered immaterial to
the Group's profit or loss.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2010, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 1% (2009: 1%) in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would decrease/
increase the Group's profit after tax for the year by
approximately RMB10,809,000 (2009: decrease/
increase by RMB5,892,000).

Fair values

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
financial assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

The following disclosures of fair value measurements use a
fair value hierarchy which has 3 levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

(b)

(c)

BBREREE (&)
)  FIEER

REE A R E B B R
REEREERAE - AEHE
FRRBREZEEE ¥
ARBMESOTISRA R
HERAKEFEER B R
AR EBERRBIER
BRI B0 2 R R T AE AR
1t REBERRF REE Y
AR & B A Sk B R R B R

o

M2010%12A31H " &
FIBHMESHF[TTE I
M wAER2EEHT
1% (20094 : 1%) + 8l
AEBMRAEENBRTEZ S
FEmL  EmOARE
10,809,000 7t (2009 £ : i,
4 /1840 A R # 5,892,000
JT) °

REBIEAMBRRARAIR S
E&%mﬂiﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬂﬁ%

AT TRAREHESR=ERF
BEERZIKE

218 BRAENAEZERD
1HHRE RERE) -

Fo2E: E—EMBEIHEN
oh - BEHBBER (BMER)HHE
E(IRERER) BRSHZHA
Bz

FIE  WIFREATBETIZHIE
SHZEELABEHAZE(BX
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& 3 R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/45 &Ar#55/

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

* UARBTTIT)

&m TR ()

(c) Fair values (Cont’'d)

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December

() 2nfEE)

R2010F12 A31 AN AR EBERE

2010: B2
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
18 $2/E %3 Wy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT AR®ETRT AR®TRT ARETR
Assets BE
Trading securities BEERS
— Listed —BEm 3,060 - - 3,060
— Unlisted —3EEm - 1,000 - 1,000
3,060 1,000 - 4,060
Liabilities aE
Derivative financial liabilities ~ #T4 T E & &
— Warrants — RS - - 14,275 14,275

FR- AEIRBEERRIAE
AENTESRABRIERE
ST HERAABREHDARE
15,977,000 7T °

During the year, decrease in derivative financial liabilities
measured at fair value based on level 3 represented the fair
value gain of approximately RMB15,977,000 recognised in
the profit or loss.

200912 A31 AN AR EERE

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December

2009: "
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE1E F2E F3E FEE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Assets BE
Trading securities BEERS
— Listed —BEm 502 - - 502
— Unlisted —3E kT - 4,017 - 4,017
502 4,017 — 4,519
Liabilities afE
Derivative financial liabilities ~ #T4 T E & &
— Warrants — RS — = 30,252 30,252
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

TURNOVER 6.

(BREFHHS)  UAEBTIT)

L

The principal activities of the Group are property development and
property leasing in the PRC.

Turnover represents income from sales of properties, rental income
and management fee income during the year, net of business tax
and other sales related taxes and discounts allowed. The amount of
each significant category of revenue recognised in turnover during
the year is as follows:

AEENEIZEBHET BN EY XM
BRYERE -

EEFRINAFEANHEDERAR
HEBAREEZEREA(ENKREE
HEEMHERBRBARNH) - RFEE
N EREXBREINSIELGEDE
EEREMT

2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Sales of properties HEMZE 1,066,386 289,360
Rental income HE2WA 53,407 62,059
Management fee income EIEBEWA 13,103 10,950
1,132,896 362,369
Less: Sales return of properties sold R BEYEEERE (313,521) =
819,375 362,369
OTHER NET (EXPENSE)/INCOME 7. HAth (ZH) IR FE
2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFT
(Loss)/Gain on repurchase of Senior Note BRELRE 2 (B1B) ks (2,988) 73,128
Gains/(Losses) on disposal of property, HEYE  BMEKEREZ
plant and equipment i (E518) 625 (12)
Net fair value (losses)/gains on BEFHFNAAE(ER),
trading securities gy (264) 552
Net exchange losses bE 5 5185 58 (1,498) (8,704)
(4,125) 64,964
Hong Long Holdings Limited JE&1=R AR A & 89
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&S &AT#5I) + AARETITR)

OTHER INCOME 8. HAWe A
2010 2009
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARMTT AREFIT
Interest income FEHA 3,095 9,766

Reversal of impairment losses BB ARERERE

on loans and advances - 15,920
Dividend income from unlisted investment REFELEMRERNIRBIA 193 24
Others Hih 3,228 5,361
6,516 31,071

SEGMENT INFORMATION

=

0 #B B R

The Group has two reportable segments as follows:

Property development - this segment develops and sells office
premises, residential and retail properties. Currently all the Group’s
property development activities are carried out in the PRC.

Property leasing — this segment leases retail properties to generate
rental income and to gain from the appreciation in the properties’
values in the long term. Currently the Group’s entire investment
property portfolio is located in the PRC.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that
offer different products and services. They are managed separately
because each business requires different marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in note 3 to the financial statements. Segment
profits or losses do not include finance costs, net change in fair
value of derivative financial instruments and corporate income
and expenses. Segment assets include all current and non-current
assets with the exception of trading securities, deferred tax assets
and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include all trade and
other payables, accruals, receipts in advance and rental and other
deposits.
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C UARBTTIT)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Vg -y =} G 45 41,
(B =B A5

9. SrEbER (%)

Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets and

liabilities

Year ended 31 December 2010
Revenue from external customers

Segment profit
Other information:
Net increase in fair value of
investment properties
Depreciation
Gain on bargain purchase in

respect of business combination
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Impairment loss on prepaid
costs

Impairment losses on other
receivables and loans
and advance

Other receivables written off

Additions to segment
non-current assets

At 31 December 2010
Segment assets

Segment liabilities

BZE2010512A31BLLEE
SREPHA
7B A

HAE#

KEMERAREIBINFR

neE
BREBAGHRERE RS

el )= NG ok 6
R AREEE

HA YR - Bk
B ERE R

HAth R
HIEEDHRIERBEE

®20105612A31H
DEEE

HRE

FHARS s HERE EEREENE

#
Property
development

Sk
RMB’000

ARBTR

752,865
48,693

3,321

123,979
200,801

1177

187,597

4,028

2,817,290

430,207

Property

leasing
YEZih -
RMB’000

ARBTR

66,510
242,758

208,415
548

4,222

29,881

1,688,470

71,389

Total

At
RMB’000
ARBT T

819,375
291,451

208,415

3,869

123,979
200,801

1177

187,597

4,222

33,909

4,505,760

501,596
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& 3 R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&S BATHESN AN EETIIR)

oy #B B ()

FHARS I MEDR  EEREENE

9.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTD) 9.

Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets and

92

liabilities (Cont’d) #(5E)
Property Property
development leasing Total
YR B MEME =
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT
Year ended 31 December 2009 HZE2009F12A31HIEFE
Revenue from external customers HNRZ WA 289,360 73,009 362,369
Segment profit 535 Al 14,464 108,056 122,520
Other information: Hp&ER -
Net increase in fair value of REMERRELINFHE
investment properties - 56,830 56,830
Depreciation and amortisation PreE R 2,247 386 2,633
Additions to segment MEESBHIERBEE
non-current assets 1,534* 112 1,646*
At 31 December 2009 742009F12 A31H
Segment assets DEEE 2,674,657 1,444,714 4,119,371
Segment liabilities DEEE 361,896 64,970 426,866
@ The comparative figure of additions to segment non-current assets @ FEESHBHIERBEENLREIRE

have been restated to conform with the current year's presentation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/%56 AT#55)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)

9. SrEbER (%)

C UARBTTIT)

Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss, assets and

liabilities

Profit

Total profit of reportable segments

Other income and other net income

Depreciation and amortisation

Corporate finance costs

Net change in fair value of derivative
financial instruments

Other corporate expenses

Consolidated profit before tax

Assets

Total assets of reportable segments
Trading securities

Deferred tax assets

Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Total liabilities of reportable segments
Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

Geographical information

pivdl
AIRE D E S N B
E A WA K o % 57
I
EERERA
TTHEERIAARE
H 8
HibdERFAX

gE
RIETIRE
REEDBNEEEE

ERETHIARE
REED BB EAE

All the revenue generated by the Group for the two years ended 31
December 2010 were attributable to customers based in the PRC.
In addition, majority of the Group's non-current assets are located in
the PRC. Accordingly, no geographical analysis is presented.

Revenue from major customers

During the year, revenue derived from the Group's largest customer
which accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue
amounted to approximately RMB466,240,000. This revenue is
attributable to the property development segment. During the year
ended 31 December 2009, no revenue from transactions with a
single external customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group's

total revenue.

RSN

AmE D AR BEREENHER

2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETT
291,451 122,520
1,988 96,035
(101) (121)
(160,934) (87,843)
15,977 (19,994)
(87,247) (45,893)
61,134 64,704
4,505,760 4,119,371
4,060 4,519
13,233 49,947
178,028 382,853
4,701,081 4,556,690
501,596 426,866
175,601 262,552
288,726 231,634
1,958,932 1,914,801
2,924,855 2,835,853

@& R

AREBREZE2010F12 A31 HIEE A

FEELENMARAGRBRTENE
B o ttsh  AEBOORIAERBEE

BN E - Bt - WARZHIHER ST

REETEFFHKA

FRAEEREBEATFEHEKA UL
REBBWAI0% I E)HAEARE
466,240,000 7T ° & A
DEB - B ZE2009F 12 A31HIEFEE © I

-
i

BREAKRBE-RPHNBAELREE

HBKAEI10% A |k ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3 Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

10. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank and other loans
wholly repayable within five years
Interest on Senior Note

Total borrowing costs

Less: Amount capitalised

(BZBAESN - U RKTST)
10 flvE AR
2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
AR AFALIEENEIT

ERREMEERS 212,025 32,105
BREEFE 45,093 86,460
EEK AN B 257,118 118,565
W BN E (96,184) (30,722)
160,934 87,843

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at interest rates ranging
from 5.13% to 20.00% per annum (2009: 4.05% to 10.00% per

annum).

11. INCOME TAX

11.

BEKRAE D AR FENENF513%
%20.00% (20094 : & F| R4.05% &

10.00% ) FLAE AL ©

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income:

Current tax
PRC Corporate Income Tax
— Provision for the year
— Under provision in
respect of prior years

LAT
— Provision for the year
— Over provision in prior years

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal
of temporary differences
Effect of changes in tax rate on
opening deferred tax balances

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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BN IR

I TSR
—FREE
—AEFETREE

R B 43S E R
—FREE
—AEFEBREE

EFEHIR
R =Rz EE D

T 3= S B S H 1)
BIETREROTE

(a) HEREWZRABFIE :

2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
56,255 16,085
60 =
56,315 16,085
37,512 6,683
(151,610) =
(114,098) 6,683
(57,783) 22,768
87,661 10,729
(1,423) =
86,238 10,729
28,455 33,497




Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3z 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&S HH#S) + YA EETIT)

11. INcoME Tax (CONT’D)

11. Fifei (%)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (Cont’d):

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject
to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI. No
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for as the Group
does not have estimated assessable profits in Hong Kong.

The provision for the PRC Corporate Income Tax is based on
a statutory rate of 25% of the taxable profits determined in
accordance with the relevant income tax rules and regulations
in the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2010, except
for certain subsidiaries of the Group located within the
special economic zones in the PRC for which the applicable
preferential tax rate is 22% for 2010. The preferential tax
rate will be gradually increased to 24% and 25% for the
years ending 31 December 2011 and 2012, respectively.
Accordingly, the deferred tax of the Group is recognised
based on tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

LAT is levied on properties developed by the Group for
sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, which under the applicable
regulations is calculated based on the proceeds of sales
of properties less deductible expenditure including lease
charges of land use rights, borrowing costs and all property
development expenditure.

(a)

FEREBRERANTIE(E) -

RERASHEREBRLAS ([&H
BRAES])NRAEMRG - RE
B BRSNS RS R RE R LR
SHEMAEN - ARARERE
BB A ERBOR ) - B
ERBENSTIEL EME -

o B R ETIS R EE T IR RIB R R
HEZE 2010912 A31 BILFEER
RS B8 Bl R AR BIE E #)25%
FERBUEFBETE LR E - AR
EEE TR R R ESE 2 B
RNAIRIN - 5ZEM B AR 2010
FRERBEBIERR22% - BEH
RS RIREZE 2011 FE R 20124F
12A3MBIEFEZRD ERAZE24%
K25% o Et - ANEBHELETIA
HREREEREMNEERIREE
HRZ A E A B R R -

REBHEMBERNYF AR LTI
B{EIEIELA30% 2 60% B RAET
SR B 1 3R ER - RIRE
BB LHIRET TR EYERR
BRI HRFEX (BFE L
REEESH  BERERAEY
EHRFAE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3 Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BATESN - UARETTIT)

11. IncoME Tax (CONT’D) P A5 55% (48)
(b) Reconciliation between income tax and accounting profit (b) REABEFTENFESHESE
at applicable tax rate: FIH R
2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTIT
Profit before tax FRAR AT A 61,134 64,704
Notional tax on profit before tax RIRYIFLE 22%
calculated at 22% (2009: 20%) (2009 % : 20% ) T EHIFRBL AT
in Shenzhen Al B AR IR 13,449 12,941
Effect of changes in tax rate it =B B ERWIRAE R 18
on opening deferred tax balances EHRRTE (1,423) =
Tax effect on LAT deductible AIFE PAS A5 R A A B
for calculation of income THPERER AT R
tax purpose (8,364) -
Tax effect on reversal of BT E DA E AP B L A B A
LAT for calculation in MR E
prior years 22,670 -
Tax effect on change of tax rate TR FIER L 26,644 =
Tax effect of different tax rates BARETH .W% ANCIENE
applied to certain PRC subsidiaries FRENFRIETE 10,303 (703)
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BAEFRURA TR £ (23,975) (17,657)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR IR B IE 2 87,902 30,266
Tax effect of unused tax losses KT AERAREBHEEIED
not recognised THIBR 2 15,366 1,899
LAT AR £ 3R E TR 37,512 6,683
Reversal of LAT provided LATEF E B AR
in prior years T I EF D (151,610) =
Under-provision in prior years D FETRERE 60 =
Others HA (79) 68
Income tax PSRt 28,455 33,497
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3{ R Mz

(BREFHHS)  UARBTIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

12 ZAAE JE i 1) S 2 Thi WAL 2t A A

Amortisation of leasehold land

Depreciation
Less: Amount capitalised

Total amortisation and depreciation

Auditor’s remuneration:
— Current
— Under-provision in prior year
— Other services

Operating lease charges in respect of:
— Sub-leased properties
— Office premises and staff quarters

Cost of inventories sold

Impairment losses on other receivables
and loans and advance

Impairment loss on prepaid land costs

Other receivables written off

Direct outgoings (note a)

Staff costs including directors’
emoluments:
— Salaries, bonus and allowances
— Retirement benefit scheme
contributions

Less: Amount capitalised

Note:

2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
FHE i g - 1,268
e 4,277 2,376
D= N e (307) (890)
3,970 1,486
B R ITEERE 3,970 2,754
ZERATEN < -
— &l 1,106 1,616
—BEFETREE 202 =
— H M AR 520 271
1,828 1,887
LTRIENEETHEERR :
— D 7,531 8,220
—HAERETIES 1,275 1,545
TFEHEEMA 809,237 255,412
A BB R R R E XK
MBI EEE 201,073 =
FEf LA A RE R 1B 1,177 =
H fth FEU RIS 4,222 =
BEEAX (Hita) 27,073 19,491
BTRABEEEHS
—T8& - Sk 43,002 24,723
— RINEFIFTEI 5K
2,010 1,107
45,012 25,830
=N |- (8,121) (6,156)
36,891 19,674

(a) Direct outgoings represent operating lease charges (in respect of

sub-leased properties which are disclosed separately above) and

management fee expenses.

BT

(a) EHEEAXELCBUREMNEEDEL

EHEEAREEEMX -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3 Rz

(BREFHHS)  UAEBTIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S EMOLUMENTS 13. #HENIEE WA
The emoluments of each director are as follows: ZEEMELT ¢
Year ended 31 December 2010 HZ2010F12B31HIEFE
Retirement
Salaries and benefit scheme
allowances Discretionary  contributions
Fees e bonus EBRER Total
Name of director EENE ik KoEEE BETEAL st e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR
Executive directors HITEF
ZENG Yunshu LR - 1,813 45 32 1,890
ZHANG Yijun (Note (g)) RE (M () - 2,012 30 33 2,075
ZHANG Yiyan REX - 1,773 39 9 1,821
ZENG Sheng (Note (f) 2R (=L () - 1,743 39 32 1,814
YE Qingdong 2ER - 855 18 32 905
OUYANG Junxin B (R - 467 9 30 506
LEE Chi Shing Caesar (Note (c)) ~ Z7E¢ (it (c)) 26 - - - 26
CHAN Ting Lai (Note (d)) BRSE (PiE () 26 - - - 26
YEUNG So Mui (Note (e} & (Mt (e) 26 - - - 26
HAN Qinchun (Note (a)) Hak (Mt (a) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE
directors
LI Jun =31 131 - - - 131
CHEUNG Ngai Lam R 131 - - - 131
WANG Fosong BRI 131 - - - 131
LI Wai Keung (Note (b)) FME5 (3 (b)) 103 - - - 103
Total st 574 8,663 180 168 9,585
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13.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONT’ D)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3{ R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (%S &A#ESN A RETIIR)

13. FE% M AE 5 S (87

Year ended 31 December 2009

Salaries and

allowances

Fees e

Name of director =04 ik R
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT AREFT

HZE2009F12 31 HIEFE

Retirement

benefit scheme

Discretionary ~ contributions
bonus BINEA Total
HETEAL SRR w5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTR AREFT

Executive directors HiTEZ

ZENG Yunshu et = 1,200 - 21 1,221

ZHANG Yijun (Note (h)) KRB (MHE () - 116" = 2 118

ZHANG Yiyan REK = 1,040 = = 1,040

ZENG Sheng L - 1,040 - 21 1,061

YE Qingdong EER = 480" = 21 501

OUYANG Junxin BTl - 240" - 14 254

HAN Qinchun BEE - 1,040 = 11 1,051

Independent non-executive BUFHTEE

directors

LI Jun E35 132 = = = 132

CHEUNG Ngai Lam SRERA 132 - - - 132

WANG Fosong T 132 - - - 132
39 5,156 ° - 90 5,642

The comparative figure of directors’ fees have been reclassified
to salaries and allowances to conform with the current year's

presentation.

Resigned on 19 January 2010

Appointed on 16 March 2010

Appointed on 30 September 2010

Appointed on 4 October 2010

Appointed on 5 October 2010

Resigned on 14 January 2011

Re-designated to non-executive director on 31 January 2011

Appointed on 22 December 2009

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments during the year.

EEHeNLEBFEEROEE
Fek2lh NEAFEE5|—
B o

BdsE -

(a) 7201041 A 19 HEHE

(b) 20103 A 16 HERT

(c) 7201049 A30 HEZRT

(d)  72010F10 A4 HEZRT

(e) 12010410 A5 HERT

(f)  M201141 814 BHEHE

()  H2011F1 831 HATAERITE
=

(h) 72009412 A 22 HEER(T

U E|LEHEENAFERERFABNE
ERBE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3 Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &AESN + AN B TIIR)

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D) 13.

o LR B ()

The five highest individuals in the Group during the year included 5
(2009: 4) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments of the remaining individual for
the year ended 31 December 2009 is set out below:

Salaries and allowances e KRN
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIFEIHEER

The emoluments of the individual with the highest emolument is
within the following band:

AEBRAEERZRSHEALBIE
EREE (20094 : 4%) - HB&HRN £
XM - Hep—ZEZE2009F12A31H

IEFEOMSAENT
2009
RMB'000
ARETT
761
11
772

E#p—ZemZemATHMeHEM
T

Number of individuals

EEHE
2009

Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000 7T
(equivalent to approximately RMB880,000) (FHER 4 AR 880,0007T) 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the highest paid individual as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬂ%iﬁ% Ilﬁ‘?I

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BREFHHS)  UARBTIT)

14. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 14. AA G A N AL %)
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company RRAAHEEANELGERNBBEHOAR
includes a loss of approximately RMB154,966,000 (2009: ¥ 154,966,000 JCHIEHE (2009 F © AR
RMB32,579,000) which has been dealt with in the financial ¥ 32,579,000 7T) * ZEIBERA QR
statements of the Company. SRR FRE -
Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company's (loss)/profit ARARRAEFERNZ (EIE), & 8
for the year: M7 HERAT
2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT
Amount of consolidated loss attributable AR RIKI B 75 =
to owners dealt with in the BIEMES AEL
Company'’s financial statements RABBENESHE (154,966) (32,579)
Final dividends from subsidiaries attributable EHE R AR
to the profits of prior financial years, BAVBEREEG R
approved and paid SIESINGIE N RSN - 261,200
Company'’s (loss)/profit for the year NRBAEE (B18),/HH
(note 34(b)) (M5 34(b)) (154,966) 228,621
15. DIVIDENDS 15. B

A special dividend of HK$0.15 per ordinary share, in the form of
cash or in the form of scrip dividend or a combination of these, was
declared on 5 February 2010 and was recognised as distribution on
31 March 2010:

2010 special dividend 2010 FHFRIRRE
Except for the special dividend, the directors do not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010
(2009: nil).

BRREEAR0.15 8 7T AR S 5 S AR
_t

REBMGF NS EREMES ) BRI
B R2010F2 A HEIRIER 20104
3A31 BERAEDIK :
2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT
153,542 _
BrEFRIRR B 4N - ELE 20104 12 A 31 EI
WHFE BTV EZZMNEMARHAR
(20094 : #) o
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3 Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &AESN + AN EETIIR)

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE

16. A

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB37,609,000 (2009: RMB32,699,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,209,568,636 (2009:
1,040,250,000) in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB37,609,000 (2009: RMB32,699,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,210,768,399 (2009:
1,043,984,000), being the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,209,568,636 (2009: 1,040,250,000) in
issue during the year used in the basic earnings per share
calculation plus the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 1,199,763 (2009: 3,734,000) assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of the
share options outstanding during the year.

The Company's outstanding warrants had no dilutive effect
on earnings per share upon deemed exercise during the two
years ended 31 December 2010.

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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(a)

(b)

BRELRBF

BREARFDRERNFEAR
RABEABEEFNOARE
37,609,000 7T (20094 : A R ¥
32,699,000 ) M R R &K F
EREBEITLERAMNEFEY
£01,209,568,636 1% (2009 £ :
1,040,250,000 f% ) 5+ -

EREERF

R #E&FDREAR
Al A ANEMGE R MY
R #37,609,000 7T (2009 4 :
A R #32,699,0007T ) & & i@
% o0 4 F 15 201,210,768,399 %
(2009 4F : 1,043,984,000 % ) (AN
AEEREARBASEMAZE
WE BT g BRI
1,209,568,636 % (2009 £ :
1,040,250,000 A% ) 1N AR & 1T 15
RERN B ARITEZ BRERIERA
NEREEIT 2 ZBRINET I
1,199,763 % (2009 £F : 3,734,000
BR))FHE -

> Do

RER 2 MARITHERRIEERHFAR
BREZE2010F12 A31BILEEM
B ERITERTESTRATE
e -



Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3z 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B3 HHTIES) + UAREITLHTR)
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y3 ~ W Bt
Buildings Furniture,
held for fixtures and
own use Leasehold equipment Motor
#{EEA  improvements RE #£E vehicles Total
BF HE%EE R B @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETT ARETT ARETFT ARETT
Cost B
At 1 January 2009 #®2009F1 418 3,470 4,253 3,821 9,345 20,889
Additions HNE = - 623 1,029 1,652
Disposals HE - - (923) (1,340) (2,263)
At 31 December 2009 and #2009 12 A31H
1 January 2010 % 201061 /18 3,470 4,253 3,521 9,034 20,278
Additions NE 9,634 576 3,154 1,006 14,370
Acquisition of subsidiaries =AU - = 128 2,212 2,340
Disposals HeE (9,634) = (325) (1,631) (11,590)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - (730) (558) (3,275) (4,563)
At 31 December 2010 H2010512A31H 3,470 4,099 5,920 7,346 20,835
Accumulated depreciation Rt E
At 1 January 2009 #®2009F1 418 1,085 2,371 1,984 4,396 9,836
Charge for the year REFHE 193 275 614 1,294 2,376
Disposals HE - - (923) (932) (1,855)
At 31 December 2009 and 200912 A31H
1 January 2010 % 201061 /18 1,278 2,646 1,675 4,758 10,357
Charge for the year AEEHE 278 260 1,426 2,313 4,277
Disposals HE (76) - (282) (1,220) (1,578)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - (600) (335) (1,157) (2,092)
At 31 December 2010 R2010512A31H 1,480 2,306 2,484 4,694 10,964
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2010 R2010512A31H 1,990 1,793 3,436 2,652 9,871
At 31 December 2009 R 200912 A31H 2,192 1,607 1,846 4,276 9,921

During the year, the Group changed the estimated useful lives of
certain furniture, fixtures and equipment from 5 years to 3 years and
motor vehicles from 5 years to 4 years. This change in accounting
estimate has no significant impact on the Group’s results for the
current year and will not have material impact for future periods.

RAFE  REBEBETHE KER
RENGFAIERFHAAFRE=S
FoREANBAFRENSF - ZGaHH
AEPUARERNAFENEETES

2/

FE BB TEHARKBHELEAN

By 486
& o
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3 Rz

(BEEHHS - UNRMETIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

18.

BE Y

At 1 January

Transferred from inventories
Additions

Net increase in fair value

At 31 December

(a)  All of the Group's investment properties held under operating
lease for rental purposes are measured using the fair value
model. The Group's investment properties were revalued as
at 31 December 2010 by an independent firm of surveyors,
Knight Frank Petty Limited, who has among their staff
Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the location and category of properties being
valued, on a market value basis calculated by reference to the
net rental income allowing for reversionary income potential.

(b)  The Group's investment properties at their carrying amounts
are analysed as follows:

In Shenzhen, PRC
- Long leases

— Medium-term leases
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R1A1H
BEAEFE
NE

DA EIEINFER

12 A31H

BRI
—RHMEE
—hHIEE

(a)

(b)

2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREETT
1,376,436 1,319,606
27,776 -
1,473 -
208,415 56,830
1,614,100 1,376,436

REBIREYHEE2010F 12 A 31
AEBBEAEHEGEMENLE R
BEAMPCHRNESIEMEe
BRGBEREEMBLASRMITE
AT AR A ARIEARTS
BESZMAE WA FEIL K& ATE
MERRAE

AEBEREYFRAREES A0
TS &

2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARKETIT
1,571,700 1,335,416
42,400 41,020
1,614,100 1,376,436
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (%S &A#ESN A RETIIR)

18. HEYE (K1)

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT D)

(c)

(d)

The Group leases out certain investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of one to twenty years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. None
of the leases has significant contingent elements as at 31
December 2010.

The Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases from investment properties are

() AEERRBEEHEELMEETIRE
M o MEZEMNYLE BH—
ETFERNRZBEMREER -
i JE B T B R R I Rl 17 - R
201012 A31H - 25HEHT
EERIAEE -

REBRF ARG LHEED
REMEEBRERNSREBRER

receivable as follows: RN :
2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT
Within one year —&FR 36,952 36,967
In the second to fifth years inclusive MEERF (BEMFEEEEAN) 140,203 125,778
After five years hF% 248,905 221,061
426,060 383,806

At 31 December 2010, all investment properties of the Group
were pledged against certain bank and other borrowings
granted to the Group and details of which are set out in note
30(e) to the financial statements.

(d) M20105F12A318 » KEBFE
BEMECIER FAEEE THRT
REMEFERZ A - BREFER
B R 2R M5 30(e) °

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 19. ﬂ'f:/ﬂ\: H:ll %ﬁ%ﬁ{g%

2010 2009

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTF T ARETIT

Unlisted equity securities, at cost (note (a)) FIEETRRE + LA (5 (a) 249,395 =
Unlisted limited partnership, at cost (note (b))  JEETMARAEBEE

12K A (B EE (b)) 2,500 =

251,895 —

Hong Long Holdings Limited JE[& =R E R A =
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/%5 &) + A B TIIR)

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONT’ D)

19. W] fk B S alE A (5)

(a)

In January 2010, the Group entered into a share transfer and
project cooperation agreement (the “Agreement”) to acquire
100% equity interest in Shenzhen Huaxingguang Industrial
Company Limited (“Huaxingguang”), a company established
in the PRC with registered capital of RMB10,000,000 and
is principally engaged in property development. Under the
Agreement, the Group is required to pay RMB25 million to
the vendors and to assume the debt amount of Huaxingguang
of approximately RMB148,758,000. The vendors are also
entitled to share the developed properties in accordance with
the Agreement.

Pursuant to certain supplemental agreements subsequently
entered by the Group, additional consideration of
approximately RMB206,142,000 and a compensation of
approximately RMB 143,000,000 are also required to be paid
by the Group to the vendors.

At 31 December 2010, 22% equity interest in Huaxingguang
was transferred to the Group. However, the Group was
required to pledge its 22% equity interest in Huaxingguang in
favour of the vendors as performance guarantee for the full
payment of the consideration. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the Group has no significant influence over
Huaxingguang as the remaining 78% of the issued capital
is controlled by a third party independent of the Group. The
Group has no representative on Huaxingguang's board of
directors and has no right to appoint or remove a director to
the board of directors until the Group obtained 55% of the
equity interest in Huaxingguang. In view of the above, the
directors of the Company concluded that the Group has no
significant influence over Huaxingguang.

At 31 December 2010, the Group’s capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of Huaxingguang amounted to
approximately RMB273,505,000.

The Group's investment in a limited partnership, established
in the PRC, was set up with the investment objective of
investing in real estate in the PRC.

At 31 December 2010, the Group’s capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the unpaid capital contribution
to the limited partnership amounted to approximately
RMB22,500,000.

The Group's available-for-sale financial assets are stated at cost less
any impairment losses at the reporting date as these investments
do not have a quoted price in an active market and the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is considered so significant that the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably.

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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(a)

M2010F 18 » "EBFIY— B
BiheEERIBE A ERE (&
F) o NKERY mEEEEES
RAawl ([EFEEE ) 2P - EH
BRHBERY  dfERAEARE
10,000,000 * EEHX =W EH
%o REZHE  AREEREA
St AR 25,000,000 7T 3 AHE
1 (75 49 AR 5 148,758,000
T BANAEBEZBZERZAER
BYE o

BREAEBRELBIT NS THTH
F o AKBEARE S X HEIM
BH AR 206,142,000 7T & i 1&
# AR 143,000,000 7T °

MR20105F12 8310 #FEEEH
22% WREE EEEAREE o AT
REBABNE S B2 NERESR
EH22% BRIEEBEH I HRER
BHIRE - ARREFERA AL
EHEEEYESATE N FAA
BT 78% HI B B TR A B L A AR
EBME =S o AEBERER
EBHNEESWERER  TEEZT
URRETSEST  HEAKER
SEEER)S5%MIE - ET LA EAT
o ARBEERE  AEBEYE
FEWEERNFEN -

K20105612A318 - A& EE
ST AMBRINR & B TS R M 22
BELBENERHAIORARS
273,505,000 7T °

AEBERTDARENPEREBENKR
EEEMBREREREREE (R
BRI ©

MR2010F12 A31H » "EEZET
HERRGEVBERERARBRE
BLENRNTHEELBENER
F 45 AR 22 500,000 7T °

REENAHE S REERRARE
MREBERREBMRIE  BRZE
REWEEBRMSO®RE BSERAR
BERFBERRARKN  BERARRE
ERREDAEBEAFAE -
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20. INVENTORIES 20. #&
2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Properties for future development M KR PR 3
and under development for sale RERBPYIZE 1,058,282 1,888,556
Completed properties held for sale FERENE R Ty 724,111 163,677
1,782,393 2,042,233
(@)  The analysis of carrying value of leasehold land included in (a) BIEEHBENRKFEERERESD
properties for future development and under development for MERFELENERIYEANT
sale and completed properties held for sale is as follows: HETHERAEITHT :
2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
In PRC ==}
— Long leases —RHHEE 311,824 363,441
— Medium-term leases —hEIfEE 3,959 4,050
315,783 367,491
Included above are amounts totalled approximately LB EEEHNOARE
RMB15,288,000 (2009: nil) representing lease payment for 15,288,000 70 (2009 4F : #& ) « A1
land use rights of certain pieces of land in the PRC. The Group B B B A TR LAY 1t (5 A 4
is in the process of applying for the land use right certificates W ERIE - NEE ERE LB
subject to the approval from the relevant PRC authorities. AR AR E RS
Based on the legal opinion obtained, the directors of the o RBFESHEZER  AA
Company are of the opinion that the Group is the beneficial AIESERRNEE R T HFEREY
owner of the land use rights and is entitled to lawfully and EmEAA  WHEREEREAR
validly use these land use rights. 25 TR A o
(b)  The amount of properties for future development and under (b) TEHIMBE—FLAET SRS

development for sale expected to be recovered after more
than one year is analysed as follows:

Properties for future development M KR PR R B
and under development for sale MERPYIE

Apart from the above, all inventories are expected to be
recovered within one year.

EARARAERBEEFVENSED
T :

2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT ARETT
780,021 634,945

B Eimsh - BT K et B
—ERBE -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &AESN + AN EETIIR)

20.

INVENTORIES (CONT’D)

20. #& (#)

(c)

At 31 December 2010, certain inventories were pledged
against bank loans granted to the Group and details of which
are set out in note 30(e) to the financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, included
in the additions to the Group's properties for future
development and under development for sale is an amount of
approximately RMB240,217,000 which was acquired through
acquisition of a subsidiary, Boshing Investments Limited.
Boshing Investments Limited and its subsidiary, Chaohu
Boshing Tourism Development Company Limited”, are
principally engaged in property development. The directors
are of the opinion that the acquisition of subsidiaries was
in substance acquisition of assets, instead of acquisition
of businesses, and therefore was not accounted for as a
business combination.

Certain completed properties held for sale of the Group with
carrying amount of approximately RMB18,426,000 were
acquired through bidding at a public auction in 2007 pursuant
to a court ruling. During the year ended 31 December 2009, a
third party made a claim that it also acquired these properties
at another public auction pursuant to a court ruling. The Group
is applying a court order to revoke the above court ruling. The
case is currently being handled by the Group's legal adviser.
Based on the legal opinion obtained, the directors are of
the opinion that the Group is the beneficial owner of these
properties and should be able to obtain the title documents of
these properties.

For identification purposes only.
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(c)

(e)

MN20105 128318 5T F &
MR EA S MERBITERNEA
o AR B IS 3RER MTEES0(e) ©

®N #H 220106128318 It F
B AEEHEENRKEFAE R
EERAMEENBEHNARE
240,217,0007C * %3 E J15 BUK
E—ENBARBEAREER AR
MR - EFREABR AT REHM
BARENERIREREER AR
FTEREMERE - FFRA K
EHBAREERAKEEE - M3k
IR TS - B EIRER A HA
E-Eo

AEEFEHENE TYENRKRE
BEXHAARE18,426,0007T © JoiE
BIRBAR A E R 2007 £ A FH
HEREZMES - RE E2009
F12A31BLEE  F=HER
HIVREERZEER S —2RAMBE
PEESZEME - AEBIERE)
BT < M EaUARR A E - WERMA
RERASEEEZEMERE - BB
EBREERER  ESRBELEH
BZEMENEREAA - WEER
BRZEMER R -
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

21. HEWCHR R S I Aib E WGk

Trade receivables (note (a)) FEULAR K (FI7E (a)
Other receivables (note (b)) b FEUGR (BT (b))
Loans and advances (note (c)) BER KRB (KT ()
Prepaid land costs (note (d)) TEfT LA AN (BT EE (d))
Prepayments and deposits A RizE

(a)  Trade receivables are mainly arisen from leasing and sales

of properties. Rental receivables from tenants are due on
presentation of invoices and no credit terms for sales of
properties unless otherwise specified in the underlying
agreements with the purchasers.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on invoice
date for property leasing and delivery date for property sales,
is as follows:

0 to 3 months 0E3fEA

More than 3 months but less HBim3EAE R 6EA
than 6 months

More than 6 months but less HBim6EAEILRK1F
than 1 year

Over 1 year BB 1 F

2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT ARBFT

326,940 82,087
2,445 110,020
157,046 228,031
232,320 85,596
50,633 277,381
769,384 783,115

(a) MRERETERAMEEERH
& RUEPHEESNE AERKE
H - MEHEETECEEHR B8
RZ B HERERERIRI -

EWERR IR FHENEZB K
MEHEERN BHNERE DTN
T~

2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT AR®ETT

317,528 81,584
683 2
5,096 6
3,633 495
326,940 82,087
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

(BREFHHS)  UAEBTIT)

21. MEWCHR 3 S I b E WGk (A1)

(a) (Cont'd)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables which were past due

but not impaired is as follows:

0 to 3 months

More than 3 months but less
than 6 months

More than 6 months but less
than 1 year

Over 1 year

The above receivables relate to a number of independent
purchasers and tenants. In respect of the trade receivables
arose from sales of properties, the directors of the Company
consider that these receivables would be recovered and no
allowance was made against these past due receivables.
Regarding the rental receivables, rental deposits were held as
collateral over the balances. As such, the directors consider
that no allowance for impairment is necessary in respect of

these balances.

(b) Included in other receivables is an amount due from a major (b)
construction contractor of approximately RMB167,597,000
(2009: RMB90,625,000). During the year ended 31 December
2010, a full allowance for impairment (2009: nil) was made for

estimated irrecoverable.
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(a) (#&)

B M B W R OBUE A R U AR SR AR R

TR -
2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTIT
0ZE318A 42,711 59,947
BE3EAEIN6EA
683 2
A6 EARELRF
5,096 6
FBE1F 3,633 495
52,123 60,450

s EER

TEHIR(E RS -

bt RIS KA T B B T )
P - LI EERE S K EUAR K
S % e R IRRE S
W [el - S A % S A e LR
EHLBHE - AR EEEE - el
ENERBBRERRMSEA -
bt BEERRAUEBEEZFHRE

Hi e R R ERKEZEZE
EBERIELH AR 167,597,000
J0(20094F : A R 90,625,000
JE) ° B E2010612 31 A L&

EER G TR E S BEAEEN
SRAEEE (2009 4F « £) o
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

(BRZEATES) - UARETIT)

21. MEWCHR R S I b RE WGk (%)

(c) Included in loans and advances are amounts of approximately:

(iii)

RMB80,349,000 (2009: RMB80,349,000) made to a
business associate that is unsecured, interest-bearing
at 110% of 1 year RMB benchmark lending rate as
determined from time to time by the People’'s Bank of
China per annum. This loan receivable was past due
by 24 months up to 31 December 2010. Apart from
full allowance for impairment on interest receivable of
approximately RMB13,476,000, no other impairment
was provided against the principal of approximately
RMB80,349,000. In March 2011, this principal sum
was fully repaid.

RMB40,000,000 (2009: RMB40,000,000) made to a
business associate that is secured, interest-bearing
at 110% of 1-3 year RMB benchmark lending rate
as determined from time to time by the People’s
Bank of China per annum and interest receivable of
approximately RMB4,126,000. These loan and interest
receivables will be due on 16 April 2011.

RMB50,000,000 (2009: nil) made to a business
associate that is unsecured and interest-free. In
March 2011, approximately RMB30,000,000 was
repaid. In view of the uncertainty of the recovery
of the outstanding amount, the directors consider
that it is appropriate, to make an allowance for
impairment on the remaining balance of approximately
RMB20,000,000.

(d)  The Group's prepaid land costs comprise the following:

(i)

Included in prepaid land costs are amounts totalled
of approximately RMB 134,506,000 (2009: nil) relating
to partial payment of land costs for acquisition of land
use rights in the PRC upon successfully bidding at land
auctions conducted by the PRC government and the
related preparatory costs. At 31 December 2010, the
relevant purchase agreements of land use rights are
yet to be entered by the Group.

©) HTTFIALHERRBRT - K

==l

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

EBHBALNERER
K H A R #80,349,000 7T
(20094 :A R ¥ 80,349,000
JL) c BERE - EmHEA
RRTEETHETHN —
FHARBEEREERNE
1M0%FT B - ZERIWE R
HZE20105 12831 HE®
H124 18 B o Bk FEUF] B 4
AR #13,476,000 T E1E
R EREN  MERAS
4 N\ R #80,349,000 TTE
BEEME - 2011 F3A8 -
SRS ORHBEE -

EBBBATHNERRD
4 A R # 40,000,000 70
(20094 :A R 40,000,000
L) BEERA - ZPEA
RBTEFIHEEN—=
= FHARBEEREAERE
110% &t 8 » EURF B4
B ARBA126,0007T © %
BER R ERF BRI 2011F
4 16 BEIH -

EBEBEBEALTHERLD
4 A R # 50,000,000 7T
(20094 : &) + BERKH R
BB R2011FE3/ " HHA
R#30,000,000 TEEE -
B8 T Ut 0] 5K {8 32 A B N AE
ElE BEERABEERLE
4 AR #20,000,000 TIEL
BB -

(d  AEEREMTHEABEET

(i)

FFABM LR ARNS &
#4 AN R 134,506,000 7T
(20094 : &) T3 3% & A K
W ZERBEBA L ER
8 B b 5 PR i S 5 B0 3D
DU AR R B E o B
F o N2010F 128318 -
ANEE @ 18 R 5T S AR B Lt
REEERZ -
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

21. MEWCHR a3k S I Al E WOk (A1)

(d) (Cont'd)

(i) Included in prepaid land costs are amounts
totalled of approximately RMB97,814,000 (2009:
RMB85,596,000) related to prepayment for land
and relocation costs in respect of potential land
development projects in the PRC.

22. (CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES

(d) (#&)

(i) EATEMLHEENE LY
A R #97,914,000 7T (2009
F: NR#85,596,0007T)
T% RABERBEEE T
FETE B W TENT L i RIFE
B o

29. MEBRAY

(a) Included in the consideration receivables is an amount of
approximately RMB68,927,000, arising from the disposal of
the Group's subsidiary, Huizhou Dayawan Yonghao Company
Limited* during the year. This consideration receivable was
due on 30 December 2010 and was fully settled in January
2011.

(b)  Also included in the consideration receivables is an amount
of RMB85,000,000 arising from the disposal of the Group's
subsidiary, Huizhou Yintaida Company Limited". This

consideration receivable will be due on 10 May 2011.

* For identification purposes only.

23. TRADING SECURITIES

(a) REHERERELHARES,927,000
T RBEDRERAFELER
SEMBARALREKREXAR
AR o ZEWREER2010F 12
A30BEH# - WEMR2011F1 A%
&8 o

(b) FEMKREINEIEARSS5,000,000
T R BEDRERNEE L EHE
ARIBEMTRREEEBR QA ©
ZEWAREER2011F5 81085
5o

2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREETT

Listed securities, outside Hong Kong, BREIIETES (RARE)
at fair value 3,060 502
Unlisted fund, at fair value FELEMES (RARME) 1,000 4,017
4,060 4,519

The fair values of listed securities are based on quoted market bid
prices.

The fair value of unlisted fund is established by reference to the
price quoted by fund administrator.

112 Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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24. PLEDGED DEPOSITS

24. /I

K

(BREFHHS)  UAEBTIT)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Included in pledged deposits are:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Deposits of approximately RMB8,353,000 (2009:
RMB10,979,000) pledged with certain banks as
guarantee deposits for mortgage loan facilities granted
by the banks to purchasers of the Group's properties.

Deposits of approximately RMB1,078,000 (2009:
RMB924,000) pledged with banks securing the
Group's bank loans as set out in note 30(e).

At 31 December 2009, deposits of approximately
RMBG61,056,000 pledged for purchase consideration
payable to a former equity holder of a subsidiary. The
pledge was released in 2010.

At 31 December 2009, deposits of approximately
RMB610,000 pledged for the payment of retention
monies to a construction contractor.

The pledged deposits are denominated in RMB. Conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.

At 31 December 2010, the pledged deposits are subjected to
floating interest rate ranged from 0% to 0.36% (2009: 0% to
0.36%) per annum.

(a) AEHEEREFREHE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

B4 4 AR 8,353,000
(20094 AR 10,979,000
) ZEBRE D AETR
TERIAEEWEE H IR
BEFBREEARERSE
AN EIRIT o

B—EHRHIFE30(e) IERTT
BERmMERFRITOAAR
1,078,000 7T (2009 FF A R
¥ 924,000 70 ) K977 3K °

720094 12 A31H - 3L/
T KB AR — R AT F
BAZBEREREMEROA
R ¥ 61,056,000 TT1F K © %
BB R 2010 FEEMR o

2009412 A318 » % —
FRREEADEIZMHIR
BREMEROAEARE
610,000 T F 5K+ LAER
REBFE -

(o) EFEFEFAAREE - AREX
HASNEE 78 8 <F P B SN B 2 (R M5 B
MEE - EERMNETERE

(c) M2010%F12A31H  EREFERIZ
FEFZENF0%ZE0.36% (20094 :
0% Z0.36% ) KZEFIEFT B o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&S BATHESN AN EETIIR)

25. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 25.

RAT R B & K iR

The carrying amounts of the Group's bank and cash balances are
denominated in the following currencies:

RMB AR
United States Dollars X7
Hong Kong Dollars ABIT

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

At 31 December 2010, bank balances of approximately
RMB90,096,000 (2009: RMB212,984,000) are subjected to floating
interest rate ranged from 0% to 0.36% (2009: 0% to 0.36%) per

AEBRTRRSEBNREEA T
EHEE

2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREETT

30,547 155,898
60,739 55,173

1,501 5,879
92,787 216,950

AR B HNE 7858 5T p B SN BE R T A6
PIRAELE ~ EERMEERRTE °

MN2010812 8318 RITHEHH A
R % 90,096,0007T (20094 : A R #&
212,984,0007T ) & & F| & > F0% =
0.36% (20094 : 0% Z0.36% ) ;2 B F

annum.
b N
26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND ACCRUALS 26. MEATHRZK ~ 3Ll E £ a3k B FE R
#H
2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Trade payables (note (a)) FERTARR (FI7E (a) 108,298 33,306
Amounts due to directors (note (b)) FERTEEFIE (i (b)) 3,540 777
Other creditors and accrued charges HEiE R RIERER 266,448 413,698
378,286 447,781
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B35 HHTIES) + UA EEITTHR)

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND ACCRUALS (CONT’D) 96. FEATHEZK ~ Hfth JE A] 3k M TE 2
2 (4)
(a)  The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: (a) ERERIFRRITET :
2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTR ARBFT
0 - 3 months or on demand 0ZE A ASIREK 100,226 33,306
More than 3 months but less BB 3E BN 6EA
than 6 months 2,748 -
More than 6 months but less HEE6MEAE D1 F
than 1 year 592 -
Over 1 year i@ F 4,732 -
108,298 33,306
(o)  The amounts due to the directors of the Company, Mr. ZENG (b) ENAAREEEERAEERGE
Yunshu and Mr. ZENG Sheng (resigned on 14 January 2011) SE(R2011F1 A48 BTN
of approximately RMB3,100,000 and 440,000 respectively IS B # AR 3,100,000 7T &
(2009: amount due to Mr. ZENG Sheng of approximately 440,000 7T (2009 4F : FEAT & B 5t
RMB777,000) are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ERRIBLH AR T777,000T) &
demand. KR R B RIRERKER -
27. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 27. TR

Receipts in advance represented sales proceeds received from
purchasers in connection with the Group's pre-sales of properties
and prepaid rental from tenants of the Group's investment
properties. As at 31 December 2010, all receipts in advance are
expected to be settled within one year. At 31 December 2009,
receipts in advance of RMB15,271,000 were expected to be settled
after more than one year and the remaining receipts in advance
were expected to be settled within one year.

BRERREAESEEBENERES
WEHHEEMSRkEAEBREME
MEPKWERKMERNES - R20105F12
A31H  AEEKRERBHN—FALE
& - 2009412 A31 8 » FEKERZRF A
R#¥15,271,000 THEF R —FREH -
A H B ER R TE AR — F N E

o
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3 Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EHHES  UAARRTIR)

28. RENTAL AND OTHER DEPOSITS 28. & RH A4
Included in rental and other deposits were approximately HEREMZSHRIE—EEER—F
RMB9,633,000 (2009: RMB8,604,000) which are expected to be B1EE AL AR 9,633,0007TH 2 IE
settled after more than one year. All other rental and other deposits (20094 : AR#8,604,0007T) ° FTAH
are expected to be settled within one year. HHEERHEMIESHTERR —FAERE -
29. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 29 ﬁfﬁi%ﬁﬂﬁ 1§

Warrants (note 30(b)) R HERE (MI5E30(b))

The Warrants, representing the fair value of the right to subscribe
for the Company’s ordinary share at the applicable exercise price,
is determined by an independent valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited,
using the Binomial option pricing model.

Fair value of the Warrants and key assumptions are as follows:

Fair value at measurement date STEHENARE
Share price ]

Exercise price 11118

Expected volatility LN
Expected dividends TEEAAR 2
Risk-free interest rate 1 [\ g 1| 2

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT

14,275 30,252

RiEE GEERNATRERTEERER
REEBROENNRAE) BBLEE
EhEEERFERARARA —BEXH
EEBREGHHE -

REEENAABEREEZRRADD
2010 2009
HK$0.2071& 7t HK$0.4249 7T

HK$1.13B7T  HK$1.05/87T
HK$1.68B 7T  HK$1.68/E 7T

59% 89%
0% 0%
0.53% 0.98%
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5 GHT#55) + AN RETIR)

30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 30. SRAT M H A &
2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETT ARBFT

Bank loans IRITER
— Secured —HEH 1,030,150 1,614,977
- Unsecured — 400,000 72,000
1,430,150 1,586,977
Other loans HaER
— Secured —HEH 95,000 —
- Unsecured — 410,280 =
505,280 -
Senior Note BRERIE
— Unsecured (note (b)) — IR (M1EE (b)) - 182,657
1,935,430 1,769,634
(a)  The bank and other borrowings are repayable as follows: (a) EEENRITEREMEENT :
2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Bank and other loans IRITREME R
On demand or within one year REREF—FREE 823,230 375,800
In the second year FF 621,600 675,177
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-ZRF(EFERF) 185,000 194,400
After five years hFEE 305,600 341,600
1,112,200 1,211,177
1,935,430 1,586,977
Senior Note (note (b)) B (M5 () - 182,657
1,935,430 1,769,634
Less: Amount due for B 128 A RSB R EIEIZRIE
settlement within 12 FERBERE)
months (shown under
current liabilities) (823,230) (375,800)
Amount due for settlement 128 A& & E M EIEF0E
after 12 months 1,112,200 1,393,834
Hong Long Holdings Limited JE[& =R E R A = 117
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &AESN + AN EETIIR)

30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

30. SRAT M AR £ (A7)

(b)

Senior Note

Pursuant to the offering memorandum of the Company dated
20 September 2007, the Company issued 900 units, each
comprised US$100,000 senior notes (collectively referred to
as the “Senior Note"”) and 81,000,000 nil-paid warrants (the
"Warrants”) for a principal amount totalling US$90,000,000.
The Senior Note, due on 3 October 2012, was interest-
bearing at 12.5% per annum at issue and interests were
payable semi-annually in arrears. As of 1 January 2010, the
Group had repurchased 600 units of the Senior Note with a
principal amount of US$60,000,000. During the year ended
31 December 2010, the Group further repurchased 300 units
of the Senior Note with a principal amount of US$30,000,000
(representing 100% of the total outstanding principal amount
of the Senior Note) at a price equal to 101% of the principal
amount thereof.

Detachable from the Senior Note, each warrant may be
exercised from the date of issue up to 2 October 2012 at an
initial exercise price, subject to certain conditions of reset and
adjustment, of HK$3.36 per ordinary share of the Company.
On 20 September 2008, the exercise price of the Warrants
has been reset to HK$1.68, being 50% of the initial exercise
price of HK$3.36 (note 29).

The carrying amounts of the Group's bank and other
borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

RMB AR
United States Dollars X7

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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(b)

BRERE

B AR QTR 20079 A20HET
MR BEEETE - AR EE(T00
BB MEBLEEE(GRAIBER
#1) (ZEENRA 100,000 X TH
BEZ1E) % 81,000,000 {3 K&
RIREE ([RBREE]) - ~eBE
#£90,000,0003 T © BEZER
201210 A3 A B H - EF =R
12.5% &t 8 - ABEFEMFE—K -
R2010F1 818 AEBEEER
600 EEMMELRE  AEHEA
60,000,000 3% 7T » A&, = 20104
12A3MBIEFE - NEBEE—F
BRIRENAELE101% N EREDR
300 BB MELEE  A&EA
30,000,000 7t (FHE R ELFE
REERNSETEH100%) °

HELRZESH  BHRBRES
AT EITHERE2012F10H2
B BOSTEE(ZETEER
ABZIGHRR) BRARR L@
[%3.36 % JT R 88 ° 20089 A
208 - RBRIEFNITHEERETE A
1.68% 7T « BN¥ A 1T(E(E3.36 57T
#50% (FizE29) -

AEERITREAMEERREETD
AT E#EHE

2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
1,655,150 1,476,477
280,280 293,157
1,935,430 1,769,634




Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3z 3R Mz

30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

C UARBITIT)

N G 45 4/,
(B =B HE5)

30. SRAT S AR (A7)

(d)

(e)

The following table details the interest rate profile of the

Group’s bank and other borrowings at the reporting date:

Fixed rate borrowings:
Bank and other loans
Senior note

Variable rate borrowings:
Bank and other loans

Interest-free borrowings:

BEEMEES :
RITREMER
BEZR

FERREE
RITREMER

REMEE

Effective
interest rate

BERA=
%

5.84-20.00
N/ATE

5.13-8.45

N/ATEE

At 31 December 2010, the Group's asset pledged as security

for the Group's bank and other borrowing are as follows:

Investment properties
Inventories
Pledged deposits

BREME
&
AR

At 31 December 2010, included in bank and other
borrowings are certain loans amounted to approximately
RMB1,258,622,000 (2009: RMB1,077,000,000) guaranteed
by a director of the Company, Mr. ZENG Yunshu and/or a
resigned director of the Company, Mr. ZENG Sheng.

At 31 December 2010, included in bank and other
borrowings are certain loans amounted to approximately
RMB150,000,000 (2009: nil) secured by certain certificates of
land use rights of lands owned by a disposed subsidiary of the

Group.

(d) TRFMLREBRBITREMEER
s B ER R =ARR
2010 2009
Effective
interest rate
-l ES
RMB’000 % RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
209,472 10.00-11.00 510,500
- 17.8 182,657
1,525,150 4.86-9.07 1,076,477
200,808 - -
(e) M2010%F12A31 8 - AAKEIR

TREMEEMEANASEEE
LI

2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT ARBFT
1,614,100 1,264,000
682,687 643,778
1,078 924
2,297,865 1,908,702

M2010612A8318  R{T K HE
EERERARR —FESEEE
BEER/KARR —BHFHEES
DEBEEERERNE TERNARE
1,258,622,000 7T (20094 : A &
#1,077,000,000JT.) °

M2010612A8318 * R{T K HE
e ERENASEE HERNBEA
AR KA T 1t F A B IR 3 Y
HETEFRH AR 150,000,000 7T
(20094 : #) °

Hong Long Holdings Limited JE[& =R E R A =
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

(BEEHHS - UNRMETIT)

30. SRAT M AR £ (A7)

(e)

(Cont'd)

At 31 December 2009, included in bank and other borrowings
are bank loans of approximately RMB200,000,000 drawn
down by a subsidiary and secured by the ordinary shares of
the Company held by the Company’s former ultimate holding
company, Grand Prosperity Limited. The subsidiary was
disposed of during the current year.

As at 31 December 2009, included in bank and other
borrowings is a bank loan of approximately RMB110,500,000
in relation to credit note issued by the Company secured by
the ordinary shares of the Company held by the Company's
former ultimate holding company. This loan was fully repaid

during the current year.

31. DEFERRED TAX

(e)

(#)

R2009%F 12 A31H @ R17 K &
fh e EBRiEH — M E A FRR
I PAZR A R AT AR ZRR A 7] Grand
Prosperity Limited A HA Q&
TBERERANBRTERNARKE
200,000,000 7T ° %M B A E E R
REEHE -

2009412 A31 8 » $RITREAM
BB BIEAKRA AR SRR IEAR A 7]
BENARREEKREFESRA
RABITHEEZEERNRITERL
AR%110,500,0007C - ZEKE
RANFEEREE -

31. EHRERLIH

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

during the year are as follows:

KRG FIBAN R AR R ELE IR (B
E)/BEBARFANEHMT :

Depreciation
allowances  Temporary Temporary
Revaluation of inexcess  differences Fair value Total differences  Capitalisation
investment of related arisingfrom  adjustmenton  deferedtax  arisingfrom of interest  Total deferred
properties  depreciation  deferredrent  inventories liabilities LAT expenses  tax assets
BUERRE RegTEe BEN  BERE  BREtELE  EALY BEE
EfRENE KAEGRE  WEWER  QAEER BEME SERNERER HExH EEtE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
AR ARETn  ARETn ARETR  ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2009 1200951418 205,304 3903 - - 209207 (24573) (13676) (38249
Charged/(Credited) to profitor loss /(A R 14.208 4146 4013 - 047 - [11,698) (11,69)
At31 December 2009 RN095124318 219512 8049 4013 - 231,634 (24573) (25374 (4994)
Effectof changes n taxrate e SR Lt
on apening deferred fax BEERELR
alances to profit o loss /8 - - - - - - (1423 [1.429)
Acquistion of subsidiaries WENBLA - - - 81,09 81,09 - - -
Charged/(Credited) to profit or loss /(A R 52,105 4484 503 - 57,09 20826 9743 30,569
Disposal of subsidares HENELR - - - (81,096) 181,096) 13% 748 7568
At 31 December 2010 RU0E12E318 me 12533 4576 - 28,126 (3612) (9,621) (13,233)

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B3 HHTIES) + UAREITLHTR)

31. DErERRED TAX (CONT’D) 31. WIEHLIE ()
At 31 December 2010, the Group had unused tax losses of MW2010F12A31 8 AEBMAARSHH
approximately RMB57,960,000 (2009: RMB12,100,000) available T8 B5 18 49 A R % 57,960,000 7T (2009
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been £ AR¥ 12,100,000 7T) A K K R
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. il M| I N+ D N = 2 G 2 :3
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of RMB57,960,000 RELEHBEE - st AKRERBIEEE
(2009: RMB12,100,000) will expire after five years from the year of HE 18 A R #57,960,0007T (20094 = A
assessment they relate to. R# 12,100,000 7) # & FTid R RF R FE
BAFEEM
32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. A
Number of shares Share capital
UL s
2010 2009 2010 2009
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ik Thn Thn
Authorised: EE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREEV ATHEER 30,000,000,000 30,000,000,000 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREEV ATHEER
At 1 January RA1R 1,040,250,000  1,040,250,000 10,403 10,403
Issue of shares Bk (a) 80,000,000 - 800 -
(b 25,000,000 - 250 -
c) 19,000,000 - 190 -
(o) 66,421,384 - 664 -
At 31 December MM2A31R 1,230,671,384  1,040,250,000 12,307 10,403
2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARETT
RMB equivalent ARKEER 11,971 10,296
Notes: B s

(a) On 11 January 2010, the Company issued and allotted 80,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at an issue price of HK$0.95
per ordinary share to settle an upfront fee of approximately
HK$76,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB66,886,000) in
relation to credit note issued by the Company. The premium on issue
of shares amounted to approximately RMB66,182,000 was credited
to the Company’s share premium account. The new shares rank pari
passu in all respects with the existing shares of the Company.

MR2010F1 118 © AR Al A &1T
B85 MR EmAR0.95% Jr 3 17 Kk BE &
80,000,000 /i & A& HI {& 0.01 %8 JT K I
AR LWEREERARRITNEESR
15 1T 22 46 WO AT A 8 A 49 76,000,000 75 70
(HBENH AR 66,886,0007T) ° 1T
P81 B0 % 18 40 A R 1 66,182,000 7L E 51
AR ARG 5% B - FRDERE
FEEKRARRE RN ZEERSEF -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &AESN + AN B TIIR)

32. SHARE CAPITAL (CONT’D)

32. JEA (%)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(b)

(c)

On 11 January 2010, the Company issued and allotted 25,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at an issue price of HK$0.95 per
ordinary share to an independent third party for settlement of an
advance received of approximately RMB20,835,000. The premium
on issue of shares amounted to approximately RMB20,615,000
was credited to the Company’s share premium account. The new
shares rank pari passu in all respects with the existing shares of the

Company.

On 9 February 2010, 19,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
were issued and allotted in relation to exercised share options
pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company at the
exercise price of HK$0.60 per share for a total cash consideration
of approximately HK$11,400,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB10,005,000) of which approximately HK$190,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB167,000) was credited to share capital and the
balance of approximately HK$11,210,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB9,838,000) was credited to share premium account. The new
shares rank pari passu in all respects with the existing shares of the
Company. Approximately RMB14,754,000 was transferred from

capital reserve to share premium account.

On 31 March 2010, the Company issued and allotted 66,421,384
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at an issue price of HK$1.29 each in
lieu of cash for special dividend pursuant to the scrip dividend circular
dated 3 March 2010. The new shares rank pari passu in all respects
with the existing shares of the Company.

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maximise the return to the shareholders through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance.

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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FiEE - ()
(b)  R2010F1 8118  ARRIUEITES

= EN

% @A 0.95 BTl — R IBULFE =77 5
7 % Bt 8 25,000,000 iR G AR EI(E0.01 %
TR EBE  NENBRBROARKE
20,835,000 7C ° 1T M AREHIAR
# 20,615,000 SLE st AR RIAOAR 17 )4
B - RO ERE T AEARFRE
B = E RS -

201082 A9A + A7 19,000,000
% 3 378 A% BRI AR 8 AN 1 ] B AR AR T &I DAAT
FE{E R AR 0.60 5 01T {50 B AR #E 1 T A B¢
TRECE - 43R € REX R 11,400,000
BT (FHERAE AR 10,005,0007T)
H A #190,0008 L (HBERH AR
#167,0007T ) B 5t AR A - M Eh
#11,210,000% T(HERH AR
9,838,0007T) B &t AR BRI (5 /&
B - IR EME T EEAARBEER
MNERRZER - K AR 14,754,000
TEHREARBEESRERMRER -

201063 A318 * ARARIUETES
f&1.2978 T 81T R BL % 66,421,384 R &
AREE0.01 B LM LB - RIBERHA
20104 3 A3 HHILARRAR S5t 8I3@ KR
BRBIREBNRE - MRHEMEHE
BEARNRIREGRNZRRZREF]

=g

AEEEREANEZEBERRELRE
BORELERN  EBEDEBE
Bz TERKRRBEREA@ME -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B SEAHS - AN RETIIT)

32. SHARE CAPITAL (CONT’D) 32. JBEAS (%)
Capital management (cont’d) EAREE ()
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital NEERE R TE RS EEREHETR
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder ARER  UESRSRKREDFRIGER TR
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and REHENREEEKTEERITRE AR
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position, TSR A AT R R AR PR 2 R ERAS 1 - I
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes EECERENSE(CHEREEELA
in economic conditions. o
The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of the net REBANFEEHERE R AEEER
debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt as HEAEHE - AUAEEBFEAERTE
total debt (which includes trade and other payables, and accruals; ARaE(EeRENERREMER
derivative financial liabilities and bank and other borrowings), less HERERER TESBEaERETR
pledged deposits; and bank and cash balances. HEMEE)BREEATRAEBRITRAS
K o
During 2010, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from R2010F R - AREE A KR EE 2009 FR
2009, was to maintain the net debt-to-equity ratio in line with market B HFsBHESLXFEMS
expectations. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may JERf - BT B RFAEZLE - K&
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new FEARENTRENRES S5 - BT
shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or ik  REEATRE  SEE£HMOE
sell assets to reduce debt. BREILEEENRDAE -
The net debt-to-equity ratio at the reporting date is as follows: REBERE  FEEEERLENT
2010 2009
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Fit e ARET ARETT
Trade and other payables, and accruals FEFTRRSR - HAFERTR
KiaRRE R 26 378,286 447,781
Derivative financial liabilities MTESREE 29 14,275 30,252
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 30 1,935,430 1,769,634
Total debt wafE 2,327,991 2,247,667
Less: Pledged deposits R HEIRER 24 (9,431) (73,569)
Less: Bank and cash balances B IRTT IR AR 25 (92,787) (216,950)
Net debt FRE 2,225,773 1,957,148
Total equity iR 1,776,226 1,720,837
Net debt-to-equity ratio FEEHERIEE 125% 114%
The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group W—INEARARRKAE  REFAEER
to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public R AR i - AEBEERFED
float of at least 25% of the shares. 25% RNV RARIFRE -
Hong Long Holdings Limited JE[& =R E R A =
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(B=EHHES  UAARRTIR)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

33.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

3

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &

Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Loans and advance
Prepayments and deposits
Bank balances

Other payables and accruals
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Current tax liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings

NET ASSETS
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

Annual Report 2010 = —ZF F 3§

W - BERRE
RIE R BRI E
ERMER
FENFIRRIES
IRITAEER
HAENTOR R AR E A
JREAHBf 8 X R 3K IR
AHFHIARIR
ITEERAE

f&

BEEFE

3. AR A W BMRIE
2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREETT
29 25
1,026,556 1, 19286
19,679 26,359
1,040 374
5,676 60,115
(5,584) (111,562)
(244,480) (240)
(4,333) (4,333)
(14,275) (30,252)
(79,473) (293,157)
704,835 840,284
11,971 10,296
692,864 829,988
704,835 840,284
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(BREFHHS)  UARBTIT)

34. RESERVES

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

34. ftf

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of

changes in equity.

(b) Company

At 1 January 2009
Profit for the year
Share options cancelled

At 31 December 2009
Loss for the year
Issue of shares

Issue of scrip dividend shares
Special dividend paid in cash
Share options cancelled

At 31 December 2010

R2009F1A18
AFEH
BRI E
2009512318
AEREE
ikt

BABERN
TEXHORAIRS
ERIRE

12010512318

(a) A&KH

AEMEERAEDHLERG
PEMERRGEREEDER

5l e

(b) ZAAT

Retained

profits/

(Accumulated

Share Merger Capital losses)
premium reserve reserve  R&EF/ Total
BiEE Al EXGiE  (ZEER) &zt
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
lifzd ARETT ARMTRT ARETR AR%TRn AR%TR
579,466 (752) 50,122 (27,469) 601,367
- - - 228,621 228,621
- - (17,667) 17,667 -
579,466 (752) 32,455 218819 829,988
- - - (154,966) (154,966)
32(a) 66,182 = = = 66,182
32(b) 20,615 = = = 20,615
32(c) 24,592 = (14,754) = 9,838
15, 32(d) 74,749 = = (75,333) (584)
15 = = = (78,209) (78,209)
35(c) = = (7) 7 -
765,604 (752) 17,694 (89,682) 692,864
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A RETHT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BB H AL

34. ReservEs (CoNT’D)

34. fatfh (59)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of shares of the subsidiary acquired
over the nominal value of the shares used by the
Company exchange therefore.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after tax of the Group's
PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted by the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
equity-settled share-based payments in note 3(p) to the
financial statements.

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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(c)

RENEERB N
) BiaE

(ir)

(iif)

(iv)

REFSHSREE AR
AR {0 )4 (8 Bk P BV & & A it
DIRTARRRE - HERE
BERRNELAESEREA
IR PTRIR « B EBEE S
B S Z BBRARAEE
BEAERREBBRERES
HBIHER

(=N

& OHEE T3 P UUB B0 P 8
RAEIR B EEEARR R
ZRRABRMEEZRNE
L

BT

EERBBE RO - XWRIE
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35.

Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3z 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Qo
(&

N G 45 4/,
(B =B HE5)

C UARBITIT)

VAJBEAy 7 25 - RE BRE WY A5k

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 31 January 2007
whereby the directors of the Company are authorised, at their
discretion, to invite eligible participants such as employees and

consultants of the Group, including directors of any company in

the Group, to subscribe for shares of the Company. These options

generally vest after six months to one year from the date of grant

and are exercisable within a period of five to ten years. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of the
Company at a predetermined exercise price plus a consideration of

HK$10 per option holder.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
during the year are as follows, whereby all options are

settled by physical delivery of shares:

BRTEZMRMRE:

Options granted to directors:

-on 31 January 2007

-on 15 May 2007

Options granted to employees:
-on 31 January 2007
-on 15 May 2007

-on 10 October 2007

Options granted to third parties:

-on 15 May 2007

-on 13 February 2008

Total

—R2007£1A31H

—R2007F5 A 15H
BT EEHARE :
—R2007E1A31H
—R2007%58 158
12007 10A 108
RYE=HERM:E :
—R2007F5 A 158

—1R2008%2A 136

Number of
options

AREHE

7,000,000

2,000,000

12,000,000
12,951,000

1,000,000

13,000,000

8,000,000

55,951,000

—

ARAER 2007 451 A 31 B EFRA—IHRK
BT E B ARRERERETRIE
BEAEENEERERSAEKR2H
E(BREAEHETEMNARNES)R
BARARD - ZERBE—REERL
BHEmNEAZE—FRERE kAR
EE+FHRAITE - BRERSE AR
H10BTIERRE - BHRBEE T
BAEN  REETEERE KA

AREBEAR -

(a) FREHFHAROERREGDOT
Bt AR REL R ETEY

AT :

Contractual Exercise
Vesting conditions life of options price
BERG RRESNFE OEE
Six months from 22 February 2007 5years HK$0.60
(the “Listing Date") 5%  0.60%TT

M200762 A28 EmE])

Bt EA
Six months from the date of grant 10years HK$1.84
it A B~ E A 106 1.84387T
Six months from the Listing Date 5years HK$0.60
mEm BRIk EA 5% 0608
Six months from the date of grant 10years HK$1.84
it A B~ E A 106 1.84387T
Six months from the date of grant 10years HK$2.99
miRit B Bt/ E A 106 2997%TT
Six months from the date of grant 10years HK$1.84
it A B~ E A 106 1.84387T
Six months from the date of grant 10years HK$1.70
B AR R~ EAR 10F 17057

Hong Long Holdings Limited JE[& =R E R A =
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3 Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &AESN + AN EETIIR)

35. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONT’D) 35. DARAR 2 45 A RERE WAk (7))
(b) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the (b) RBEHHBEKREREERITEN
reporting date: IBRBREMHEAR
2010 2009
Exercise period Exercise price Number Number
1T1EER TEE #A 8
22 August 2007 to 21 February 2012 HK$0.60 - 19,000,000
20078 A22HE 201242 A21H 0.60,87C
15 November 2007 to 14 May 2017 HK$1.84 27,935,000 27,951,000
2007411 A15HZ£201745 7 14H 1.847%87T
10 April 2008 to 9 October 2017 HK$2.99 1,000,000 1,000,000
20084 A10HZE20174F1089H 2.9987T
13 August 2008 to 12 August 2018 HK$1.70 8,000,000 8,000,000
200848 A13H=E201848 A 12 H 1.707%7C

36,935,000 55,951,000

(c) The number and weighted average exercise prices of (c) RBREEHEREMEFITHEEN
share options are as follows: T
2010 2009
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
IEF AT
TEE  AREHE IEE  RREHE
‘000 ‘000
TR TR
Outstanding at beginning FMEATE HK$1.4236 7T 55951 HK$1.83/% T 81,139
of year
Exercised during the year FRTE HK$0.60 3 7T (19,0000 NATER -
Cancelled during the year FRFH HK$1.8438 7T (16) HK$2.75%7C (25,188)
Outstanding at end of year FEREATE HK$1.8478 7T 36,935 HK$1.42%7T 55,951
Exercisable at end of year FIEA]FAT(E HK$1.8438 7T 36,935 HK$1.42767T 55,951
No share options were granted during the year ended 31 #H 20104 K 2009412 A31H
December 2010 and 2009. LE 8 I 4% AR (T R AR A o
128 Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3z 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

35. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONT’D)

(BB BATEIN - UA RIS

35. VABAR &y i SRR B4 A sk (A

(c)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of
share options are as follows: (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2010, 19,000,000 share
options granted on 31 January 2007 were exercised (2009:
Nil). Approximately RMB14,754,000 was transferred from
capital reserve to share premium accounts.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, 16,000 share
options granted on 15 May 2007 were cancelled. Accordingly,
the fair value on grant date of the share options so cancelled
of approximately RMB7,000 was transferred from the capital
reserve to retained profits.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, 5,188,000 and
20,000,000 share options granted on 15 May 2007 and 10
October 2007 respectively were cancelled. Accordingly, the
fair value on grant date of the share options so cancelled of
approximately RMB17,667,000 was transferred from the
capital reserve to retained profits.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2010 had exercise
prices of HK$1.70, HK$1.84 or HK$2.99 and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 6.65 years.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2009 had exercise
prices of HK$0.60, HK$1.70, HK$1.84 or HK$2.99 and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.5 years.

(c)

SREBE R EMET ST EEN
T 1 ()

HE2010F12A31BLEFE - R
200741 A31H#&EH /919,000,000
17 % 4 B % 17 £(2009 F :
) o #) NR¥ 14,754,000 02 B
BAREESBRERMDEER

H E£2010F12A31 B Lt FEF -
7200745 A 15 A # H #9 16,000
MDIEIREE T - Bt - BHE
BRERELBHOAALBHARE
7.000 T E A A HEEBEEREB

A o

E £2009F12A31 8 It F & -
5,188,000 17 & 20,000,000 13 % 3
7200745 A 15H % 2007410 A
10 B 2 RRED #HE8H o
I ZEEEHERRENE L AH
WARBEHARE17,667,000TF
HENFEESBRERT -

R 20104 12 A 31 HEARITHERK
EHTTEBA1.7087T  1.848 T
3,2.9977C + MIMETHBRTEL
FHI6.654F o

20094 12 A 31 B i ARITE R
EWTFEEA060B T 1.708
JL ~ 1.847 708k 2.998 7T » i ANE
B TAENFERAELEFE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3 Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

35. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONT’D)

(BEEHHS - UNRMETIT)

35. VUMt 7 s SRR RRE A A9 3k ()

(d)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on either the Black-
Scholes pricing model or the binomial lattice model. The
contractual life and expectations of early exercise of the share
option were used as inputs into relevant models.

Fair value of share options and assumptions are as follows:

Fair value at measurement date

Share price

Exercise price

Expected volatility (expressed as
weighted average volatility
used in the models)

Option life (expressed as weighted
average life used in the models)

Expected dividends

Risk-free interest rate (based on
Exchange Fund Notes)

Valuation model used

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to
future volatility based on publicly available information.

Share options were granted under a service condition. The
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There was
no market conditions associated with the share option grants.

REFERBNALE

&

e

BERE (AZE
BARRmE
HIRBET)

RIREEHOAZE
BARRmE
FHERER)

BHRS

EEBRAE (U5E
LEREHE)

RAHHEER
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31 January
2007

2007F1A31A

HK$0.787 7T
NATEH
HK$0.60787

47.9%

3years
4.4%

4.0%
Black-Scholes

Bz -H85

(d) RBREHDAERRBRR

VAR T 58 5 i 4 B P AR EUAR A5 9 22

RETZRARTR

IR R A

FHE o TR TRBREN AR A

TR 7 — EFRETEBEA K

“IEAREEAE - RRENA
DEFERR AR EITEIERBIE

WARAER -

BRBEAIAA ERBRT

15 May 10 October
2007 2007

20074654158 20074104108
HK$0.47787T  HK$0.64 /87T
HK$1.84 T HK$2.93 7T
HK$1.84 T HK$2.997 T

48.9% 51.1%

3.25 years 10 years
3.4% 1.21%

4.2% 4.3%
Black-Scholes Binomial
MR =y

T8 HAR R O AR IR 2R R (AR R R

13 February
2008
200842 A 130

HK$0.54 BT
HK$1.61 77T
HK$1.70787T

56.2%

10 years

2.7%
Binomial
2R

P ey g 8 T FHIEE) -

IR DB AN AEEAE
R BRI -

REER BRI -

Wt K AR AR TS TR 4R A H RO
ARERE - WERERREMREE

RARY T S 16

ZRST



Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3z 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

36. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(BB BATEIN - UA RIS

Bt A

(a)

Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 23 April 2010, the Group entered into an agreement
with a vendor, Shenzhen Huifenglian Investment Company
Limited* (“SZ Huifenglian”) to acquire 100% of the issued
share capital of Shenzhen Hong Long Real Estate Company
Limited* (“SZ HL Real Estate”) since SZ Huifenglian and SZ
HL Real Estate failed to repay to the Group of approximately
RMB2,001,000 and RMB214,850,000 respectively and was
in difficulty to raise funds for their property development
project. The consideration of approximately RMB2,001,000
was satisfied by the offset against the same amount due by
SZ Huifenglian. SZ HL Real Estate is an investment holding
company, which together with its 52% subsidiaries, Huizhou
Dayawan Yonghao Company Limited* (“HZ Dayawan
Yonghao") and Huizhou Hongye Investment Development
Company Limited* (“HZ Hongye") (collectively referred to
as “SZ HL Real Estate Group”) are principally engaged in
property development.

The acquisition was completed on 23 April 2010. The Group
recognised a gain on bargain purchase of approximately
RMB123,979,000 in relation to this business combination.
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the gain
on bargain purchase was resulted from a forced sale.

The directors consider that this acquisition will allow the
Group to increase substantially its land reserves and have an

additional and steady income source in the coming years.

* For identification purposes only.

WEEKIB AT

201054 A238 © ARAEIT
ELBEEERAR(NRIEZ
g RFINMEREEXEGR AR
([BEEZ])HRREEELASE
B4 AR 2,001,000 7T K% AR
214,850,000 7 B 8 LA A E Y5
BEAEEES  MAKERES
FYELE T — Bt 0 AU
EEEER100% B HITHRA - K
B# AR 2,001,000 7T J5 LA £
FIELEEMSEN NI -
BEBEBNEZRAR - BERE
HEE52 % #Em= BK B A B =N KR
EXREEAR AR ([EM AL
KED RBMNEEREREBRA
AI(TEMERED (REEEEEE
B XEREMEERERER -

ZUWREETEN2010F4 A23H %
B o REBEF U B S HFERE
BB =4 AR 123,979,000
T ARBESERE  ZEBEWK
=TI E R A B TR

EERA wWBERRERAEE
RIESEIN L3R - R RREEF
BEARIMEERARIR
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3 Rz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &AESN + AN B TIIR)

36. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 36. 5 BB A ERNEE
(CoNT’D) (%)
(a) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Cont’d) (a) WEEHIEBAR (&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of SZ HL PR R BIE B X KB A ERI B E
Real Estate Group acquired as at the date of acquisition is as FaERKEERNAREDT ¢
follows:
RMB'000
ARETT
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB R 2,340
Other assets Hfh&E 608
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESREE 2,500
Trading securities BEZES 1,000
Inventories FE 1,241,621
Prepayments, deposits and TERFRIE « e R E fth FEUR
other receivables 34,887
Pledged deposits EIPTF 10,496
Bank and cash balances HRITRIA S R 3,220
Trade and other payables, and accruals ~ JEfFERFK M EN R KLIERER (315,094)
Amounts due to the Group FERT AR BRIE (259,936)
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE (400,000)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEEE (81,096)
Net assets BEFAE 240,546
Non-controlling interests eI R (114,566)
Gain on bargain purchase in respect XBEHNBEERE R
of business combination (123,979)
2,001
Satisfied by: LATRB AR -
Consideration offsetting against S AN 5 B R ORI YR (B
the Group's receivable 2,001
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WEEERBRSRAFE :
Cash and cash equivalents acquired AR RIREEEY 3,220
The non-controlling interest recognised at the acquisition P UHE B BARERR &) FE 1 A 2 T BA
date was measured by the non-controlling shareholders’ FEAEE AR A 2 4 b B FE A BN K R
proportionate share of the net fair value of the identifiable KERBMNEAEABNEEREE
assets and liabilities of HZ Dayawan Yonghao and HZ Hongye WS B BB A A FERTE -

at the acquisition date.

132 Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

36. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(ConT’D)

(BREFHHS)  UARBTIT)

36. A B HRBEWE
(%)

(a)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Cont’d)

SZ HL Real Estate Group's contribution of turnover and
loss to the Group since the date of acquisition and up to 31
December 2010 are as follows:

BEREER
EEER

Turnover contribution
Loss contribution

The contribution of turnover and loss to the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2010 as if the acquisition had been
completed on 1 January 2010 are as follows:

Turnover contribution

EEEER
Loss contribution EEER

The above proforma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of the turnover and
results of operations that actually would have been achieved
had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2010, nor is
intended to be a projection of future results.

On 10 November 2010, the Group entered into an agreement
to dispose of its entire 52% equity interest in HZ Dayawan
Yonghao and HZ Hongye. The directors consider that the
disposal represented a good opportunity for the Group
to realise it investments in HZ Dayawan Yonghao and HZ
Hongye and to relocate its resources to other investments
which may generate higher returns to the Group.

(a) WEBHMELR (E)

BEEEEBESWEBRHRZE2010
F12A31 BIEHASEEER M E %
HREBAT

RMB'000
ARBTT

4,033

BRERWEEEEN 201061 A1 H
TRk REE 2010612 A31 81k
FEHASEFRMNEEEOT

RMB'000
ARBTT

6,461

EiEEERHEMHHR - RUKRR
B WEEIRRN20106F1 A1 H
TR ERERN SR REEE
B TR SESIR R B TRA

®2010% 11 A108 » AEEF
—HipBEHERBEMAREEKE R
BNEENEIH02%E - EER
A HEFHAASEIRHERE
A B BN K g ok = RN &
¥MRE - WHEEREAANE
2R = B R A E AR & o
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3 R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BREFHHS)  UAEBTIT)

36. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 36. 5 BB A ERNEE
(CoNT’D) (%)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (b) HEMHRBLF

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group

disposed of its entire 52% equity interest in HZ Dayawan

Yonghao and HZ Hongye, 82% equity interest in Huizhou

Yintaida Company Limited* and 100% equity interest in Hong

Long Xingye Investment Company Limited*. Net assets

of the above subsidiaries being disposed of at the date of

disposal were as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Other assets

Deferred tax assets
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Amount due from the Group
Current tax assets

Pledged deposits

Bank and cash balances

Trade and other payables, and accruals
Receipts in advance

Amounts due to the Group
Bank and other borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets disposed of
Non-controlling interests
Waiver of debts

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Total consideration — satisfied by cash
Net cash inflow arising on disposal:

Cash consideration received
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

* For identification purposes only.

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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YE b
HEE
ERERIREE

E3SE

JFE M AR e LA FE MR
FEUS AN SR B R
MENTHIRE E
HEHRER
RITRIRBAEH

FERN R - HfaEN R RIBRER
TAURRTR
FEN AR EFUR
RITREMIEE
BAETIR R (A

P ENEEFE
FEIER AR
RERED
S H A Bl s

BRE-REXM
HEELRRSRAFR

BEHERERE
b &R E RIS EEY

REZE2010F 12 A31 HIEFE -
REBEHENBMNKEEKERE
MEHR T2 % A - REMNT
BREEEBRAAIAG2%MIER
ORI TR B E G R AR
100% AR #E - &K Ll kB AR
RHE BB EEFENT ¢

RMB'000
ARBTT

2,471
448

7,568
1,713,693
192,598
18,000
1,912
27,212
27,500
470,462)
108,037)
289,052)
811,000)
(81,096)

(
(
(
(

231,755
(111,373)
289,062
200,801

610,235

456,308
(27,500)

428,808



Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3z R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

36. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(ConT’D)

36. 456
(4

i

(BREFHHS)  UAEBTIT)

Bl it A i sk
)

(c)

Major non-cash transactions

Included in other payables and accruals are amounts of
approximately RMB20,835,000 and RMB66,886,000
representing a short-term advance and an accrued upfront fee
in relation to credit note issued by the Company, respectively,
which have been settled by the issuance of 105,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at an issue price of HK$0.95
per ordinary shares.

During the current year, credit note of approximately
RMB200,808,000 was settled directly by another loan raised
with the same principal amount.

Included in additions to investment properties during the year
is an amount of approximately RMB27,776,000 which was
transferred from inventories.

During the current year, an advance from a third party
of approximately RMB30,000,000 included in trade and
other payables, and accruals at 31 December 2009 were
transferred to receipts in advance for purchase of certain
completed properties of the Group.

During the current year, the deposit paid of approximately
RMB32,600,000 in prior year was transferred to available-for-
sale financial assets.

Details of scrip dividend in lieu of cash are set out in note 32(d)
to the financial statements.

(c)

IRFRERS

STAHEMEMNRRERERNL
A R 20,835,000 & A R #
66,886,000 7T 9 5ll 15 58 HA 8 5k [
BRARBBITEEZBROASRE
A WARITESRE®BR0.95%8
JLE 1T A E) 105,000,000 A% & i@
A& &5 AT o

REAFE EEZBEHNARK
200,808,000 LIV ESENEEAR
SEMEREELEN -

FAREMRBNERESRETE
MK AR 27,776,000 7T

RAREE - —£R2009F12A4
3THFTABNMER  HitEMK
REREANE-FTBRHARE
30,000,000 T2 E & EAREE AR
SEETERIYENTEWRIRER °

RAFE  BAFEEMZRSHOA
R#32,600,0007T 2 &8 &= Al £ H

AR B RIS B 15 R MY A
32(d) °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/%5 &H#E5) + A B TIIR)

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

37. BAREME

(a)

At 31 December 2010, the Group provided guarantees
to certain banks in respect of mortgage facilities granted
in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by
purchasers of the Group's properties as follows:

Guarantees given to banks for mortgage
facilities granted to purchasers

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there are any
defaults on the mortgages, the Group is responsible to repay
the outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued
interest and penalty owed by the defaulting purchasers to
banks. The Group is then entitled to take over the legal title
and possession of the related properties. The guarantees
shall be released in accordance with the terms of the
guarantee contracts, such as:

i) upon the issue of the relevant purchaser’'s property
ownership certificate and in the custody of the bank; or

(ii) up to a maximum of two years after the full repayment
of mortgage loan by the relevant purchaser.

At 31 December 2010, the directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Group under
the above guarantees.

The fair value of the guarantees at date of inception is not
material and is not recognised in the financial statements.

At 31 December 2010, the Group provided guarantees
to certain banks and financial institutions to the extent of
RMB1,131,000,000 in respect of loan facilities granted to
certain subsidiaries which had been disposed of during the
year ended 31 December 2010. The maximum liability of
the Group, at 31 December 2010, under the guarantees
was the total facilities utilised by the disposed subsidiaries
as at the same date which amounted to approximately
RMB756,000,000. The guarantees shall be released, in
accordance with the terms of the guarantee contracts, up to a
maximum of two years after the full repayment of the loans.

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
Annual Report 2010 Z&—ZF F 3

(a)

FE RIS R A AE
AERTTHE IR

(b)

R2010512A31 8 - AEERA
AAEEYEBE R LNKRBER
Mm% AR BREREE - mE TR
TIREBERAT :

2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREETT
332,810 370,000

RBERZ G HIZBHIED
B AEBABREEERNES
ERBITZAREBIZB A ERE
SRS RER - AEEZRERE
ERBMENEEEENAERE -
BEHERSREBERS O IRKE
Bk g

() HHEITWNEEmMAEEIE
MR BRITRE X

(i)  HEEERTRERREER
BERZME -

R2010F12 A31H » EFER AN
SEREMERMAERENES
PR e

BRARRRIEHREANZARELD
EX - EM T ERT B IRKRER -

M2010F12A318 ' A& EH
BTET(ERBZE2010F12A4
STRIEFERE)HBARNER
A ME T IRIT R RIS R
R#E AR ®1,131,000,000 7T ° A
£ E2010F12 AT B RERT
WEmAE  AZELHEWNEAR
KRB A ANREBRENARE
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&S HH#5) + UAEETIT)

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

37. BRAM (B

(b)

(Cont'd)

At 31 December 2010, the directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Group under
the above guarantees since the loan facilities were also
secured by certain certificates of land use rights of lands
owned by the disposed subsidiaries and 100% equity interest
of a disposed subsidiary.

The fair value of the guarantees at date of inception is not
material and is not recognised in the financial statements.

At 31 December 2010, the Group provided guarantee and
pledged certain of its investment properties with carrying
amount of approximately RMB119,100,000 to a bank
regarding a loan facility of RMB95,000,000 granted to a
tenant of the Group. The maximum liability of the Group,
at 31 December 2010, under the guarantee was the loan
amount outstanding as at the same date of approximately
RMB95,000,000. The guarantee and the charged assets shall
be released, in accordance with the terms of the guarantee
contract, up to a maximum of two years after the full
repayment of the loan.

At 31 December 2010, the directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Group under
the above guarantee. The directors believe that all the
outstanding amounts will be settled by the tenant upon
maturity. In addition, the Group also owed approximately
RMB95,000,000 to the tenant as at year end. If there is
any default payment of loan by the tenant, the Group is
responsible to repay the outstanding loan principal together
with accrued interest and penalty owed by the tenant to the
bank. The directors indicated that, in the event of default
payment by the tenant, the Group would then withhold the
repayment of its loan due to the tenant.

The fair value of the guarantee at date of inception is not
material and is not recognised in the financial statements.

(b)

(c)

(&)

© 2010412 A31 8 - BERER
TNARZE B ERE A BT #ES &
BT R EERERZELER
Mg AR 2 F0AR (IR - S
RAENEERE LR EERE
R E K o

ERERNREHBEBZAAREBELD
BA - AW ER P B RRAER o

M2010F 128318 AEE R
BTAEE—ERAFPFNERBRE
A R # 95,000,000 7t 1A — & 88 17
REEREUEEAENOARKE
119,100,000 K & TR E W EIE
AR o REE2010F12 A31 AR
ERTHE=B8E ARBKREER
B %4 A R ¥ 95,000,000 T ° %
BREEREEGRBERS QK
FoAERHEEERERZMENR
FRRR o

MR2010512A318 EFRA
NG B A L PR R 1 B 2= A
ETK - EERAZAPL B
W EBFTA AR © W - HE
FE  ANEBIAKZAFPHARE
95,000,0007T ° fizz B E R E
o AEEEREEEZHAFS
BT REEERA D ER ETF
BRER - BERT  MEMAFH
WEY  AEEREEREYEERER
BT ZBERER

ERERREHEHBEMZAAREBELD
BA - At ER P B RRER
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

(d)

At 31 December 2010, the Group provided guarantee
to a bank regarding a loan facility of approximately
RMB50,000,000 for a business associate. The maximum
liability of the Group, at 31 December 2010, under the
guarantee was the loan amount outstanding at that date
of approximately RMB50,000,000. The guarantee shall be
released, in accordance with the terms of the guarantee
contract, up to a maximum of two years after the full
repayment of the loan.

At 31 December 2010, the directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Group under
the above guarantee since the loan facility was also secured
by certain property ownership certificates of properties
owned by a director of the Company, Mr. ZENG Yunshu or
a resigned director of the Company, Mr. ZENG Sheng or a
company independent of the Group.

In view of the above, the directors are of the opinion that the
fair value of the guarantee at date of inception is not material
and is not recognised in the financial statements.

Pursuant to a purchase agreement of land use right and a
supplement agreement both dated 31 January 2008, if the
Group cannot complete the underlying property development
project at Chaohu City, Anhui Province, the PRC (“Chaohu
Project”) on or before 31 December 2010, the vendor shall
charge the Group a daily penalty of 0.1% on the land premium
amount. At 31 December 2010, the Group experienced a
delay in the construction progress and would not be able to
meet the contractual construction completion date. However,
up to the date of the approval of the financial statements,
the Group has not received any enforcement notice from the
vendor in relation to the above. Based on past experience,
the directors are of the opinion that the first phase of Chaohu
Project shall be completed in 2011 and the Group will not be
subject to any penalties relating to the delay in the contractual
construction completion date. Hence, no provision has been
made in the financial statements.
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONT D) 37. BARAME ()

(f)  During the year ended 31 December 2009, an action was (f)  REZE2009F 12 A31HIEFE -
brought by a property management company against two — Y E RN R ¥ A S B /M
subsidiaries of the Group for the recovery of a loss of B A HE B EF FA A MK B _E sl i
approximately RMB1,278,000 suffered by the said property EENANEIHMIBROARE
management company. Based on the legal advice obtained, 1,278,0007T ° RIEFTENG 25 E
the directors of the Company believe that the Group has BER  ARAEFRAEELEEES
reasonable good chances of successfully defending this B RN B o Bt
action. Hence, no provision has been made in the financial I FERBA TS SRR ML B A o
statements.

38. LEASE COMMITMENTS 38. FHE AW

At 31 December 2010, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

Within one year —ER
In the second to fifth years inclusive —EZhF(ERF)
After five years REAE

At 31 December 2010 the total future minimum sublease payments
expected to be received under non-cancellable subleases amounted
to approximately RMB37,316,000 (2009: RMB32,202,000).

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for its offices, staff quarters and sub-leased properties. Leases are
typically negotiated for periods from two to fifteen years and do not
include contingent rentals.

During the year, approximately RMB7,531,000 (2009:
RMB8,220,000) was recognised in profit or loss as rental expenses
in respect of sub-leased properties.

R2010F12 8318 » T HEKELHEE
TR BB SKIERSFEEENT

2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARETT

11,535 8,887
34,929 29,306
19,059 23,157
65,523 61,350

M2010F12 A31 8 ' BETAIHE D
HAERNARREHEERBELERENBA
R % 37,316,000 T (20094 : A R ¥
32,202,000 7T) °

KREMEFREEAKERESFE B
THEERIEDEERNHNES - HER
FHE_E+HAFHE BTEEHA
HE -

RAFE  H AR¥E 7,531,000 7T (2009
£ AR%8,220,0007T) 2 RIBRAE
RESAMENHSHAL -
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(BREFHHS)  UAEETIT)

39. [H#

A% 5

In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions and balances with related parties during the

year:

(a) Key management personnel compensation (a)

The key management personnel of the Group comprises all
directors, details of their emoluments were disclosed in note

13 to the financial statements.

(b) Transactions with related parties

(b)

Sale of a completed property to a close family member of a
director of the Company, Mr. ZHANG Yijun at a consideration

of approximately RMB2,920,000.

Sale of a motor vehicle to a director of the Company, Mr.
ZENG Sheng, resigned on 14 January 2011, at a consideration

of approximately RMB340,000.

(c) Balances with related parties

Included in trade and other receivables

Prepayments of construction materials
to a related party, which is
beneficially owned and controlled by
Mr. ZENG Yunshu

Included in trade and other payables,
and accruals

Amount due to a related party,
which is beneficially owned and
controlled by Mr. ZENG Yunshu
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AEEEREATL

TEEEASHH
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HEEEALTHRS

AR B #) A % 2,920,000 ST A1 K
NE—ZEEREHLEENERR
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A—REBEEEBLELE (201141
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ERRE A TR
2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
1,136 1,638
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(b= HHTHES)

40. FZZFHJE 2w

" UARBETTIT)

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets and liabilities of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length. The class of
shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Place of Issued
Name of incorporation Place of and paid
subsidiaries or registration operation up capital

KBAREME MY BT S BRTRESHER

Access BVI The PRC US$10,000
Achievement HBERZHEE H 10,0003 7T
Limited

Hong Long The PRC The PRC RMB299,000,000
Property i H AR 299,000,000 7T
Group
Company
Limited *

EEMESE
BRRAE

Shenzhen The PRC The PRC RMB10,680,000
Hong Long FE HE AK10,680,0007T
Commercial
Management
Company
Limited *

R BIE R 2
ERBRAE

Zhangjiakou The PRC The PRC HK$20,000,000
Centre Way H F 20,000,000787T
Real Estate
Development
Company
Limited *

RRAFR
BRI &

ABRAT

NREHT

RXELARERE  BE

REBENHBABRNGEE - EFRE
REEMHBARFBEERE MBS
BRITE - lRAEH A - AR
D ARR R E AR -

Percentage
ownership
interest/

voting power/
profit sharing
EhREEEER
RER/GREAL

Direct Indirect

BE R
% %
100 -
- 100

- 100

- 100

Principal
activities

Investment
holding
REHERR

Property
development
and property
investment

EE
EHERE

Property
leasing and
sub-leasing

MERE
&L

Property
development

VESGE

Legal
form

EERR

Private
limited
liability
company

ThA
BRAT

Wholly
foreign-
owned
enterprise

HNEEE
%

Limited
liability
company

BRAR

Wholly
foreign-
owned
enterprise

HNEEE
%

Hong Long Holdings Limited JE[&1=RR AR A 7
Annual Report 2010 =& —ZFFF 3R

141



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& 3 R Mz
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

40.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

40. TP )E 2 E (4])

Place of

Name of incorporation Place of
subsidiaries

KB AR EHE

or registration

MR BT S

Meizhou Hong The PRC The PRC
Long Shi Ye i R
Company
Limited *

IRl S
BRAT

Xingning Hong The PRC The PRC
Long Property i F
Development
Company
Limited *

Shenzhen City The PRC The PRC
Zirui Real Estate e
Development
Company
Limited *

("SZ Zirui")

RITERE
R
BRAT
(IARYI%3])

Shenzhen Hong The PRC The PRC
Long Real H s
Estates
Company
Limited *

A BEE R
BRAT

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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operation

Issued
and paid
up capital

ERITREHES

RMB50,000,000
AR¥ 50,000,000 7T

RMB230,000,000
AR 230,000,000 7T

RMB21,000,000
AR 21,000,000 7T

RMB10,000,000
AK#10,000,0007C

Percentage
ownership
interest/
voting power/
profit sharing Principal Legal
EiEERERER activities form
RER/GAEAL TEEH EERR
Direct Indirect
Hi i
% %
- 100 Property Limited
development  liability
Lk company
BRAT
- 100 Property Wholly
development  foreign-
MERE owned
enterprise
SNEEE
i S
- #100 Property Limited
development liability
MERE company
BRAT
- 100 Property Limited
development  liability
W ELE company
BRAHE
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40. EZMHE A A (8)

Name of
subsidiaries

KB LR EME

Shenyang Hong
Long Real
Estates
Company
Limited *

BEEEESE
BRRAE

Shenzhen Yiurui
Investment
Development
Company
Limited *

YRR E
BRARAA

Hong Long Winfinder

(Shenyang)
Real Estates
Company
Limited *
WRIESS OB15)
BXERAT

Chaohu Boshing

Tourism
Development
Company
Limited *
SNE Bk
REBRAR

Place of
incorporation
or registration

TR B

The PRC
B

The PRC
I

The PRC
B

The PRC
B

For identification purposes only.

Place of
operation
R

The PRC
hE

The PRC
e

The PRC
hE

The PRC
HE

Issued

and paid

up capital
BRITRBEHER

RMB2,000,000
AE#2,000,0007T

RMB1,000,000
AR 1,000,000 7T

HK$74,000,000
74,000,000 77T

US$2,790,800
2,790,800 T

The Group acquired 90% of the equity interest of SZ Zirui in 2008.

According to the share transfer agreement entered, the vendor

shall transfer the remaining 10% equity interest to the Group upon

the delivery of certain properties to the vendor upon completion of

construction. However, the vendor shall not share any profits in SZ

Zirui and shall not participate in the financial and operating policies

of SZ Zirui. Hence, the Group regards SZ Zirui as a wholly-owned

subsidiary.

Percentage
ownership
interest/
voting power/
profit sharing Principal Legal
EFaRERER activities form
RER/GAEAL TEEH EERR
Direct Indirect
Hi fE

% %

- 100 Property Limited
development liability
ek company

BARRA]

- 100 Property Limited
development liability
VIEGE company

BRAHE

- 100 Property Wholly
development  foreign-
kN owned

enterprise
HNEEE
%

- 100 Property Wholly
development  foreign-
MERE owned

enterprise
INEBE
i 3

# £ B A 2008 F BB R I KR B0 59 90 %
Bt - REBEBRMDEBR G - BORERMA
BEHRNETERIMFRRAASEE R
AT 10% fRHE © AT - FEHTEAER
NERHER G F - BTS2 EEITTR
WK I e B 75 R B © Rtk - A%
B RNEKm RS2 EMBRA
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41.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

41.

P

42.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
to the current year's presentation. The major changes included
the reclassification of prepaid land costs previously disclosed
as a separate item in the consolidated statement of financial
position now being classified under trade and other receivables;
the reclassification of warrants previously classified under trade
and other payables, and accruals now being presented as a
separate item in the consolidated statement of financial position;
and the reclassification of cash flows from purchases and sales
of trading securities previously classified as investing activities in
the consolidated statement of cash flows now being classified as
operating activities. The new classification of the accounting items
was considered to provide a more appropriate presentation of the
state of affairs of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

42

ETHBEFEENDBUTAREE
2IHRE -  TEEETBESENNES
BBARARBEBEREBEEMNEMNL
WREH D E - BIIARBKERTR R HE A
UK - R D BAREMNRR - Hi
BRNERRARERNBREZEN S
B B2 AKREUBRRRNEFR
B REEASBERAGARERNERK
AEPNAABERNEERIZFNR
EREENIR RIAKLLEED - &
SEBMENSBRRBRERAEEE
BRREERENZT -

e IR S

43.

(a) In March 2011, the Group entered into three transfer
agreements to dispose of its 90% equity interest in
Dongguan Honghua Shiye Investment Company Limited*
and its 100% equity interests in Shenzhen Hong Long Weiye
Real Estate Company Limited* and in Shenzhen Yinghua
Development Company Limited* at a total consideration
of approximately RMB52,800,000. The disposals were
completed in March 2011.

(b) In March 2011, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its office premises in the PRC at a
consideration of approximately RMB3,734,000. The disposal

was completed in March 2011.

* For identification purposes only

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) R201MEFE3IA AEEFTL=1%
EEpE  AHEHREZMRE
BEREBR AT 0% MK E K
HR XY MEREXEHEAR
ARFARYTREFELEERBRA
AR 100% i - BREDAAR
# 52,800,000 - HESFHE R
201193 AR °

(b) M2011F3A ' AEELEER
# o URELHARYS 734,000
LEEETFRNBTENE - &
EIEE R 2011 F3 A% °

v S 5 e ok

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 31 March 2011.
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